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“Upper Tier” Investment Grade 
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(million dollars, except per share amounts)     2007 2006 Change
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Total return (share price change plus dividends)   (2%)  7% 
net sales from continuing operations   $ 4,484 $ 4,019  12%
eBITDa from continuing operations   $ 694 $ 553 25%
Percent of sales     15.5%  13.8% 170bp
net earnings from continuing operations   $ 337 $ 291 16%

Per share    $ 4.00 $ 3.47 15% 
net earnings   $ 337 $ 290 16%

Per share   $ 4.00 $ 3.46 16%
Return on capital employed 
 from continuing operations    14.6%  14.7% (10bp)
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 To our ShareownerS    In recent years, our effort 

to reshape and revitalize The Stanley Works 

has revolved around strengthening and diver-

sifying our portfolio while building a growth 

culture focused on ‘moving forward’ in an era of  

rapid change and intense global competition. 

Progress in this regard has been notable.  

Our company today is significantly larger, more 

profitable and stronger than it was just a few 

years ago. Our business portfolio is transforming 

and well positioned to perform in challenging, 

ever-changing economic conditions.

ManageMenT LeTTer 
TO ShareOWnerS
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2007 Year In revIew 2007 was a pivotal year 
in testing that thesis. The collapse of the 
U.S. Construction and DIY market put our 
‘new look’ portfolio to the test. While about  
25% of our revenues were exposed to that 
depressed sector, the remainder performed 
exceptionally well, thus validating our long-
standing view that diversification would enable  
differentiated operating performance. In a 
highly challenging environment we achieved 
record revenues, ePS from continuing oper-
ations, cash flows, working capital turns and 
a very healthy return on capital employed. 
highlights are summarized below:  

	 •		Revenues	grew	12%	to	a	record	$4.5	billion	
with growth of 5% excluding acquisitions. 
all three business segments achieved 
growth	ex-acquisitions:	3%	in	CDIY,	10%	
in Industrial and 3% in Security Solutions.

	 •		EPS	from	continuing	operations	grew	15%	
to	a	record	$4.00.	

	 •		Free	cash	flow*	totaled	a	record	$457	million,	
up	$99	million	versus	2006	and	representing	
136%	of	net	income.

	 •		Working	capital	turns	increased	to	a	record	
5.1	turns	(up	0.6	turns	over	2006),	contrib-
uting	 to	 a	 solid	 14.6%	 return	 on	 capital	
employed	 (on	 a	 basis	 excluding	 acquisi-
tion-related	amortization).

Moreover, 2007 capped a four year period 
(’04	–	’07)	in	which	revenues	grew	80%	and	
eBITDa** from continuing operations nearly 
tripled	to	$694	million.	While	our	share	price	
hit	 an	 all	 time	 high	 of	 $64.25	 per	 share	 in	
July of 2007, it subsequently retreated as both 
general market and sector-specific concerns 
weighed on investor sentiment.

As	a	consequence,	our	share	price	was	$48.39	
at	year-end,	down	4%	for	the	year.	Our	total	
return to shareowners was -2%, including 
cash dividends. accordingly, we took the 
opportunity	to	repurchase	3.6	million	shares	at	
a	cost	of	$200	million	in	2007	and	repurchased	
another	2.2	million	shares	($100	million)	in	
early	2008.

StrategIc OvervIew As	we	enter	2008,	our	
strategy remains intact. We seek to maintain 
portfolio transition momentum by further  
diversifying away from Construction and 
DIY in the developed markets and increasing 
the weighting of Industrial and Security 
through organic and acquisitive growth. In 
addition, we are intensifying our organic 
growth initiatives in China, India and other 
emerging markets. Our portfolio strategy 
centers around a steady and methodical real-
location of capital to activities where superior 
returns are sustainable and above portfolio-
average organic growth is achievable, thus 
positioning the company to outperform bench-
marks on a long-term, ongoing basis.

Central to our thought process is selectivity 
with regard to the types of businesses we 
choose to operate. We have found that when 
three key attributes are present in a business, 
our ability to earn sustained above-average 
returns on capital employed is greatly enhanced.  
These	 three	 attributes	 are:	 (1)	 brand	 is	
meaningful	 to	 the	end	user	 (Stanley	or	one	
of	our	powerful	sub-brands);	(2)	the	customer	 
value proposition is strong and clearly under-
stood by customers and end users while being 
subject	to	continued	innovation;	and	(3)	global	
cost leadership is achievable. Today, virtually 
all of our core activities demonstrate these  
attributes. Thus, our business portfolio has 
produced strong free cash flow which in turn 
has opened the door to reinvestment in growth.

*refer tO page 33 Of MD&a fOr the recOncIlIatIOn Of OperatIng caSh flOw tO free caSh flOw     **anD tO page 5 fOr the recOncIlIatIOn Of eBItDa tO net IncOMe.
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grOwth platfOrMS Today we have three 
major growth platforms in global markets 
exceeding	 $60	 billion,	 replete	 with	 organic	
and acquisition-related growth opportunities. 
These	are	(1)	Industrial	and	Automotive	Tools,	
(2)	Mechanical	Security	and	(3)	Convergent	
Security. Our already strong franchises when 
combined with a clear roadmap for growth in 
each of these platforms gives us confidence 
that we can continue to grow company revenues 
10%+	annually	in	concert	with	our	long-term	
financial objectives.

Our steadfast pursuit of growth while maintaining 
balance sheet discipline has positioned us well 
to press ahead amid turbulent capital markets. 
While some traditionally aggressive parties 
competing for the same assets face liquidity 
and other concerns, as a company with an  
upper-tier investment grade credit rating we 
continue to enjoy full access to capital markets 
and the attendant flexibility that affords. 

Consequently our acquisition growth potential 
is robust and our ability to expand our growth 
platforms is significant. nonetheless, we remain 
vigilant in selecting acquisitions that fully 
meet our criteria for financial returns and 
strategic fit, while pacing them appropriately 
to ensure minimal integration risk and main-
taining a strong balance sheet.

StanleY fulfIllMent SYSteM (SfS) Perhaps  
the single most important change we undertook 
in 2007 was to ratchet up the intensity of  
our	SFS	implementation.	With	this	important	 
initiative, we are working to change how we 
operate, with a simple mandate: become less 
complicated and streamline everything we 
do. By leaning-out our plants and supply 
chain, we are driving inventory reduction 
and superior service. By re-engineering and 
standardizing our core business processes, we 

can achieve excellence in customer facing pro-
cesses and extract maximum efficiency from 
back room activities. and finally, by migrating 
toward a common company-wide systems 
platform, we can develop the operational 
capability to support future growth.

The measure of success will be when we become 
best-in-class at the delivery of products and 
services to our customers. This is a critical 
growth catalyst and organic share gain is 
often the result when that is achieved.  

Today,	SFS	is	pervasive	and	visible	throughout	
the company. Our record working capital 
performance in 2007 is directly attributable 
to this initiative. however, that is just the 
beginning.	SFS	 is	 totally	 complementary	 to	
our growth strategy and our support of it 
maximizes asset efficiency through operational 
excellence.

cOncluSIOn In	2008,	we	are	facing	one	of	
the most tumultuous environments in recent 
memory. The U.S. CDIY market shows no 
signs of recovery, the overall U.S. economy 
appears recession-bound, global inflation is 
ramping up even as growth is slowing, financial 
markets are in turmoil and the banking crisis 
has caused a severe global liquidity contraction.

We are prepared for these conditions. Our 
portfolio is resilient and our balance sheet is solid.  
Our roadmap to growth is clear. Opportunities 
abound for strong, well positioned companies 
during turbulent times like these. Thus, our 
objective goes beyond simply weathering the 
storm. We intend to seize the opportunity 
and build upon our success. We expect to make 
even	more	strategic	progress	 in	2008	while	
preserving our earnings base, positioning 
Stanley to emerge an even larger and stronger 
company as economic conditions improve.

*refer tO page 33 Of MD&a fOr the recOncIlIatIOn Of OperatIng caSh flOw tO free caSh flOw     **anD tO page 5 fOr the recOncIlIatIOn Of eBItDa tO net IncOMe.
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John	F.	Lundgren
Chairman & CEO

James M. Loree
Executive Vice President & CFO

We are dedicating this annual report to our business leaders and their teams. These associates 
are responsible for the growth and success that we have enjoyed over the past few years. They 
are	also	the	people	who,	along	with	our	18,000+	other	employees,	will	meet	the	challenges	
ahead and ensure our continued growth and vitality in the years to come.

respectfully,

new Britain, CT
March,	2008

John	F.	Lundgren
Chairman & CEO

James M. Loree
Executive Vice President & CFO



*free caSh flOw = caSh frOM OperatIOnS – capItal eXpenDItureS – capItalIZeD SOftware. refer tO MD&a On page 33 fOr the recOncIlIatIOn Of OperatIng caSh flOw tO free caSh flOw.
**wOrKIng capItal turnS are cOMputeD aS Year-enD wOrKIng capItal DIvIDenD BY fOurth Quarter SaleS, annualIZeD.

***rOce IS cOMputeD aS net earnIngS frOM cOntInuIng OperatIOnS pluS after-taX IntereSt eXpenSe, DIvIDeD BY the 13-pOInt average Of DeBt anD eQuItY.
****eBItDa (earnIngS BefOre IntereSt, taXeS, DeprecIatIOn anD aMOrtIZatIOn) IS a nOn-gaap MeaSureMent. ManageMent BelIeveS It IS IMpOrtant tO DeterMIne 

the earnIngS pOwer Of the cOMpanY anD tO prOperlY value the cOMpanY, Due tO current hIgh levelS Of nOn-caSh eXpenSeS relateD tO recent acQuISItIOnS. 

2007  SCORECARD
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     2003  2004  2005  2006  2007

net earnings from continuing operations  $ 88 $ 237 $ 272 $ 291 $ 337
  Interest income    (6)  (4)  (7)  (4)  (5)
  Interest expense    34  39  40  69  85
  Income taxes    30  87  87  76  115
  Depreciation and amortization    87  95  97  121  162

eBItDa from continuing operations   $ 233 $ 454 $ 489 $ 553 $ 694
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At Bostitch we design, manufacture and supply 

fastening products of proven quality, durability 

and reliability. 

Denise Nemchev

President, Bostitch
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Innovative new products deliver productivity  
to end users and strong sell-through to customers  
of Stanley® tools and storage.

Jeff ansell
President, Consumer Tools & Storage
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Bostitch® StrapShot™ 
Metal Connector Nailer

Bostitch® High-Power 
Stick Framing Nailer

FatMax® 40’ Tape Rule

FatMax® Xtreme™  
Functional Utility Bar

FatMax® Xtreme™  
AntiVibe® Hammer

FatMax® Xtreme™ 
Snap-Off Knife

Stanley® MaxLife2™ 
369™ Tripod Flashlight

FatMax® 4-in-1  
Mobile Work Station



The challenges of tough markets for U.S. home building, home repair and remodel activities were felt in this segment. These markets  declined 5-10%, a headwind that made perfor-mance difficult at best.

Nonetheless, the Consumer Tools & Storage business had an impressive performance, due in large part to three successes: (1) its 2003-2007 transition from a U.S.-focused business to a global leader in its industry; (2) the introduction of new products that generated approximately $80 million of revenue in 2007; and (3) consistent merchandising and advertising campaigns in support of the new product offerings. 

Over 250 new products were introduced globally, anchored by expansion of the FatMax®,  FatMax® Xtreme™ and FatMax® XL™ premium  ranges which have tripled in the past three years. The combination of real innovation and exceptional global, professional-focused commercialization fueled domestic share gains and unprecedented international growth rates. 

New product vitality rates reached all-time highs as the global business focused on deliver-ing value propositions to bring efficiency and productivity to professional end users. The new product development process begins with end user research by our Discovery Teams and follows with market research and a global launch to all customers in the target channel. This streamlined nine month approach saw the Discovery Teams conduct over 50 research 

projects and over 3,000 end user interviews in the U.S., Canada, Australia/New Zealand, Europe  and Asia, identifying opportunities to fill  unmet needs. 

A sharp focus on brand building enhanced end user demand for Stanley® products. Sponsorship and advertising were key global focal points in 2007 in NASCAR, Major League Baseball, print and television media. New product  introductions were supported with targeted advertising. U.S. unaided top of mind brand awareness increased from 35% to 41% (GMI 2007 survey), its highest level in recent history.

This combination of innovation, global expansion  and commercialization, augmented with brand building, has strengthened the brand and end user franchises. We are adding significant value and our customers and end users are rewarding us for it.

The Bostitch pneumatic fastening business continues to seek its optimal cost structure in a down market. With manufacturing capa-bilities in North America, Europe and Asia, the business flexes production to optimize  changing costs. Most recently, this flexibility is enabling Bostitch to reallocate production to North America in response to anti-dumping tariffs levied by the U.S. government on fasteners from China. Innovative new products and optimal sourcing across the globe are keys to positioning this business for profit improvement and preparing it for post-downturn growth.

CONSTRUCTION & DIY        2 0 0 7  H I G H L I G H T S
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In his role as President – Stanley Tools europe, 

Thierry Paternot provided stellar leadership to 

the Facom and Stanley europe teams, resulting 

in a very successful combination of these two 

businesses and delivering outstanding results in 

2006 and 2007. we thank Thierry for his enormous 

contribution to Stanley and we wish him the very 

best in his retirement.

 John f. lundgren

 Chairman & CEO, The Stanley Works John f. lundgren
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new Facom® and Stanley® products and impressive 

cooperation by the teams have led to our recent  

success in europe.  
Massimo grassi

President, Stanley Europe and President Directeur Générale, Facom
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Facom® Combination  
Wrench Set with  
Portable Wrench Clip

Facom® U48 Automatic  
Oil Filter Wrench

Proto® Torque Wrench

Proto® 100th Anniversary Ratchet Set

Facom® Protwist 
Screwdrivers

Stanley® BC06 Battery 
Crimping Tool

System 100  
Storage Cabinet



The 2006 combination of Stanley and Facom Tools set the stage for future global growth in Industrial and Automotive Repair Tools markets. Considerable work followed in 2006 and 2007 to reduce complexity and lower the cost structure in the combined operations across Europe. Innovation and new product introductions in the Facom Tools business, a number of which are shown on the opposite page, and growth permeated the European industrial tools business. In its second full year in the portfolio, Facom Tools contributed meaning-fully to margin expansion and cash generation improvement realized in this segment.

2007 was the 100th anniversary of Proto Tools and the team delivered an outstanding year. A renewed focus was placed on delivery fi ll rates; this key measurement improved consistently and we are continuing to focus on building customer service excellence. Sales grew 13% while margins expanded on the strength of the higher volumes and the simultaneous pursuit of a lean culture. The business completed 15 Kaizen workout activities, streamlined its pro-cesses and managed its supply chain closely. Proto Tools improved its capabilities consider-ably in 2007 and is ideally positioned for fu-ture growth.

In the emerging markets revenues reached $60 million and have been increasing 25%+ 

annually. Over 500 independently owned Stanley storefronts in China and 120 distributors in India are serving end user professionals in large and growing automotive repair markets there. Future growth in these markets will be assured by the right combination of widespread distribution and Facom®, Stanley®, Proto® and Mac® products tailored to local needs. The Industrial and Automotive Tools businesses are leading the way as Stanley grows in the emerging markets.

The Hydraulics Tools business delivered a strong 2007 in part due to a robust new product introduction process that successfully brought the remote controlled underwater cutting capa-bility of the OSG shear and the self-lubricating feature of the Saber-lube shear to market. These value propositions add considerable effi ciency and safety to the hydraulic product offering. 
With margins and returns well above company average, Vidmar engineered storage warrants investment. This began with the 2007 acquisi-tion of InnerSpace Corp., adding health care to the markets served with modular, high end commercial storage and retrieval equipment, in addition to industrial and military markets already served. 9% organic and 29% total sales growth were achieved in 2007, enhanced by Kaizen cost out initiatives and new product introductions. Of particular signifi cance was delivery of the fi rst Innerspace® System 100 product, bringing proprietary RFID-based storage and retrieval to hospitals. Further investment in this business is likely in 2008 and beyond.

INDUSTRIAL        2 0 0 7  H I G H L I G H T S
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a full array of integration solutions combined with world-class 

monitoring positions Stanley Convergent Security to deliver  

superior value and services to our customers. 

Brett Bontrager President, Convergent Security Solutions
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           using our direct model, over 5,000  

Mechanical access associates deliver  

world-class products and services to our  

customers every day.

Justin Boswell, President, Mechanical Access Solutions
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OSI™ Wireless  
Access Controller

OSI™ Omnilock® 
Cylindrical System

WanderGuard® Departure Alert System

Stanley® 7600 Series 
ICU Door System

Phi™ Low Energy Operator

OSI™ Portal Gateway



The Stanley Works’ vision – to become a global leader in commercial security – was advanced considerably again in 2007, as Stanley Security Solutions sales climbed to $1.4 billion, nearly one-third of consolidated sales, from approximately $300 million, or less than 15% of consolidated sales, in 2002. Segment profi t of 15%-17% in each of the years 2005, 2006 and 2007 is indicative of performance above company average levels.
The signifi cant events in the Security segment in 2007 were acquisitions and the establishment of two businesses – Mechanical Access Solutions (“MAS”) and Convergent Security Solutions (“CSS”) – within the segment. The company made the following security acquisitions in 2007:

 •  HSM Electronic Protection Services Inc. provides security monitoring services and equipment to commercial customers in the health care, retail, education and fi nancial markets in North America. (CSS)
 •  Bed-Check Corporation, a technological leader in the fi eld of non-restrictive patient fall-monitoring systems, expands the reach of Stanley’s existing Senior Technologies personal security business. (MAS)

 •  OSI Security Devices Inc. supplies stand-alone electro-mechanical locks; this adds industry-leading wireless technology-based locking capabilities to the existing Stanley product and service offering. (MAS)
 •  Automatic Entrances, Inc., sells, installs and services automatic door products in Indiana, a key market. (MAS)
 •  Automated Entrance Products Inc. sup-plies power-operated doors for commercial, retail and healthcare facilities in the upper Midwest of the U.S. (MAS)

These important additions added approximately $240 million of CSS revenues and $10 million of MAS revenues. Successful integrations of these and previously-acquired companies enabled the businesses to serve customers effectively with broader product and service offerings.
Clearly HSM was the most signifi cant addition to the portfolio, as its combination with Stanley Security integration (fi rst in the U.S. and later in Canada and the U.K.) leverages the best aspects of both businesses. This positions Stanley CSS as the #1 commercial security systems integrator in North America and the #2 commercial security monitoring company. The integration of these two entities has progressed rapidly and CSS enters 2008 in a position to seize growth opportunities.

The separation of MAS and CSS into separate business units, each with dedicated leadership teams, brought a needed focus to the MAS busi-ness. With an impressive array of new products and a large installed base of equipment at large national accounts, the business overcame the loss of Hardware sales to a large retail customer and delivered growth in the automatic doors, commercial locking systems and commercial hardware portions of the business.

SECURITY SOLUTIONS        2 0 0 7  H I G H L I G H T S

Sargent & Greenleaf, a Stanley company since 2004 and a world leader in medium and high security locks and locking systems for safes and vaults, celebrated its 150th anniversary in 2007.
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asia continues to be a rapidly expanding market  
for our Industrial and Security products; we are  
investing to capture that growth.  

Jeff chen President, Asia
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A key element of the Stanley Fulfillment System is the reinventing 

of the company’s supply management capabilities. 

With an ever-growing purchase base, impressive global capabilities 

and new information systems, the procurement team is focused 

on optimizing cost, delivery and quality. In a “sellers” market 

accompanied by substantial inflationary pressures, supply manage-

ment must achieve productivity through a total cost focus, striving 

to manage warranty, transportation and sourced product costs.

To accomplish these objectives, Stanley employs a new breed of 

supply management professionals who think globally and execute 

with a passion for the total cost equation. Soon new supply manage-

ment offices in Mexico and Vietnam will add to the company’s 

global sourcing network.

In order to identify and qualify the best suppliers globally we utilize 

a disciplined, rigorous sourcing process. Cross functional teams 

integrate a corporate-led centralized supply management group 

that executes on requirements as defined and measured by the 

various Stanley business units. Lastly, we avail ourselves of all the  

benefits of maximum purchasing leverage and subject matter expertise 

while ensuring businesses’ local needs are fulfilled.
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Stan St. John, Vice President – Operations for Mechanical Access Solutions and Curtiss Quirin, 

Director of Manufacturing at the business’ Indianapolis manufacturing plant are shown  

here in that plant reviewing results of a recent Kaizen workout event.During 2007, Curtiss’ operations team completed nine strategic value stream mapping  

(VSM) exercises, removed 40 pieces of equipment from the facility and held 35 Kaizen  

events. The results were outstanding, placing this plant in the top echelon of Stanley  

facilities in a number of critical measurements: inventory levels in the plant decreased  
by 29%, the number of days’ supply of inventory on hand declined 21%, delivery lead-times 

improved by 37%, quality defects per million (DPM) improved by 31% and plant 
labor efficiency improved by 19%. Finally, through the use of these lean efforts, 
the operations team freed up 7,100 sq. ft. of space. The Indianapolis plant  
is a safe place to work and is successfully delivering top quality products  
at optimal costs to its customers.
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Terry Christensen, Plant Manager of the New Britain,  

CT hand tools plant and Steve Stafstrom, Vice President 

Operations, Consumer Tools and Storage are viewing the tape 

rule output from a new Fat Trak assembly machine. The multi-million 

dollar flexible assembly system produces the innovative line of FatMax® 

Xtreme™ tape rule products. This new machine can make any one of the 15 core 

products with minimal changeover and is designed to allow the plant to match daily output  

to a growing customer demand. The New Britain plant produces a complete line of high end tape 

rule products, utility knife blades and nail sets. The plant remains competitive in the global envi-

ronment by balancing investment in automation with a lean manufacturing culture. The team in 

this plant has embraced lean methods for the past 8 years and annually conducts 45 to 50 Kaizen 

workout sessions. The use of lean manufacturing techniques has enabled the plant to increase its 

inventory turns by 25% in the year 2007 alone.
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The STanley FulFIllMenT SySTeM (SFS)

The	 Stanley	 Fulfillment	 System	 has	 been	 a	 fundamental	 part	 of	 how	we	 do	 business	 for	
years, bringing the highest levels of service, quality and value to our customers. During 2007, 
we	took	a	number	of	important	steps	to	enhance	SFS	and	the	impact	that	it	is	having	as	a	
transformative force to dramatically improve the performance of our company. 

	 •			Goal	Deployment	Process	–	We	have	adopted	and	fully	internalized	Goal	Deployment	as	
part	of	the	SFS	planning	and	execution	methodology	across	our	company.	GDP	insures	
that we set the bar high and that we have alignment, accountability and cross functional 
integration to achieve our aggressive goals.  Since adopting gDP as an operating principle 
over a year ago, we have seen a dramatic increase in focus, speed and operating results 
particularly in the area of working capital. During 2007, we realized working capital 
improvements that exceeded the sum total of what was achieved in the previous four 
years combined. We fully expect even more significant improvements in the coming years.

	 •			Centers	 of	 Excellence	 –	 Stanley	 has	 been	 uniquely	 successful	 developing	 deep	 levels	 of	
expertise in a wide number of critically important and innovative areas. Our COe concept 
enables the rapid adoption of leading edge ideas and best practices across our organization. 
During 2007, new Centers were added focusing on complexity management and sales and 
operations planning. These centers give us the opportunity to drive rapid change by 
leveraging exceptional talent and know how across our company. 

	 •			Transactional	Process	Improvement	–	We	are	successfully	employing	many	of	the	foundational	
lean tools to transform our back office and professional processes, reducing waste and 
cycle	 times	while	 improving	efficiency.	Furthermore,	 lean	has	become	 the	 language	of	
Stanley, a common set of tools, processes and practices universally used and understood 
across the company that is especially powerful when combined with information technology. 

During 2007, we made considerable progress implementing technology both inside and outside 
Stanley. Internally, our platform upgrade initiatives are moving forward quickly and successfully 
according to our long range information technology strategy. externally, we’ve achieved significant 
successes using IT to improve integration and collaboration with our supply chain partners and 
customers.	This	will	accelerate	even	further	during	2008	and	beyond.	
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summary of selected financial information

(millions of dollars, except per share amounts)  2007  2006  2005  2004  2003

continuing operations     
net sales $ 4,484 $ 4,019 $ 3,285 $ 2,997 $ 2,485
net earnings $ 337 $ 291 $ 272 $ 237 $ 88
Basic earnings per share     
 Continuing operations $ 4.09 $ 3.55 $ 3.26 $ 2.89 $ 1.05
 Discontinued operations  – $ (0.01) $ (0.03) $ 1.58 $ 0.24

total basic earnings per share $ 4.09 $ 3.54 $ 3.23 $ 4.47 $ 1.28

diluted earnings per share     
 Continuing operations $ 4.00 $ 3.47 $ 3.18 $ 2.81 $ 1.04
 Discontinued operations  – $ (0.01) $ (0.02) $ 1.54 $ 0.23

total diluted earnings per share $ 4.00 $ 3.46 $ 3.16 $ 4.36 $ 1.27

Percent of net sales     
 Cost of sales  62.3%  63.7%  64.0%  63.2%  65.8%
 Selling, general and administrative  23.6%  23.8%  22.4%  23.1%  24.7%
 Interest, net  1.8%  1.6%  1.0%  1.1%  1.1%
 other, net  2.0%  1.4%  1.5%  1.5%  1.6%
 earnings before income taxes  10.1%  9.1%  10.9%  10.8%  4.8%

net earnings  7.5%  7.2%  8.3%  7.9%  3.5%

Balance sheet data     
 total assets* $ 4,780 $ 3,935 $ 3,545 $ 2,851 $ 2,424
 long-term debt $ 1,212 $ 679 $ 895 $ 482 $ 514
 Shareowners’ equity** $ 1,729 $ 1,552 $ 1,445 $ 1,237 $ 885

ratios     
 Current ratio  1.4  1.3  2.1  1.7  1.6
 total debt to total capital  46.5%  39.2%  42.4%  32.1%  43.2%
 Income tax rate –  
  continuing operations  25.4%  20.8%  24.1%  26.9%  25.5%
 return on average equity –  
  continuing operations  20.5%  19.4%  20.3%  22.3%  9.3%
common stock data     
 Dividends per share $ 1.22 $ 1.18 $ 1.14 $ 1.08 $ 1.03
 equity per share at year-end $ 21.50 $ 18.96 $ 17.24 $ 15.01 $ 10.88
 Market price per share – high $ 64.25 $ 54.59 $ 51.75 $ 49.33 $ 38.03
 Market price per share – low $ 47.01 $ 41.60 $ 41.51 $ 36.42 $ 20.84
average shares outstanding (in 000’s)     
 Basic  82,313  81,866  83,347  82,058  84,143
 Diluted  84,046  83,704  85,406  84,244  84,839
other information     
average number of employees  18,148  17,484  14,332  13,448  12,330
Shareowners of record at end of year  12,482  12,755  13,137  13,238  13,915

*  Item includes discontinued operations in 2005, 2004 and 2003.
**  Shareowners’ equity was reduced by $14 million in fiscal 2007 for the adoption of FIn 48, “accounting for uncertainty in Income taxes – an Interpretation of SFaS no. 

109”. Shareowners’ equity as of December 30, 2006 decreased $61 million from the adoption of SFaS 158, “employers’ accounting for Defined Benefit pension and other 
postretirement plans – an amendment of FaSB Statements no. 87, 88, 106 and 132(r)”. refer to note a Significant accounting policies and note M employee Benefit 
plans of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 for further information.
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Set forth below is a line graph comparing the yearly percentage change in the Company’s cumulative total shareholder return for the last 
five years to that of the Standard & poor’s 500 Stock Index (an index made up of 500 companies including the Stanley works) and the 
peer Group. the peer Group is a group of 9 companies, that serve the same markets the Company serves and many of which compete 
with one or more of the Company’s product lines. total return assumes reinvestment of dividends.

the stanley Works comParison of 5 year cumulative total return

the points in the above table are as follows:

   2002  2003  2004  2005  2006  2007

stanley $ 100.00 $ 113.43 $ 150.35 $ 151.15 $ 162.08 $ 159.50
S&p 500 $ 100.00 $ 128.69 $ 142.69 $ 149.69 $ 173.34 $ 182.85
peer Group $ 100.00 $ 129.75 $ 164.96 $ 165.92 $ 192.92 $ 202.38

assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2002 in the Company’s common stock, S&p 500 Index, and the peer Group. the peer Group con-
sists of the following 9 companies: the Black & Decker Corporation, Cooper Industries, Inc., Danaher Corporation, Illinois tool works Inc., 
Ingersoll-rand Company, Masco Corporation, newell rubbermaid, Inc., Snap-on Incorporated and the Sherwin-williams Company.

comParison of 5 year cumulative total return 
amonG the stanley Works, s&P 500 stock indeX 
and Peer GrouP
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manaGement’s discussion and analysis of financial 
condition and results of oPerations

the financial and business analysis below provides information which the 
Company believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of its 
consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows. this 
financial and business analysis should be read in conjunction with the con-
solidated financial statements and related notes.

the following discussion and certain other sections of this annual report 
on Form 10-k contain statements reflecting the Company’s views about its 
future performance that constitute “forward-looking statements” under 
the private Securities litigation reform act of 1995. these forward-looking 
statements are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts and 
projections about the industry and markets in which the Company operates 
and management’s beliefs and assumptions. any statements contained 
herein (including without limitation statements to the effect that the 
Stanley works or its management “believes”, “expects”, “anticipates”, 
“plans” and similar expressions) that are not statements of historical fact 
should be considered forward-looking statements. these statements are 
not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks, uncertain-
ties and assumptions that are difficult to predict. there are a number of 
important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from 
those indicated by such forward-looking statements. these factors include, 
without limitation, those set forth, or incorporated by reference, herein 
under the heading “Cautionary Statements”. the Company does not intend 
to update publicly any forward-looking statements whether as a result of 
new information, future events or otherwise.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

the Company is a diversified worldwide supplier of tools and engineered 
solutions for professional, industrial, construction, and do-it-yourself 
(“DIy”) use, as well as engineered solutions and security solutions for 
industrial and commercial applications. Its operations are classified into 
three business segments: Construction & DIy (“CDIy”), Industrial and 
Security. the CDIy segment manufactures and markets hand tools, storage 
systems, fasteners, and electronic leveling and measuring tools, as these 
products are principally utilized in construction and do-it-yourself projects. 
these products are sold primarily to professional end users and distrib-
uted through retailers (including home centers, mass merchants, hardware 
stores, and retail lumber yards). the Industrial segment manufactures and 
markets: professional mechanics and storage systems, plumbing, heating, 
air conditioning and roofing tools, assembly tools and systems, hydraulic 

tools and specialty tools (Stanley supply and services). these products 
are sold to industrial customers and distributed primarily through third 
party distributors as well as direct sales forces. the Security segment is a 
provider of access and security solutions primarily for retailers, educational, 
financial and healthcare institutions, as well as commercial, governmental 
and industrial customers. the Company provides an extensive suite of 
mechanical and electronic security integration systems, software, related 
installation, maintenance, and a variety of security services including secu-
rity monitoring services, electronic integration systems, software, related 
installation and maintenance services, automatic doors, door closers, exit 
devices, hardware and locking mechanisms.

For several years, the Company has pursued a diversification strategy 
to enable profitable growth. the strategy involves industry, geographic 
and customer diversification, as exemplified by the expansion of security 
solution product offerings, the growing proportion of sales outside the 
u.S., and the deliberate reduction of the Company’s dependence on sales 
to u.S. home centers and mass merchants. execution of this strategy has 
entailed approximately $2.2 billion of acquisitions since the beginning of 
2002, several divestitures, and increased brand investments. additionally, 
the strategy reflects management’s vision to build a growth platform in 
security while expanding the valuable branded tools platform. over the 
past several years, the Company has generated strong free cash flow and 
received substantial proceeds from divestitures that enabled a transforma-
tion of the business portfolio. 

Free cash flow, as defined in the following table, was $457 million in 2007, 
$359 million in 2006, and $294 million in 2005, considerably exceeding net 
earnings. Management considers free cash flow an important indicator of its 
liquidity, as well as its ability to fund future growth and provide a dividend to 
shareowners. Free cash flow does not include deductions for mandatory debt 
service, other borrowing activity, discretionary dividends on the Company’s 
common stock and business acquisitions, among other items.

(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

net cash provided by  
 operating activities $ 544 $ 439 $ 362
less: capital expenditures  (66)  (60)  (53)
less: capitalized software  (21)  (20)  (15)

Free cash flow $ 457 $ 359 $ 294
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the Company strives to reinvest its free cash flow in high return busi-
nesses in order to generate strong return on assets and improve working 
capital efficiency. 

Significant areas of tactical emphasis related to execution of the Company’s 
diversification strategy, as well as events impacting the Company’s finan-
cial performance in 2007 and 2006, are discussed below.

Continued Growth of SeCurity BuSineSS

During 2007, the Company further advanced its strategy of becoming a 
global market leader in the commercial security industry. annual revenues 
of the Security segment have grown to $1.433 billion, or 32% of 2007 sales, 
up from $216 million, or 10% of 2001 sales. key events pertaining to the 
growth of this segment in the past year include the following:

>   hSM electronic protection Services, Inc. (“hSM”) was acquired in 
January 2007 for $546 million in cash. hSM, based near Chicago, Illinois, 
provides security alarm monitoring services and access control systems 
to commercial customers via a central monitoring hub station and a 
network of branch locations across the u.S. hSM combines world-class 
service and installation capabilities with a broad customer base. It is the 
fourth largest electronic security company and second largest commer-
cial monitoring company in north america. the acquisition is enabling 
more efficient utilization of our extensive network of field technicians 
thus enhancing overall profitability, as the Company is in the process 
of a reverse integration of the pre-existing electronic security business 
into hSM. the addition of monitoring enables longer-term customer 
relationships involving value-added services and recurring revenues, 
which aids the repositioning of electronic security as a higher profit and 
higher growth business for Stanley. hSM contributed approximately $220 
million in sales and 4 cents of diluted earnings per share in 2007; the 
relatively low contribution to net earnings reflects $36 million of non-cash 
intangible asset amortization, primarily for acquired monitoring service 
contracts, as well as interest expense on borrowings necessary to fund 
the acquisition. 

>   upon the January 16, 2007 acquisition of hSM, the Company realigned 
to report three new segments effective in the first quarter of 2007: 
CDIy, Industrial and Security. these new segments more clearly convey 
the Company’s growth strategies and reflect management’s view of 
its businesses with the inclusion of hSM. also, the Company is now 
presenting segment results before corporate overhead expenses, which 
are not allocated to the segments.

>   In June 2007 Bed-Check Corporation (“Bed-Check”) was acquired for 
$20 million in cash. Bed-Check is a leading u.S.-based manufacturer 
of non-restrictive patient fall-monitoring systems used by caregivers in 
hospitals and other facilities. It increases the scale and expands the dis-
tribution channels of the Company’s existing personal security business. 
a wireless key-lock manufacturer and various other small but strategic 
acquisitions in the Security segment were completed throughout 2007 
for $21 million in cash.

the above acquisitions complement the existing Security segment product 
offerings, increase its scale and strengthen the value proposition offered 
to customers as industry dynamics favor multi-solution providers that offer 
“one-stop shopping”. the Company continues to focus on integrating the 
acquired businesses as it expands the suite of its security product and 
service offerings. Various process improvement initiatives were initi-
ated including integration of overlapping field service organizations and 
implementation of certain common back office systems. these integration 
efforts will continue in 2008, particularly the reverse integration of the 
legacy electronic security business into hSM.

drive further ProfitaBle Growth in 
Branded toolS and StoraGe

while diversifying the business portfolio through expansion into Security is 
important, management also recognizes that the branded construction and 
do-it-yourself products and industrial businesses are the foundations on 
which the Company was established and provide strong growth and cash 
flow generation prospects. Management is committed to growing these 
strong and profitable businesses through innovative product development, 
brand support and relentless focus on global cost competitiveness to foster 
vitality over the long term. acquisition-related growth will also be pursued 
where appropriate. the following matters affected the branded tool and 
storage businesses:

>   the Company has focused on innovation in order to enhance its product 
development pipeline and reduce commercialization cycle time. In 2007, 
new product roll-outs included over 250 hand tool and storage products. 
In 2006, the largest new hand tools product introduction in the Company’s 
history was successfully launched. the FatMax® Xtreme™ product line 
commenced shipping at the end of March 2006 and was supplemented 
by a second phase roll-out initiated in September 2006, which included 
the initial launch of FatMax® Xl™ products in european markets. 
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>  In July 2007, the Company acquired Innerspace products Corporation 
(“Innerspace”), which has a strong presence in the growing healthcare 
storage market and offers made-to-order storage solutions for medical 
facilities across the u.S. Innerspace provides a strong strategic fit for 
the Company’s existing Vidmar storage business and reported 2006 
sales of $22 million.

>   In January 2006, the Company completed the acquisition of Facom S.a. 
(“Facom”) for 407 million euros ($480 million) which was financed with a 
combination of cash on hand and debt issuance. Facom, based in France, 
is a leading european manufacturer of hand and mechanics tools with 
annual revenues approximating $475 million. Facom designs, manufac-
tures and markets the majority of its tool product offerings to professional 
automotive and industrial end users with its well-known industrial tool 
brands: Facom®, Virax® and uSaG®. Facom operates primarily within 
the premium industrial and automotive tools sector in europe, while the 
Company’s pre-existing european customer base is focused mainly on the 
construction and DIy channels. as a result, the two businesses comple-
ment each other and benefit from joint efforts in areas such as product 
sourcing and procurement. Facom is profitable and has experienced a 
long history of success in professional markets in europe, especially in 
France and Italy. nonetheless, many of its products are subject to com-
petitive forces that required a significant reformation of its cost structure 
and that of existing Stanley europe. this reformation has enhanced the 
long-term competitiveness and should help to preserve the Facom and 
Stanley tool franchises in europe. the restructuring program reduced 
costs by rationalizing manufacturing, logistics, sales and support organi-
zations. It has resulted in the closure of six facilities and the severance of 
approximately 450 people since commencing in the latter part of 2006. 
while the actions were completed during 2006 and 2007, $18 million in 
cash payments will continue into 2008. 

>  In July 2006, the Company acquired approximately 67% of the outstand-
ing shares of Besco pneumatic Corporation (“Besco”), a leading asian 
manufacturer of pneumatic tools for $38 million in cash. each year until 
2011, the Company will have the option to increase its ownership by up 
to 15% to an ultimate ownership of 82%. Besco, which is headquartered 
in taiwan, possesses state-of-the-art research and development capabili-
ties and efficient production facilities. Besco was historically a supplier to 
Stanley fastening systems as well as third parties. the acquisition was a 
key step in reducing the fastening systems business’ cost structure.

Continue to inveSt in the Stanley Brand

the Stanley® brand is recognized as one of the world’s great brands and is 
one of the Company’s most valuable assets. Brand support was increased 
over the past several years, including television advertising campaigns 
associated with new product roll-outs, continued naSCar racing spon-
sorships as well as more print and web-based advertising that generated 
approximately one billion brand impressions annually. these advertising 
and marketing campaigns yielded strong results as evidenced by various 
hand tools metrics during 2007: web traffic increase of 20%; sales lead 
increase of 30%; and brand awareness increase of 34% versus 2006.

inStitutionalize the Stanley  
fulfillment SyStem

the Company continued to practice the operating disciplines encompassed 
by the Stanley Fulfillment System (“SFS”), which is a continuous operation-
al improvement process committed to increasing customer and shareowner 
value. the SFS core disciplines consist of striving for perfect quality, service 
excellence, optimal cost, and environmental health & safety. the Company 
applies SFS to many aspects of its business including procurement, maxi-
mizing customer fill rates, and acquisition integration. the SFS program 
helped to mitigate the impact of material and energy price inflation that 
was experienced in recent years. SFS was instrumental in the reduction 
of inventories during 2007 and the related improvement in working capital 
turnover. In 2008 and beyond, the Company plans to further leverage SFS 
to achieve higher working capital turns, decreased cycle times, reduced 
complexity in operations and increased customer satisfaction.

aside from the strategic commentary above, four other matters having 
a significant impact on the Company’s results were inflation, currency 
exchange rate fluctuations, share repurchases and stock option expensing.

the Company has been negatively impacted by inflation, primarily commod-
ity and freight, which has increased costs by an estimated $165 million over 
the past three years. During this period, approximately two-thirds of the 
cost increase was recovered through pricing actions, and the remainder was 
largely offset through various cost reduction initiatives. the Company expects 
the negative impact of inflation affecting production and distribution costs 
during 2008 will be in the range of $75 – $80 million, inclusive of new tariffs 
on fasteners imported from asia. Management plans to recover the majority 
of this impact through customer pricing, and offset the remainder through 
plant productivity actions. 
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In recent years, the strengthening of foreign currencies had a favorable 
impact on the translation of foreign currency-denominated operating results 
into u.S. dollars. the favorable impact of foreign currency translation, 
including acquired companies, contributed an estimated $.19, $.05 and $.04 
of diluted earnings per share from continuing operations in 2007, 2006 and 
2005, respectively. Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates relative 
to the u.S. dollar may have a significant impact, either positive or negative, 
on future earnings.

During 2007 and 2006, the Company executed share repurchases of 3.6 
million and 4.0 million outstanding shares of its common stock, respec-
tively, for $200 million in each year. the stock repurchases were accretive 
to diluted earnings per share by 6 cents in 2007 and 13 cents in 2006. the 
2007 stock buy-backs occurred later in the year than the related 2006 
activity; accordingly, the benefit of the 2007 repurchase activity will not 
be fully reflected in weighted average shares outstanding used to compute 
earnings per share until 2008. the share repurchase benefit was partially 
offset by the issuance of 4.4 million shares of common stock under vari-
ous employee plans over the two year period, and also by higher interest 
expense associated with short-term borrowings made to finance the share 
repurchases. In January 2008 the Company repurchased an additional 2.2 
million of shares.

In 2006, the Company adopted Financial accounting Standards Board 
Statement no. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based payment” (“SFaS 123r”), 
which requires all share-based payments, including grants of employee 
stock options, to be recognized as an expense in the Consolidated 
Statement of operations based on their fair values as they are earned by 
the employees under the vesting terms. pursuant to the adoption of SFaS 
123r, the Company recognized $9 million of non-cash, pre-tax stock option 
compensation expense in both 2007 and 2006, which reduced diluted earn-
ings per share by 7 cents in each year compared to 2005. refer to note a 
Significant accounting policies of the notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for further discussion of the adoption of SFaS 123r.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Below is a summary of the Company’s operating results at the consolidated 
level, followed by an overview of business segment performance. the terms 
“organic” and “core” are utilized to describe results aside from the impact of 
acquisitions during their initial 12 months of ownership. this ensures appro-
priate comparability to operating results of prior periods.

net sales   net sales from continuing operations were $4.484 billion in 
2007, as compared to $4.019 billion in 2006, a 12% increase. acquisitions, 
principally hSM, contributed 7% in higher sales. organic volume and pric-
ing both increased 1%, while favorable foreign currency translation in all 
regions increased sales 3% versus the prior year. Strong performance in the 
Industrial segment, particularly by the hydraulic and mechanics tools busi-
nesses, was supplemented by more modest gains in the CDIy and Security 
segments. CDIy achieved robust growth internationally that was partially 
offset by weakness in the u.S. associated with housing market declines. 
In the Security segment, solid gains by the automatic door and mechanical 
lock businesses, as well as overall pricing actions, more than compensated 
for lower sales in the legacy electronic security integration business as it 
shed unprofitable equipment installations.

net sales from continuing operations were $4.019 billion in 2006, as com-
pared to $3.285 billion in 2005, a 22% increase. acquisitions contributed 
21% or $689 million of the sales increase. organic sales increased 1% 
driven by a slight increase in volume and relatively consistent pricing 
levels and foreign currency impact compared to the prior year. the organic 
increase was generated by share gains achieved in the consumer hand 
tools and automatic doors businesses offset by price and volume declines 
experienced in the fastening systems business. Favorable foreign currency 
translation in the americas and europe was partially offset by a negative 
impact from asia.

Gross Profit   the Company reported gross profit from continuing oper-
ations of $1.692 billion, or 38% of net sales, in 2007, compared to $1.459 
billion, or 36% of net sales, in 2006. the acquired businesses increased 
gross profit by $136 million. Core gross profit for 2007 was $1.557 billion, or 
37% of net sales, up $98 million from the prior year. the core gross margin 
rate expanded on strong performances from certain Industrial segment 
businesses, primarily Facom and mechanics tools, as well as the absence 
of $22 million of inventory step-up amortization from the initial turnover of 
acquired inventory in 2006. this was partially offset by a decline in the CDIy 
segment gross margin rate mainly from un-recovered cost inflation. In addi-
tion, the legacy security integration business had lower margins on certain 
equipment installations. price and productivity actions in 2007 more than 
offset $67 million of material, energy and wage cost inflation. the Company 
expects such inflation to increase 2008 costs by $75 – $80 million, which 
management plans to mitigate through various customer pricing actions and 
continued cost reduction and productivity initiatives.
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the Company reported gross profit from continuing operations of $1.459 
billion in 2006, or 36% of net sales, compared to $1.181 billion, or 36% of 
net sales, in 2005. the acquired businesses increased gross profit by $265 
million. Included in the 2006 gross profit is the unfavorable impact of $22 
million in non-cash inventory step-up charges related to the initial turnover 
of acquired inventory. Gross profit for 2006 was 37% of net sales excluding 
this non-recurring item, primarily due to the positive impact of the Facom 
acquisition. Core gross profit as a percentage of net sales was 36% in 2006, 
which was consistent with the prior year. the benefits of prior cost reduction 
actions, productivity improvements from the Stanley Fulfillment System, and 
pricing actions offset continued margin pressure from commodity and other 
inflation which resulted in approximately $48 million of additional costs, and 
a decline in fastening systems. the fastening systems gross profit decline 
reflected lower sales volumes, a result of weakening housing markets, and 
price erosion, as well as a commitment to shed unprofitable business; gross 
profit in this business was further impacted by commodity cost inflation. 
Management launched an extensive cost reduction initiative in 2006 with the 
objective to return fastening systems to acceptable profitability levels.

sG&a eXPenses   Selling, general and administrative expenses were 
$1,058 million, or 24% of net sales, in 2007 consistent with the 24% of sales 
represented by $955 million of expense in 2006. acquired companies con-
tributed $70 million of the increase, and the remaining $33 million increase 
is largely attributable to foreign currency translation. 

SG&a from continuing operations was $955 million, or 24% of net sales, 
in 2006 compared to $737 million, or 22% of net sales, in the prior year. 
the increase of $218 million primarily relates to acquired businesses that 
increased costs by $192 million, $11 million of increased non-cash stock 
compensation expense associated with the adoption of stock option expens-
ing during 2006, and $11 million of increased brand support. excluding 
acquisitions, SG&a as a percentage of sales increased slightly to 23% of net 
sales compared with 22% in 2005 due to the items described above, partially 
offset by benefits received from prior restructuring actions.

interest and other-net   net interest expense from continuing 
operations in 2007 was $80 million, compared to $65 million in 2006. the 
higher interest expense stems from borrowings necessary to fund the 
January 2007 acquisition of hSM. refer to the Financial Condition section 
for additional discussion of the hSM acquisition financing.

net interest expense from continuing operations in 2006 was $65 million,  
compared to $34 million in 2005. the increase was mainly due to the 
november 2005 issuance of $450 million in junior subordinated debt securities 
to fund acquisitions, and to a lesser extent increased commercial paper 
borrowings resulting primarily from the execution of the $200 million share 
repurchase program in the first half of 2006, along with higher applicable 
short-term interest rates. 

other-net from continuing operations totaled $90 million of expense in 2007 
compared to $57 million of expense in 2006. the increase pertained primarily 
to higher intangible asset amortization expense due to recent acquisitions. 

other-net from continuing operations represented $57 million of expense 
in 2006 compared to $48 million of expense in 2005. the increase was pri-
marily driven by $9 million of higher intangible asset amortization expense 
associated with acquisition activity, a $4 million pension plan curtailment 
charge in the u.k., and a $5 million increase in foreign currency losses, 
partially offset by lower environmental expense and decreased losses on 
the sale of fixed assets.

income taXes   the Company’s effective income tax rate from con-
tinuing operations for 2007 was 25% as compared to 21% for 2006 and 
24% for 2005.

the higher effective tax rate in 2007 versus 2006 mainly relates to benefits 
realized upon resolution of tax audits in 2006 that did not re-occur. the 
lower effective tax rate in 2006 compared to 2005 was driven by the real-
ization of credits against u.S. taxes and the inclusion of the european-based 
Facom acquisition. additionally, substantial costs were incurred in 2005 for 
the repatriation of foreign earnings under the american Jobs Creation act 
and such costs were not incurred in 2006. 

BUSINESS SEgmENT RESULTS 

the Company’s reportable segments are an aggregation of businesses that 
have similar products and services, among other factors. the Company utilizes 
segment profit (which is defined as net sales minus cost of sales, and SG&a 
aside from corporate overhead expense), and segment profit as a percent-
age of net sales to assess the profitability of each segment. Segment profit 
excludes the corporate overhead expense element of SG&a, interest income, 
interest expense, other-net (inclusive of intangible asset amortization expense), 
restructuring and asset impairments, and income tax expense. Corporate 
overhead is comprised of world headquarters facility expense, cost for the 
executive management team and cost for certain centralized functions that 
benefit the entire Company but are not directly attributable to the businesses, 
such as legal and corporate finance functions. refer to note o restructuring 
and asset Impairments and note G Goodwill and other Intangible assets of the 
notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the amount of restructuring 
charges and asset impairments, and intangibles amortization expense, respec-
tively, attributable to each segment. as discussed previously, the Company’s 
operations are classified into three business segments: Construction and Do-It-
yourself (“CDIy”), Industrial, and Security.
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cdiy
(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

net sales from  
 continuing operations $ 1,795 $ 1,724 $ 1,681
Segment profit from  
 continuing operations $ 270 $ 271 $ 269

% of net sales  15.0%  15.7%  16.0%

CDIy net sales from continuing operations increased 4% in 2007 from 2006. 
Foreign currency translation contributed 3% to the higher sales, pricing 1%, 
and organic volume remained flat. the u.S. was adversely impacted by the 
housing market contraction as repair and remodel activity declined along with 
new construction. Sales were very strong in Canada, europe, australia, and 
asia, in particular for the consumer tools and storage business. this positive 
international performance was bolstered by new product introductions includ-
ing the FatMax® Xl™ line, as well as favorable economic conditions outside 
the u.S. Fastening systems also experienced an overall decline in sales due to 
the u.S. housing downturn, although its industrial channel and office product 
sales remained stable. During 2007, the Company took actions to improve the 
fastening systems cost structure including a Mexican plant closure, and the 
first wave of a pneumatic tool production shift to asia, enabled by the 2006 
Besco acquisition. as a result, fastening systems improved its margin rate 
slightly, despite the lower sales volume. the Company is on track to complete 
the migration of a second wave of fastening systems tool production to asia 
during 2008, which should further help return this business to acceptable 
long-term profitability. the segment profit rate decline of 70 basis points 
was mainly attributable to unrecovered cost inflation, a product mix shift to 
lower margin tools along with a channel mix shift in the u.S., and unfavorable 
absorption on inventory reductions. these factors were partially offset by the 
favorable impact of foreign currency translation and the previously mentioned 
improvement in the fastening systems business.

net sales from continuing operations increased 3% in 2006 compared to 
2005. of this increase, acquisitions accounted for 3%, while organic volume 
decreased by 1% and price remained flat. Foreign currency increased sales by 
1%. the consumer hand tools business continued to achieve share gains from 
the strong performance of the new FatMax® Xtreme™ and FatMax® Xl™  prod-
uct lines which launched in the u.S. and european markets, representing the 
largest new hand tools product introduction in the Company’s history. at the 
same time, the FatMax® range of product offerings delivered growth through 
continued premium innovation, distribution point expansion and related brand 
support. this strong favorable performance was more than offset by lower 
volumes in the fastening, consumer storage and mechanics tools businesses. 

Fastening systems organic sales declined 7% compared to the prior year 
stemming from weakness in the u.S. construction market and management’s 
commitment to turn down unprofitable business. Sales in the consumer stor-
age business in 2005 reflected higher volume from the initial launch of garage 
storage products. the 30 basis point decrease in segment profit in 2006 ver-
sus 2005 is primarily due to the sales volume decline and cost inefficiencies 
experienced by the u.S. fastening systems business, increased brand support, 
and commodity cost inflation, partially offset by savings derived from prior 
cost reduction actions and favorable mix in the consumer hand tools business. 
During 2007, progress was made on the two-year plan to restore the fastening 
systems profits to acceptable levels by continuing the migration of production 
to asia, reducing overall SG&a and the manufacturing footprint, as well as 
Sku rationalization. In this regard, the acquisition of asian-based Besco and 
the opening of a new manufacturing facility in China during 2006 strategically 
aided the long-term vitality of fastening systems.

industrial
(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

net sales from  
 continuing operations $ 1,256 $ 1,138 $ 681
Segment profit from  
 continuing operations $ 184 $ 124 $ 81

% of net sales  14.7%  10.9%  11.8%

Industrial segment net sales increased 10% in 2007 from 2006, comprised 
of a 4% volume increase, a 4% favorable foreign currency impact, 1% 
favorable pricing, and 1% from the Innerspace acquisition. hydraulic tools 
and mechanics tools achieved robust sales increases, along with strong 
performance from the Facom and storage businesses. the hydraulic tools 
sales increase is attributable to sustained high demand for recent shear 
product offerings, strong international sales, and favorable steel scrap 
markets. Industrial mechanics tools benefited from strong demand in the 
u.S. oil and gas industry. the higher Facom sales pertain to new product 
introductions and improved european economic conditions. Intensified mar-
keting efforts, including an expanded sales force, contributed to the Vidmar 
storage growth. Segment profit as a percentage of net sales improved 380 
basis points. excluding the effect of the one-time inventory step-up charge 
from the initial turn of Facom acquired inventory in 2006, segment profit 
increased 270 basis points. Customer price increases effectively offset the 
impact of cost inflation, while productivity initiatives further contributed to 
the segment profit rate expansion. additionally, Facom’s contribution to the 
higher segment profit rate reflects favorable currency translation and the 
benefits of acquisition integration actions.
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Industrial’s net sales increased 67% in 2006 compared to 2005, primarily 
due to the Facom acquisition which increased sales by $436 million or 64%. 
Favorable pricing actions contributed 2%, while volume increased sales 
1% with foreign currency remaining flat compared to the prior year. Sales 
growth was delivered by the Mac tools, Facom, hydraulic tools, industrial 
tools and storage businesses. Mac tools benefited in 2006 from improved 
retention of its distributors based on management actions initiated early 
in the year. Industrial tools and storage and the hydraulic tools businesses 
obtained share gains from the success of new product introductions in the 
oil and mining industries as demand for such commodities remained strong 
during 2006. Segment profit as a percentage of net sales decreased by 90 
basis points due to $13 million of non-cash inventory step-up amortization 
associated with the Facom acquisition and supply chain inefficiencies in 
certain businesses pertaining to increased backlog, partially offset by the 
accretive impact of Facom.

security
(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

net sales from  
 continuing operations $ 1,433 $ 1,157 $ 924
Segment profit from  
 continuing operations $ 242 $ 172 $ 149

% of net sales  16.9%  14.8%  16.1%

Security segment sales increased 24% in 2007. hSM and other acquisitions 
contributed 21%, while price and organic volume grew a combined 2%, and 
currency 1%. organic sales gains in automatic doors and mechanical locks 
were achieved on the strength of national and strategic account growth, 
while the hardware business demonstrated resilience in recovering from the 
loss of a key customer. effective pricing actions to recover inflation in raw 
material costs also contributed to sales growth in the segment. Shrinkage 
in the legacy u.S. security integration (“uSSI”) business’ sales and segment 
profit was a necessary by-product of a business model change entailing a 
shift away from low profitability equipment installation to an emphasis on 
higher margin, recurring service revenues. the reverse integration of uSSI 
into hSM, with its superior bidding and project management disciplines, is 
progressing well and management believes it will rebound in later 2008. the 
broader security segment product line is enabling the Company to compete 
more effectively in the architectural bidding process to attain gains in com-
mercial construction markets. the 2007 segment profit rate showed a strong 
expansion of 210 basis points over 2006. this improvement is attributable to 
hSM, the non-recurring inventory step-up amortization for the national hard-
ware acquisition recorded in 2006, the benefits of a partial shift in hardware 
production to asia, and overall pricing and productivity in excess of inflation. 
these positive factors were partially offset by the previously discussed 
decline in the legacy security integration businesses.

During 2006, Security’s sales increased 25%. acquisitions, predominantly 
national, contributed 21%, organic sales volume 2%, pricing 1%, and curren-
cy 1%. the automatic doors business grew its service revenue and achieved 
strong national account share gains driven by the favorable impact of new 
product introductions, new store openings and increased modernization of 
pre-existing stores. the mechanical access businesses also benefited from 
new product introductions and an expanded ability to provide customers with 
virtually all of their varied mechanical product needs. In addition, the Security 
segment as a whole benefited from the growth and continued integration of 
its national service footprint. the 2006 segment profit as a percentage of 
net sales was 130 basis points lower than 2005 as the favorable impact from 
prior cost reduction and integration actions were negated by $8 million of 
non-cash inventory step-up amortization from acquisitions, and the dilutive 
impact of national hardware margins due to its legacy high-cost manufactur-
ing structure which the Company continues to transition to low cost countries. 
the segment operating profit rate was further affected by commodity cost 
inflation and the dilutive impact of other recently acquired companies until 
integration initiatives unfold.

RESTRUCTURINg ACTIVITIES

at December 29, 2007, the restructuring and asset impairment reserve bal-
ance was $23.7 million, which the Company expects to largely utilize by the 
end of 2008. a summary of the restructuring reserve activity from December 
30, 2006 to December 29, 2007 is as follows:

    acquisition net 
(millions of dollars) 12/30/06 accrual additions usage currency 12/29/07

acquisitions      
Severance $ 54.7 $ (0.3) $ – $ (39.4) $ 3.8 $ 18.8
Facility Closure  2.4  1.9  –  (2.8)  0.1  1.6
other  1.5  –  0.3  (0.8)  –  1.0
2007 actions  –  –  11.8  (10.6)  –  1.2
Pre-2007  
 actions  4.5  –  0.7  (4.3)  0.2  1.1

   $ 63.1 $ 1.6 $ 12.8 $ (57.9) $ 4.1 $ 23.7

2007 actions   During 2007, the Company initiated cost reduction initia-
tives in order to maintain its cost competitiveness. Severance charges of 
$11.4 million have been recorded relating to the reduction of approximately 
525 employees. In addition to severance, $0.2 million was recorded for the 
closure of a merged office facility and $0.2 million for asset impairments. 
of these amounts, $10.6 million has been utilized to date, with $1.2 million 
of reserves remaining as of December 29, 2007.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

liquidity, sources and uses of caPital  the Company’s 
primary sources of liquidity are cash flows generated from operations and 
borrowings under various credit facilities.

oPeratinG and investinG activities   the Company has con-
sistently generated strong operating cash flows over many years. In 2007, 
cash flow from operations totaled $544 million, up $105 million compared 
to 2006. the favorable increase principally stems from an expansion of 
cash earnings and improved working capital performance. In this regard, 
the higher non-cash intangibles amortization expense from acquisitions 
reduced earnings but not cash flows. working capital (receivables, inven-
tories and accounts payable) generated $23 million of higher cash inflows 
in 2007 compared with 2006. this working capital improvement reflects 
leaner inventory positions achieved through process improvement efforts, 
while maintaining customer service levels, and was accomplished despite 
lower receivable sale proceeds in 2007 versus 2006. these favorable 
impacts were partially offset by cash outflows for restructuring activities 
which amounted to $58 million in 2007, an increase of $29 million over 
2006, primarily pertaining to payments for the Facom europe initiatives.

In 2006, cash flow from operations was $439 million compared to $362 
million in 2005. the $77 million improvement in 2006 versus 2005 is 
mainly attributable to higher cash earnings on the strength of acquisitions, 
reflecting the removal of increased non-cash expenses in 2006 (particu-
larly inventory step-up amortization associated with acquisitions, intangible 
asset amortization expense and stock-based compensation expense). 
receivables, inventories and accounts payables generated $11 million of 
higher cash inflows in 2006 compared with 2005 due to increased receiv-
able sales. these favorable impacts were partially offset by cash outflows 
for restructuring activities which amounted to $29 million in 2006, an 
increase of $20 million over 2005.

Capital expenditures were $87 million in 2007, $80 million in 2006, and 
$68 million in 2005. the higher capital expenditures in 2007 pertained 
to investments for plant productivity improvements as well as ongoing 
information system spending for a major Sap implementation under way in 
the americas. the increase in 2006 capital expenditures versus 2005 was 
due to upgrades of information systems, the incremental impact of normal 
capital spending incurred by recent acquisitions, and equipment purchases 
related to new product introductions. the Company expects future capital 
expenditures to increase approximately in proportion to its sales growth.

Pre-2007 actions   During 2006 and 2005, the Company initiated 
$18.3 million of cost reduction actions in various businesses, of which $0.7 
million was recorded during 2007, $13.0 million was recorded in 2006 and 
$4.6 million was recorded in 2005. these actions were comprised of the 
severance of approximately 950 employees and the exit of a leased facility. 
of this amount, $18.2 million has been utilized to date, offset slightly by a 
$0.2 million currency impact, leaving $0.3 million of accrual remaining as 
of December 29, 2007. In addition, $0.8 million of reserves remain relating 
to pre-2005 actions.

acquisition related   During 2007, $3.0 million of reserves were 
established for hSM in purchase accounting. of this amount $1.1 million 
was for severance of approximately 55 employees and $1.9 million related 
to the closure of 13 branch facilities. as of December 29, 2007, $0.8 million 
has been utilized, leaving $2.2 million remaining. the Company also utilized 
$1.2 million of restructuring reserves during 2007 established for various 
minor prior year acquisitions. as of December 29, 2007, $1.2 million in 
accruals for these small actions remains.

pursuant to the integration of the January 2006 Facom acquisition, and 
the related reorganization of Facom and Stanley hand tools activities in 
europe, the Company implemented restructuring initiatives. these initiatives 
reduced the cost structure by rationalizing manufacturing, logistics, sales 
and support organizations. this resulted in the severance of approximately 
450 employees, the closure of two legacy Facom factories in France, as 
well as four legacy Facom distribution centers located in the united 
kingdom, Belgium, Germany and Switzerland. of the $60.4 million in total 
expenditures for these initiatives, $59.4 million was recorded to the Facom 
purchase price allocation and $1.0 million as a restructuring charge in 2006. 
as of December 29, 2007, $46.3 million has been utilized, partially offset by 
a $3.9 million currency impact, such that an $18.0 million accrual remains.

In connection with its acquisition of national in late 2005, the Company 
recorded $8.0 million relating to severance costs for approximately 250 
employees and $0.3 million facility closure costs to the purchase price 
allocation. In addition, $0.2 million of facility closure costs were recorded 
as restructuring charges in 2006. as of December 29, 2007, most of this 
accrual has been utilized, with the remaining $1.4 million excess reversed 
as a reduction of Goodwill, such that no accrual remains.
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Free cash flow, as defined in the following table, was $457 million in 2007 
representing a 29% increase over 2006, which in turn was up 23% versus 
2005. Management considers free cash flow an important indicator of its 
liquidity, as well as its ability to fund future growth and provide a dividend 
to shareowners. Free cash flow does not include deductions for manda-
tory debt service, other borrowing activity, discretionary dividends on the 
Company’s common stock and business acquisitions, among other items.

(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

net cash provided by  
 operating activities $ 544 $ 439 $ 362
less: capital expenditures  (66)  (60)  (53)
less: capitalized software  (21)  (20)  (15)

Free cash flow $ 457 $ 359 $ 294

Based on its demonstrated ability to generate cash flow from operations as 
well as its strong balance sheet and credit position at December 29, 2007, 
the Company believes it has the financial flexibility to deploy capital to the 
advantage of its shareholders’ advantage through a combination of acquisi-
tions, dividends, debt repayment, and potential future share repurchases.

In 2007, acquisition spending totaled $643 million, mainly for the hSM, 
Bed-Check and Innerspace businesses. 2006 acquisition spending amount-
ed to $572 million, primarily pertaining to Facom and Besco, and $20 
million of debt repayments associated with the 2004 acquisition of Blick. 
pursuant to its profitable growth strategy, the Company will continue to 
assess its current business portfolio for disposition opportunities and make 
acquisitions in favored markets while minimizing the risk associated with 
large customer concentrations. 

During 2006, the Company entered into a sale-leaseback transaction of its 
corporate headquarters building. under the terms of the transaction, the 
Company received $23 million in cash proceeds, reported in investing cash 
flows, and recorded a deferred gain of $11 million which will be amortized 
over the 15 year operating lease term. the cash proceeds were utilized to 
pay down short-term borrowings.

financinG activities   payments on long-term debt amounted to 
$228 million in 2007, $4 million in 2006, and $72 million in 2005. net pro-
ceeds from short-term borrowings totaled $192 million in 2007, and the cash 
inflows were used to fund acquisitions and repurchases of common stock. 
repayments of short-term borrowings amounted to a cash outflow of $66 
million in 2006 as commercial paper was paid down utilizing a portion of the 
strong operating cash flows. net proceeds from short-term borrowings of 
$103 million in 2005 primarily arose from commercial paper issued to fund 
the 2005 acquisitions aside from national.

there is a $550 million committed long-term credit facility that matures in 
october 2009, which is designated as a liquidity back-stop for the commer-
cial paper program. as of December 29, 2007, there were no outstanding 
loans under this facility and the Company had $279 million of commercial 
paper outstanding. the Company is in negotiations with its credit banks to 
increase this line to $800 million and extend the maturity to February 2013, 
and does not anticipate anything that would inhibit the successful conclu-
sion of that increase and extension. In addition, the Company has uncom-
mitted short-term lines of credit with numerous foreign banks aggregating 
$340 million, of which $322 million was available at December 29, 2007. 
Short-term arrangements are reviewed annually for renewal. aggregate 
credit lines amounted to $890 million. In addition to these lines of credit, 
the Company maintains a committed facility designed for the securitization 
of certain trade accounts receivable for purposes of additional liquidity. as 
of December 29, 2007, the Company’s maximum available funds under this 
arrangement were $66 million, of which $42 million was utilized. 

the Company increased its cash dividend per common share to $1.22 in 
2007. Dividends per common share increased 3.4% in 2007, 3.5% in 2006, 
and 5.5% in 2005.

In 2007, the Company repurchased 3.8 million shares of its common stock 
for $207 million (an average of $54.64 per share), and in 2006 it repur-
chased 4.0 million shares for $202 million (an average of $50.07 per share). 
the Company may decide to repurchase more of its outstanding common 
stock, based on various factors including the level of acquisition activity, the 
market price of the common stock and its current financial condition.

the Company initially funded the $546 million hSM acquisition with a combi-
nation of short-term borrowings and cash. a $500 million 364-day revolving 
credit bridge facility was entered into on January 8, 2007, of which $130.0 
million was utilized to acquire hSM; the remainder of the hSM purchase price 
was funded through commercial paper borrowings and cash.

on March 20, 2007, the Company completed two security offerings: “equity 
units”, which consisted of $330 million of five-year convertible notes and 
$330 million of three-year forward stock purchase contracts; and $200 
million of unsecured three-year fixed-rate term notes. with respect to the 
$860 million in offerings, the Company will not receive the $330 million of 
cash pertaining to the forward stock purchase contracts until May 2010. 
the $488 million net cash proceeds of these offerings and the related 
equity instruments described below were used to pay down the short-term 
bridge facility and commercial paper borrowings. 
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the convertible notes are pledged and held as collateral to guarantee the 
equity unit investors’ obligation to purchase shares in May 2010 under the 
stock purchase contract. the convertible notes reflect a conversion price 
of approximately $64.80, or a 19% premium as of the date of issuance. at 
maturity, the Company must repay the convertible note principal in cash. 
additionally, to the extent that the conversion option is “in the money” the 
Company, at its election, will deliver either cash or shares of common stock 
based on a conversion rate and the applicable market value of the Company’s 
common stock at that time. a maximum of approximately 6.1 million shares 
may be issued in May 2010 under the stock purchase contracts, essentially at 
the higher of approximately $54.45 or market value at that time.

the Company simultaneously entered into related convertible note hedge 
and stock warrant transactions with financial institutions. Share dilution 
pertaining to the conversion option of the convertible notes will occur in 
interim periods if the share price exceeds approximately $64.80. at matu-
rity in 2012, the convertible note hedge will offset the potentially dilutive 
impact of the conversion option aspect of the convertible notes. Because 
the convertible note hedge is anti-dilutive, it will not be included in any 
diluted shares outstanding computation prior to its maturity. however at 
maturity, the aggregate effect of the convertible notes and the convertible 
note hedge is that there will be no net increase in the Company’s common 
shares. the Company also issued 5.1 million of unregistered stock warrants 
that are exercisable during the period august 17, 2012 through September 
28, 2012, with a strike price of $87.12 (subject to standard anti-dilution pro-
tection for increases in the dividend rate, stock splits etc.). In the event the 
stock warrants become “in the money” during their 5 year term, due to the 
market value of the Company’s common stock exceeding the strike price, 
there will be a related increase in diluted shares outstanding utilized in the 
determination of diluted earnings per share.

the combined terms of the convertible note hedge, stock warrants, and 
convertible notes in substance re-establish the conversion option aspect 
of the convertible notes at 60% above the $54.45 market value of the 
Company’s common stock at inception, such that in effect the Company 
will retain the benefits of share price appreciation, if any, up to a market 
value equal to the stock warrant strike price. additionally the Company will 
retain benefits of share price appreciation through the maturity of the stock 
purchase contract element of the equity units that will entail issuance of 
$330 million of common shares at the higher of approximately $54.45 or 
market price in May 2010. refer to note I, long-term Debt and Financing 
arrangements for further details.

under present accounting rules the entire $330 million convertible note 
obligation is reflected in long-term debt on the Company’s balance sheet, 
and the interest expense is being recognized thereon at a variable rate 
of 3-month lIBor minus 3.5% (currently 1.2%) for the first three years, 
with the interest rate to be reset upon remarketing of the notes for the 

final two years they are outstanding. Such interest expense recognizable 
under current accounting rules will equal the cash interest payments to be 
made. an exposure draft issued by the FaSB in august 2007, FSp apB 14-a 
“Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash 
upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)”, if issued in its current 
form, would require a portion (approximately $60 million) of the convertible 
notes to be reclassified to equity and accreted to interest expense over 
the five year term of the convertible notes. accordingly, interest expense 
would be reported at the Company’s non-convertible borrowing rate at the 
time of issuance, an annual rate of approximately 3-month lIBor plus 0.2% 
(currently 4.9%), which would result in the recognition of $12 – $13 million 
of additional annual non-cash interest expense, an impact of approximately 
10 cents per diluted share per year. FaSB is re-deliberating the exposure 
draft proposing this change to report non-cash interest expense and it is 
expected that any such change to the accounting for the convertible notes 
would not occur until at least fiscal 2009.

In november 2005, the Company consummated a Section 144a offering, with 
registration rights, of $450 million of enhanced trust preferred Securities 
(“etpS”) through its unconsolidated trust subsidiary, the Stanley works 
Capital trust I (the “trust”). Contemporaneously, the Company borrowed the 
proceeds of the etpS offering from the trust by issuing $450 million of junior 
subordinated debt securities payable to the trust. the net proceeds were 
used to partially fund the acquisitions of national and Facom which closed on 
november 30, 2005 and January 1, 2006, respectively. these securities and 
underlying junior subordinated debt securities (collectively, the “securities”) 
feature a 5 year fixed rate period ending December 1, 2010 and a floating rate 
period ending December 1, 2045. the fixed coupon was set at 5.902%. the 
obligations, tenor and terms of the etpS mirror those of the junior subordi-
nated debt securities. the securities can be redeemed by the Company on or 
after December 1, 2010 without penalty for early payment.

deBt to caPital ratio   the Company’s debt to capital ratio was 
47% at the end of 2007, 39% at the end of 2006, and 42% at the end of 
2005. reflecting the credit protection measures that are incorporated into 
the terms of the $450 million etpS issued in late 2005, and the equity 
characteristics of the 2007 issuance of $330 million equity units, the debt 
to capital ratio of the Company is more fairly represented by apportioning 
equity credit to the etpS and equity units issuances when making the 
calculation. the resulting debt to capital ratio from this apportionment is 
32% – 35% as of December 29, 2007. this adjustment is consistent with 
the treatment accorded these securities by the nationally recognized sta-
tistical ratings organizations that rate the Company’s debt securities and 
accordingly the equity-content-adjusted debt to capital ratio is considered 
a relevant measure of its financial condition.
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the following table reconciles the December 2007 debt to capital ratio com-
puted with reported debt and equity to the same measure after the equity 
content adjustments attributed to the etpS and equity unit securities:

   reported  as adjusted
   on Balance range of hybrid for equity
   sheet equity content content – range
(millions of dollars) (GaaP) adjustment (non-GaaP)

Debt   $  1,505 $  (390) – $  (473)  $  1,032 – $  1,115
equity  $  1,728 $ 390 – $ 473  $  2,118 – $  2,201
Capital  
 (debt + equity) $  3,233 –   $  3,233
Debt to capital ratio  47% –   32% – 35%

contractual oBliGations   the following summarizes the 
Company’s significant contractual obligations and commitments that 
impact its liquidity:

  Payments due by Period

     2009- 2011- 
(millions of dollars) total 2008 2010 2012 thereafter

long-term debt $ 1,222 $    10 $  222 $  539 $   451

Interest payments  
 on long-term debt(a) 315 52 99 81 83

operating leases 122 35 43 25 19

Derivatives(b) 81 3 72 1 5

equity purchase  
 contract fees 42 17 25 – –

Material purchase  
 commitments 29 11 18 – –

Deferred compensation 23 4 4 5 10

outsourcing and  
 other obligations(d) 21 18 3 – –

pension funding obligations(c) 15 15 – – –

total contractual  
 cash obligations $ 1,870 $  165 $  486 $  651 $  568

(a)  Future interest payments on long-term debt reflect the applicable fixed interest rate or the 
variable rate in effect at December 29, 2007 for floating rate debt.

(b)  Future cash flows on derivative financial instruments reflect the fair value as of December 29, 
2007. the ultimate cash flows on these instruments will differ, perhaps significantly, based on 
applicable market interest and foreign currency rates at their maturity.

(c) the Company anticipates that funding of its pension and postretirement benefit plans in 2008 
will approximate $15 million. that amount principally represents contributions either required 
by regulations or laws or, with respect to unfunded plans, necessary to fund current benefits. 
the Company has not presented estimated pension and postretirement funding in the table 
above beyond 2008 as funding can vary significantly from year to year based upon changes in 
the fair value of the plan assets, actuarial assumptions, or curtailment/settlement actions.

(d)   to the extent the Company can reliably determine when payments will occur pertaining to 
unrecognized tax benefit liabilities, the related amount will be included in the table above. 
however, due to the high degree of uncertainty regarding the timing of potential future cash 
flows associated with the $49 million of such liabilities at December 29, 2007, the Company 
is unable to make a reliable estimate of when (if at all) amounts may be paid to the respective 
taxing authorities.

aside from debt payments, for which there is no tax benefit associated with 
repayment of principal, payment of the above contractual obligations will 
typically generate a cash tax benefit such that the net cash outflow will be 
lower than the gross amounts indicated.

other commercial commitments
  amounts of commitments expiration Per Period

     2009- 2011- 
(millions of dollars) total 2008 2010 2012 thereafter

u.S. lines of credit $  550 $  – $  550 $  – $  –

u.S. receivables  
 securitization facility 66 66 – – –

total commercial  
 commitments $  616 $  66 $  550 $  – $  –

Short-term borrowings, long-term debt and lines of credit are explained in 
detail within note I long-term Debt and Financing arrangements of the 
notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. operating leases and 
other commercial commitments are further detailed in note r Commitments 
and Guarantees of the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

mARKET RISK

Market risk is the potential economic loss that may result from adverse 
changes in the fair value of financial instruments, currencies, commodi-
ties and other items traded in global markets. the Company is exposed 
to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest 
rates, stock prices, and commodity prices. exposure to foreign currency risk 
results because the Company, through its global businesses, enters into 
transactions and makes investments denominated in multiple currencies. 
the Company’s predominant exposures are in european, Canadian and 
asian currencies, including the Chinese renminbi (“rMB”) and the taiwan 
Dollar. Certain cross-currency trade flows arising from sales and procure-
ment activities as well as affiliate cross-border activity are consolidated 
and netted prior to obtaining risk protection, primarily purchased basket 
options. the Company is thus able to capitalize on its global positioning by 
taking advantage of naturally offsetting exposures and portfolio efficien-
cies to reduce the cost of purchasing protection. at times, the Company also 
enters into forward exchange contracts and purchased options to reduce 
the earnings and cash flow impact of non-functional currency denominated 
receivables and payables, predominately for affiliate transactions. Gains 
and losses from these hedging instruments offset the gains or losses on the 
underlying net exposures, assets and liabilities being hedged. Management 
determines the nature and extent of currency hedging activities, and in 
certain cases, may elect to allow certain currency exposures to remain 
unhedged. the Company has also entered into several cross-currency 
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interest rate swaps, to provide a partial hedge of the net investments in 
certain subsidiaries and better match the cash flows of operations to debt 
service requirements. Sensitivity to foreign currency exposure risk from 
these financial instruments at the end of 2007 would have been immaterial 
based on the potential loss in fair value from a hypothetical 10% adverse 
movement in all currencies. the Company follows risk management policies 
in executing derivative financial instrument transactions, and does not use 
such instruments for speculative purposes.

the Company sources significant products from China and other asian low 
cost countries for resale in other regions. to the extent the rMB or these 
other currencies appreciate with respect to the uSD, the Company may 
experience cost increases on such purchases. while the 7% appreciation of 
the rMB during 2007 has not as yet generated material cost increases for 
products sourced from China, further significant appreciation of the rMB 
or other currencies in countries where the Company sources product could 
adversely impact profitability. In the event significant rMB or other currency 
appreciation occurs, the Company would initiate customer pricing or other 
actions in an effort to mitigate the related cost increases, but it is possible 
such actions would not fully offset the potential unfavorable impact.

the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk results from its outstanding 
debt obligations, short-term investments, and derivative financial instru-
ments employed in the management of its debt portfolio. the debt portfolio 
is managed to achieve capital structure targets and reduce the overall cost 
of borrowing by using a combination of fixed and floating rate debt as well 
as interest rate swaps, and cross-currency swaps. the Company’s primary 
exposure to interest rate risk comes from its floating rate debt in the u.S. 
and europe and is fairly represented by changes in lIBor and eurIBor 
rates. at December 29, 2007, the result of a hypothetical two percentage 
point increase in short-term lIBor and eurIBor rates would not have 
resulted in a material impact on the pre-tax profit of the Company.

the Company has exposure to commodity prices in many businesses, partic-
ularly brass, nickel, resin, aluminum, copper, zinc, steel, and energy used in 
the production of finished goods. Generally, commodity price exposures are 
not hedged with derivative financial instruments, but instead are actively 
managed through customer pricing actions, procurement-driven cost reduc-
tion initiatives and other productivity improvement projects. In 2007, the 
Company experienced approximately $67 million of commodity, energy 
and wage inflation, most of which was recovered through favorable pric-
ing actions. Such inflation increased costs by approximately $45 million in 
2006 and $49 million in 2005, which management mitigated through various 
customer pricing actions and cost reduction initiatives. If commodity prices 
fluctuated to reach new historical high levels, the Company’s exposure 
could increase from the expected levels for 2008 as previously discussed. 

Fluctuations in the fair value of the Company’s common stock affect 
domestic retirement plan expense as discussed in the eSop section of 
Management’s Discussion and analysis. 

the assets held by the Company’s defined benefit plans are exposed to 
fluctuations in the market value of securities, primarily global stocks and 
fixed-income securities. the funding obligations for these plans would 
increase in the event of adverse changes in the plan asset values. the 
Company employs diversified asset allocations to help mitigate this risk. 
Management has worked to minimize this exposure by freezing and termi-
nating defined benefit plans where appropriate.

the Company has significant customers, particularly home centers and 
major retailers, though individually there are none that exceed 10% of 
consolidated sales. the loss or material reduction of business from any 
such significant customer could have a material adverse impact on the 
Company’s results of operations and cash flows, until either such customers 
were replaced or the Company made the necessary adjustments to compen-
sate for the loss of business.

approximately 24% of 2007 sales were in the americas region of the 
Construction and Do-It-yourself segment. this portion of the Company has 
been adversely affected by the decline in u.S. housing and general con-
struction markets. In the event these domestic housing and construction 
markets deteriorate further, or the downturn spreads to european or asian 
markets, this could have an unfavorable impact on future results. the 2007 
european and asian sales were robust in the CDIy segment. Management 
believes geographic as well as industrial diversification helps mitigate the 
risk of variability in future results from issues that may arise from time to 
time in certain markets the Company serves.

the Company has access to financial resources and borrowing capabili-
ties around the world. there are no material instruments within the debt 
structure that would accelerate payment requirements due to a change in 
credit rating. the Company has the flexibility to elect deferral of interest 
payments on its etpS obligation for up to 5 years. while there can be no 
guarantee of the future, the Company has an investment-grade credit rating 
and has enjoyed uninterrupted access to the commercial paper and bank 
markets throughout the credit crunch that has recently arisen. Further, the 
Company has not encountered liquidity difficulties historically when similar 
credit tightening has occurred due to macro-economic issues. Moreover, 
the Company’s existing credit facilities and sources of liquidity, including 
operating cash flows, are considered adequate to conduct business as 
normal. accordingly, based on present conditions and past history, man-
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agement believes it is unlikely that operations will be materially affected 
by any potential deterioration of the general credit markets that may occur. 
the Company believes that its strong financial position, operating cash 
flows, committed long-term credit facilities and borrowing capacity, and 
ready access to equity markets provide the financial flexibility necessary 
to continue its record of annual dividend payments, to invest in the routine 
needs of its businesses, to make strategic acquisitions and to fund other 
initiatives encompassed by its growth strategy.

OTHER mATTERS

emPloyee stock oWnershiP Plan  as detailed in note M 
employee Benefit plans of the notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, the Company has an employee Stock ownership plan (“eSop”) 
under which the ongoing u.S. defined contribution and 401(k) plans are 
funded. overall eSop expense is affected by the market value of Stanley 
stock on the monthly dates when shares are released, among other factors. 
net eSop expense amounted to $2 million in each of the years 2007, 2006 
and 2005. while the average market value of shares released increased 
from $46.41 in 2005 to $56.04 in 2007, other elements of eSop expense, 
including a gradual reduction in the number of shares released annually 
from the trust, offset the favorable impact of the higher share price. eSop 
expense could increase in the future if the market value of the Company’s 
common stock declines.

neW accountinG standards   refer to note a Significant 
accounting policies of the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 
a discussion of new accounting pronouncements and the potential impact to 
the Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial position.

critical accountinG estimates   preparation of the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
revenues and expenses. Significant accounting policies used in the prepa-
ration of the Consolidated Financial Statements are described in note a 
Significant accounting policies. Management believes the most complex 
and sensitive judgments, because of their significance to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, result primarily from the need to make estimates 
about the effects of matters with inherent uncertainty. the most significant 
areas involving management estimates are described below. actual results 
in these areas could differ from management’s estimates.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS  the Company’s estimate for 
its allowance for doubtful accounts related to trade receivables is based 
on two methods. the amounts calculated from each of these methods are 
combined to determine the total amount reserved. First, a specific reserve 
is established for individual accounts where information indicates the cus-
tomers may have an inability to meet financial obligations. In these cases, 
management uses its judgment, based on the surrounding facts and circum-
stances, to record a specific reserve for those customers against amounts 
due to reduce the receivable to the amount expected to be collected. these 
specific reserves are reevaluated and adjusted as additional information is 
received. Second, a reserve is determined for all customers based on a range 
of percentages applied to receivables aging categories. these percentages 
are based on historical collection and write-off experience.

If circumstances change, for example, the occurrence of higher than expect-
ed defaults or a significant adverse change in a major customer’s ability to 
meet its financial obligation to the Company, estimates of the recoverability 
of receivable amounts due could be reduced.

INVENTORIES – LOWER OF COST OR MARKET, SLOW-MOVING AND 
OBSOLETE  Inventories in the u.S. are predominantly valued at the lower 
of lIFo cost or market, while non-u.S. inventories are valued at the lower 
of FIFo cost or market. the calculation of lIFo reserves, and therefore the 
net inventory valuation, is affected by inflation and deflation in inventory 
components. the Company ensures all inventory is valued at the lower of 
cost or market, and continually reviews the carrying value of discontinued 
product lines and stock-keeping-units (“Skus”) to determine that these 
items are properly valued. the Company also continually evaluates the 
composition of its inventory and identifies obsolete and/or slow-moving 
inventories. Inventory items identified as obsolete and/or slow-moving are 
evaluated to determine if reserves are required. the Company assesses the 
ability to dispose of these inventories at a price greater than cost. If it is 
determined that cost is less than market value, cost is used for inventory 
valuation. If market value is less than cost, the Company writes down the 
related inventory to that value. If a write down to the current market value 
is necessary, the market value cannot be greater than the net realizable 
value, or ceiling (defined as selling price less costs to sell and dispose), and 
cannot be lower than the net realizable value less a normal profit margin, 
also called the floor. If the Company is not able to achieve its expectations 
regarding net realizable value of inventory at its current value, reserves 
would have to be adjusted accordingly.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  the Company generally values 
property, plant and equipment (“pp&e”) at historical cost less accumu-
lated depreciation. Impairment losses are recorded when indicators of 
impairment, such as plant closures, are present and the undiscounted cash 
flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the carry-
ing amount. the impairment loss is quantified by comparing the carrying 
amount of the assets to the weighted average discounted cash flows, 
which consider various possible outcomes for the disposition of the assets 
(i.e. sale, leasing, etc.). primarily as a result of plant rationalization, certain 
facilities and equipment are not currently used in operations. the Company 
has previously recorded impairment losses related to unused and under-
utilized assets, and such losses may occur in the future.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS  the Company completed 
acquisitions in 2007 and 2006 valued at $647 million and $550 million, 
respectively. the assets and liabilities of acquired businesses are recorded 
at their fair values at the date of acquisition. Goodwill represents costs in 
excess of fair values assigned to the underlying net assets of acquired busi-
nesses. the Company reported $1.5 billion of goodwill and $322 million of 
indefinite-lived trade names at December 29, 2007.

In accordance with SFaS no. 142, goodwill and intangible assets deemed 
to have indefinite lives are not amortized, but are subject to annual impairment 
testing. the identification and measurement of goodwill and unamor-
tized intangible asset impairment involves the estimation of fair value. 
Impairment testing of goodwill also requires the identification and valuation 
of reporting units. the estimates of fair value of goodwill, indefinite-lived 
intangible assets and related reporting units are based on the information 
available at the date of assessment, including management assumptions 
about future cash flows, discount rates and royalty rates which are utilized 
to estimate the present value of future cash flows to be generated by the 
indefinite-lived assets. Future cash flows can be affected by changes in 
industry or market conditions or the rate and extent to which anticipated 
synergies or cost savings are realized with acquired entities. while the 
Company has not recorded goodwill or other intangible asset impairment 
losses in many years, it is possible impairments may occur in the future in 
the event expected profitability, cash flows or trade name usage change 
significantly from current estimates.

ENVIRONMENTAL  the Company incurs costs related to environmental 
issues as a result of various laws and regulations governing current operations 
as well as the remediation of previously contaminated sites. Future laws and 
regulations are expected to be increasingly stringent and will likely increase 
the Company’s expenditures related to routine environmental matters.

the Company’s policy is to accrue environmental investigatory and reme-
diation costs for identified sites when it is probable that a liability has 
been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. the 
liability recorded is based on an evaluation of currently available facts 
with respect to each individual site and includes such factors as existing 
technology, presently enacted laws and regulations, and prior experience 
in remediation of contaminated sites. as assessments and remediation 
progress at individual sites, the amounts recorded are reviewed periodi-
cally and adjusted to reflect additional technical and legal information that 
becomes available. as of December 29, 2007 the Company had reserves 
of $30 million for remediation activities associated with Company-owned 
properties as well as for Superfund sites, for losses that are probable and 
estimable. the range of environmental remediation costs that is reason-
ably possible is $23 million to $56 million which is subject to change in 
the near term. the Company may be liable for environmental remediation 
of sites it no longer owns. liabilities have been recorded on those sites in 
accordance with this policy. while the Company believes the $30 million 
liability recorded for environmental matters is adequate, it is possible that 
future developments may require charges for environmental exposures in 
excess of this reserve.

INCOME TAXES  the future tax benefit arising from net deductible tempo-
rary differences and tax loss carry-forwards is $146 million at December 29, 
2007 and $126 million at December 30, 2006. the Company believes earn-
ings during the periods when the temporary differences become deductible 
will be sufficient to realize the related future income tax benefits. For those 
jurisdictions where the expiration date of tax loss carry-forwards or the 
projected operating results indicate that realization is not likely, a valuation 
allowance is provided. the valuation allowance as of December 29, 2007 
amounted to $27 million.

In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, the Company estimates 
future taxable income, considering the feasibility of ongoing tax planning 
strategies and the realizability of tax loss carry-forwards. Valuation allow-
ances related to deferred tax assets can be impacted by changes to tax 
laws, changes to statutory tax rates and future taxable income levels. In the 
event the Company were to determine that it would not be able to realize all 
or a portion of its deferred tax assets in the future, the unrealizable amount 
would be charged to earnings in the period in which that determination is 
made. By contrast, if the Company were to determine that it would be able 
to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of the net carrying 
amounts, it would decrease the recorded valuation allowance through a 
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favorable adjustment to earnings in the period in which that determination 
is made. the Company periodically assesses its liabilities and contingencies 
for all tax years still under audit based on the most current available infor-
mation. when it is deemed probable that an adjustment will be asserted, 
the Company accrues its best estimate of the tax liability, inclusive of 
related interest charges. See note Q Income taxes of the notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

RISK INSURANCE  to some extent, the Company self insures for various 
business exposures. For domestic workers’ compensation, automobile 
and product liability, the Company generally purchases outside insurance 
coverage only for severe losses (“stop loss” insurance). the two risk areas 
involving the most significant accounting estimates are workers’ compen-
sation and product liability (liability for alleged injuries associated with the 
Company’s products). actuarial valuations performed by an outside risk 
insurance expert form the basis for workers’ compensation and product 
liability loss reserves recorded. the actuary contemplates the Company’s 
specific loss history, actual claims reported, and industry trends among 
statistical and other factors to estimate the range of reserves required. 
risk insurance reserves are comprised of specific reserves for individual 
claims and additional amounts expected for development of these claims, 
as well as for incurred but not yet reported claims. the specific reserves 
for individual known claims are quantified by third party administrator 
specialists (insurance companies) for workers’ compensation and by in-
house legal counsel in consultation with outside attorneys for automobile 
and product liability. the cash outflows related to risk insurance claims are 
expected to occur over approximately 8 to 10 years, and the present value 
of expected future claim payments is reserved. the Company believes the 
liability recorded for such risk insurance reserves as of December 29, 2007 
is adequate, but due to judgments inherent in the reserve estimation pro-
cess it is possible the ultimate costs will differ from this estimate.

WARRANTY  the Company provides product and service warranties which 
vary across its businesses. the types of warranties offered generally range 
from one year to limited lifetime, while certain products carry no warranty. 
Further, the Company sometimes incurs discretionary costs to service its 
products in connection with product performance issues. historical war-
ranty and service claim experience forms the basis for warranty obligations 
recognized. adjustments are recorded to the warranty liability as new 
information becomes available. the Company believes the $64 million 
reserve for expected warranty claims as of December 29, 2007 is adequate, 

but due to judgments inherent in the reserve estimation process, including 
forecasting future product reliability levels and costs of repair as well as 
the estimated age of certain items submitted for claims, the ultimate claim 
costs may differ from the recorded warranty liability.

off-Balance sheet arranGements   off-balance sheet arrange-
ments include the following:

RECEIVABLE SECURITIZATIONS  the Company has agreements to sell, 
on a revolving basis, pools of accounts and notes receivables to a Qualified 
Special purpose entity (“QSpe”), which qualifies to be accounted for 
as an unconsolidated subsidiary. the entity is designed to facilitate the 
securitization of certain trade accounts receivable. assets and related debt 
off-balance sheet were both $42 million at December 29, 2007, compared to 
$60 million as of December 30, 2006. the Company is responsible for ser-
vicing these accounts while the QSpe bears the risk of non-collection. the 
net cash flows from sales of eligible receivables to the QSpe in revolving-
period securitizations amounted to a cash outflow of $18.0 million in 2007 
and a cash inflow of $44 million in 2006. there were no gains or losses on 
these cash flows.

SYNTHETIC LEASES  the Company is a party to synthetic leasing programs 
for two of its major distribution centers and certain personal property, pre-
dominately vehicles and equipment. the programs qualify as operating 
leases for accounting purposes, such that only the monthly rent expense is 
recorded in the Statement of operations and the liability and value of the 
underlying assets are off-balance sheet. these lease programs are utilized 
primarily to reduce overall cost and to retain flexibility. as of December 29, 
2007, the estimated fair value of assets and remaining obligations for these 
properties were $105 million and $83 million, respectively.

TRUST  the Company owns 100% of the common stock ($0.1 million) of 
the Stanley works Capital trust I (the “trust”) which was formed in 2005 to 
initiate the offering of the $450 million enhanced trust preferred Securities 
(“etpS”). however, in accordance with Financial accounting Standards 
Board Interpretation no. 46r, “Consolidation of Variable Interest entities, 
an interpretation of arB no. 51” (“FIn 46r”), the trust is not consolidated. 
Since the $450 million of junior subordinated debt issued by the Company 
to the trust is reflected on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as 
of December 29, 2007, consolidation of the trust would have virtually no 
impact to the Company’s results of operations or financial position.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS UNDER THE PRIVATE 
SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

Certain statements contained in this annual report including, but not limited 
to, the statements regarding the Company’s ability to: (i) limit cost increases 
due to material and energy cost and wage inflation to $75-80 million; 
(ii) return the fastening systems business to acceptable profitability; (iii) 
increase sales and profit in the legacy U.s. security integration business; 
(iv) attain gains in commercial construction markets within the security 
segment; (v) limit future capital expenditures such that any increase is 
proportional to the Company’s sales growth; (vi) continue to make acquisi-
tions; (vii) increase its current long-term credit facility line to $800 million; 
and (viii) achieve higher working capital turns, decreased cycle times, 
reduced complexity in operations and increased customer satisfaction in 
2008 and beyond are forward-looking statements and are based on current 
expectations. these statements are not guarantees of future performance 
and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult 
to predict. there are a number of risks, uncertainties and important factors 
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by 
such forward-looking statements. In addition to any such risks, uncertain-
ties and other factors discussed elsewhere herein, the risks, uncertainties 
and other factors that could cause or contribute to actual results differing 
materially from those expressed or implied in the forward looking statements 
include, without limitation, those set forth under Item 1a risk Factors in the 
Company’s annual report on Form 10-k, those contained in the Company’s 
other filings with the securities and exchange Commission and those set 
forth below.

the Company’s ability to deliver the results described above (the “results”) 
is dependent upon: (i) the Company’s ability to identify appropriate acquisi-
tion opportunities and to complete such acquisitions; (ii) the Company’s 
ability to successfully integrate hsM and other recent acquisitions, as well 
as future acquisitions, while limiting associated costs; (iii) the Company’s 
ability to continue to deliver cost reductions and profit improvement in its 
fastening systems and national hardware businesses; (iv) the Company’s 
ability to complete the fastening reorganization within the anticipated time 
frame; (v) the success of the Company’s efforts to manage freight costs, 
steel and other commodity costs; (vi) the success of the Company’s efforts 
to sustain or increase prices in order to, among other things, offset or miti-
gate the impact of steel, freight, energy, non-ferrous commodity and other 
commodity costs and other inflation increases; (vii) the Company’s ability 
to reduce its costs, increase its prices, change the manufacturing location 
or find alternate sources for products made in China in order to mitigate the 

impact of an increase in the Vat rate applicable to products the Company 
makes or purchases in China and mitigate the impact of an anti-dumping 
tariff recently imposed on certain nails imported from China; (viii) the 
Company’s ability to generate free cash flow and maintain a strong debt to 
capital ratio; (ix) the Company’s ability to identify and effectively execute 
productivity improvements and cost reductions while minimizing any asso-
ciated restructuring charges; (x) the Company’s ability to obtain favorable 
settlement of routine tax audits; (xi) the ability of the Company to generate 
earnings sufficient to realize future income tax benefits during periods 
when temporary differences become deductible; (xii) the continued ability 
of the Company to access credit markets under satisfactory terms; and (xiii) 
the Company’s ability to negotiate satisfactory payment terms under which 
the Company buys and sells goods, materials and products. 

the Company’s ability to deliver the results is also dependent upon: (i) 
the continued success of the Company’s marketing and sales efforts; (ii) 
the ability of the Company to maintain or improve production rates in the 
Company’s manufacturing facilities, respond to significant changes in prod-
uct demand and fulfill demand for new and existing products; and (iii) the 
Company’s ability to continue improvements in working capital. 

the Company’s ability to achieve the results will also be affected by 
external factors. these external factors include: pricing pressure and other 
changes within competitive markets; the continued consolidation of cus-
tomers particularly in consumer channels; inventory management pressures 
on the Company’s customers; increasing competition; changes in trade, 
monetary, tax and fiscal policies and laws; inflation; currency exchange 
fluctuations; the impact of dollar/foreign currency exchange and interest 
rates on the competitiveness of products and the Company’s debt program; 
the strength of the U.s. economy; the extent to which north american mar-
kets associated with homebuilding and remodeling continue to deteriorate; 
further tightening of credit markets, and the impact of events that cause 
or may cause disruption in the Company’s manufacturing, distribution and 
sales networks such as war, terrorist activities, political unrest, government 
actions and recessionary or expansive trends in the economies of the world 
in which the Company operates. 

Unless required by applicable federal securities laws, the Company 
undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward looking 
statements to reflect events or circumstances that may arise after the date 
hereof. Investors are advised, however, to consult any further disclosures 
made on related subjects in the Company’s reports filed with the securities 
and exchange Commission.
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manaGement’s rePort on internal control  
over financial rePortinG

The management of The Stanley Works is responsible 
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over 
financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finan-
cial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Because of its inherent limitations, internal 
control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect mis-
statements. Management has assessed the effectiveness of 
The Stanley Works’ internal control over financial reporting 
as of December 29, 2007. In making its assessment, man-
agement has utilized the criteria set forth by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations (“COSO”) of the Treadway 
Commission in Internal Control – Integrated Framework. 
Management concluded that based on its assessment, The 

Stanley Works’ internal control over financial reporting was 
effective as of December 29, 2007. Management’s assess-
ment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over financial reporting did not include the internal controls 
of HSM Electronic Protection Services Inc. (“HSM”) which 
was acquired on January 16, 2007. HSM is included in the 
2007 consolidated financial statements of The Stanley Works 
and constituted total assets of approximately $571 million at 
December 29, 2007 and approximately $219 million of rev-
enues for the year then ended. Ernst & Young LLP, the auditor 
of the financial statements included in this annual report, has 
issued an attestation report on the registrant’s internal control 
over financial reporting, a copy of which appears on page 51.

annual Ceo CertifiCation 
(SeCtion 303a.12(a))

As the Chief Executive Officer of The Stanley Works, and as required by Section 303A.12(a) of the New York 
Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual, I hereby certify that as of the date hereof I am not aware of any violation 
by the Company of NYSE’s Corporate Governance listing standards, other than has been notified to the Exchange 
pursuant to Section 303A.12(b) and disclosed on Exhibit H to the Company’s Domestic Company Section 303A 
Annual Written Affirmation.

neW york stock eXchanGe certification

John F. Lundgren 
Chairman & CEO

May 16, 2007

The Company has filed the certifications required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as Exhibits 31(i)(a) and 31(i)(b) 
to its Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 25, 2008.

John F. Lundgren 
Chairman & CEO

James M. Loree
Executive Vice President & CFO
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rePort of indePendent reGistered  
PuBlic accountinG firm

the Board of directors and shareholders of the stanley Works

We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets of The Stanley Works and subsidiaries as of 
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006, and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, changes in shareown-
ers’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years 
in the period ended December 29, 2007. These financial state-
ments are the responsibility of the Company’s management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the 
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluat-
ing the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of The Stanley Works and subsidiaries at 
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006, and the con-
solidated results of their operations and their cash flows for 
each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 
29, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted account-
ing principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stan-
dards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), The Stanley Works’ internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 29, 2007, based on  
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the 
Treadway Commission and our report dated February 21, 2008 
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

As discussed in Note A to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, the Company adopted Financial Accounting 
Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for 
Uncertainty in Income Taxes – an Interpretation of SFAS 
No. 109”, effective December 31, 2006 and Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123 (Revised 
2004), “Share-based Payment” effective January 1, 2006. As 
discussed in Note M to the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
the Company adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting 
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans 
– An amendment to FASB Statement Nos. 87, 88, 106 and 
132(R)” effective December 30, 2006.

Hartford, Connecticut
February 21, 2008
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rePort of indePendent reGistered  
PuBlic accountinG firm

the Board of directors and shareholders of the stanley Works

We have audited The Stanley Works’ internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 29, 2007, based on 
criteria established in Internal Control–Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Stanley 
Works’ management is responsible for maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment 
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial report-
ing included in the accompanying Management’s Report on 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over 
financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stan-
dards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained 
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an under-
standing of internal control over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regard-
ing the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the trans-
actions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assur-
ance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over 
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future 
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inad-
equate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’s 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, manage-
ment’s assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness 
of internal control over financial reporting did not include 
the internal controls of HSM Electronic Protection Services, 
Inc. (“HSM”), a company acquired in January 2007, which is 
included in the 2007 consolidated financial statements of The 
Stanley Works and constituted total assets of approximately 
$571 million at December 29, 2007 and approximately $219 
million of revenues for the year then ended. Our audit of 
internal control over financial reporting of The Stanley Works 
also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over 
financial reporting of HSM.

In our opinion, The Stanley Works maintained, in all 
material respects, effective internal control over financial report-
ing as of December 29, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stan-
dards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of The 
Stanley Works and subsidiaries as of December 29, 2007 and 
December 30, 2006, and the related consolidated statements 
of operations, changes in shareowners’ equity, and cash flows 
for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 
29, 2007 and our report dated February 21, 2008 expressed an 
unqualified opinion thereon.

Hartford, Connecticut
February 21, 2008
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consolidated statements of oPerations

Fiscal years ended December 29, 2007, December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005

(in millions of dollars, except per share amounts)  2007  2006  2005

net sales $ 4,483.8 $ 4,018.6 $ 3,285.3
costs and expenses
Cost of sales $ 2,791.6 $ 2,560.1 $ 2,104.0
Selling, general and administrative  1,058.4  955.2  736.8
Interest income  (5.0)  (4.4)  (6.6)
Interest expense  85.2  69.3  40.4
other-net  89.7  57.5  47.9
restructuring charges and asset impairments  12.8  13.8  4.6

   $ 4,032.7 $ 3,651.5 $ 2,927.1

earnings from continuing operations before income taxes   451.1  367.1  358.2
Income taxes  114.5  76.4  86.5

net earnings from continuing operations $ 336.6 $ 290.7 $ 271.7

loss from discontinued operations before income taxes  
 (including $1.5 million loss on divestiture in 2006)  –  (1.5)  (1.2)
Income taxes (benefit) on discontinued operations  –  (0.3)  0.9

loss from discontinued operations $ – $ (1.2) $ (2.1)

net earnings $ 336.6 $ 289.5 $ 269.6

Basic earnings (loss) per share of common stock:   
 Continuing operations $ 4.09 $ 3.55 $ 3.26
 Discontinued operations  –  (0.01)  (0.03)

  total basic earnings per share of common stock $ 4.09 $ 3.54 $ 3.23

Diluted earnings (loss) per share of common stock:   
 Continuing operations  $  4.00 $ 3.47 $ 3.18
 Discontinued operations   –  (0.01)  (0.02)

  total diluted earnings per share of common stock $ 4.00 $ 3.46 $ 3.16

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006

(millions of dollars)    2007  2006

assets
current assets  
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 240.4 $ 176.6
accounts and notes receivable, net    848.4  749.6
Inventories, net    567.3  598.9
Deferred taxes    25.3  24.2
assets held for sale    24.3  28.2
other current assets    62.7  61.0

total current assets    1,768.4  1,638.5

Property, Plant and equipment, net    569.3  559.4
Goodwill    1,537.7  1,100.2
customer relationships    329.6  163.3
trademarks    342.5  310.6
other intangible assets    42.8  47.4
other assets    189.6  116.0

total assets   $ 4,779.9 $ 3,935.4

liabilities and shareowners’ equity  
current liabilities  
Short-term borrowings   $ 282.5 $ 89.7
Current maturities of long-term debt    10.3  230.3
accounts payable    508.6  445.2
accrued expenses    476.1  485.9 

total current liabilities    1,277.5  1,251.1

long-term debt    1,212.1  679.2
deferred taxes    81.7  67.2
other liabilities    480.1  385.9
commitments and contingencies (notes r and s)  
shareowners’ equity  
preferred stock, without par value:  
 authorized and unissued 10,000,000 shares    –  – 
Common stock, par value $2.50 per share:  
 authorized 200,000,000 shares;  
Issued 92,343,410 shares in 2007 and 2006    233.9  233.9
retained earnings    2,045.5  1,883.6
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)    47.7  (81.8)
eSop     (93.8)  (100.9)

      2,233.3  1,934.8

less: cost of common stock in treasury  
 (11,964,623 shares in 2007 and 10,501,783 shares in 2006)    504.8  382.8

total shareowners’ equity    1,728.5  1,552.0

total liabilities and shareowners’ equity   $ 4,779.9 $ 3,935.4

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

consolidated Balance sheets
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Fiscal years ended December 29, 2007, December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005

(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

operating activities   
net earnings $ 336.6 $ 289.5 $ 269.6
adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash  
 provided by operating activities:   
  Depreciation and amortization  162.2  121.2  96.5
  restructuring charges and asset impairments  12.8  13.8  4.6
  net loss on sale of businesses  –  1.5  2.9
  other non-cash items  48.6  47.5  42.7
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   
  accounts receivable  (30.6)  50.9  7.8
  Inventories  47.4  (62.7)  (19.3)
  accounts payable   34.9  40.5  12.7
  accrued expenses  (60.5)  (63.4)  (35.9)
  Income taxes  14.4  (30.0)  (17.7)
  other  (21.7)  30.3  (1.6)

net cash provided by operating activities  544.1  439.1  362.3

investing activities   
Capital expenditures  (65.5)  (59.6)  (53.3)
Capitalized software  (21.4)  (20.9)  (15.1)
proceeds from sales of assets  17.6  31.9  3.7
Business acquisitions  (642.5)  (571.8)  (286.6)
net proceeds from (taxes paid on) sales of businesses  –  0.9  (20.6)
other  (5.1)  (6.8)  (11.6)

net cash used in investing activities  (716.9)  (626.3)  (383.5)

financing activities   
payments on long-term debt  (227.6)  (4.2)  (71.5)
proceeds from long-term borrowings  529.9  –  450.0
Convertible notes hedge premium  (49.3)  –  –
net proceeds (repayments) on short-term borrowings   192.3  (66.4)  102.6
Debt issuance costs and swap terminations  (12.1)  5.9  (7.6)
Stock purchase contract fees  (10.4)  –  –
purchase of common stock for treasury  (206.9)  (201.6)  –
proceeds from issuance of common stock and warrants  96.5  64.4  38.7
Cash dividends on common stock  (99.8)  (96.1)  (94.9)
other  (2.0)  –  –

net cash provided by (used in) financing activities  210.6  (298.0)  417.3

effect of exchange rate changes on cash  26.0  4.0  11.7

increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  63.8  (481.2)  407.8

cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  176.6  657.8  250.0 

cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 240.4 $ 176.6 $ 657.8

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

consolidated statements of cash floWs
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Fiscal years ended December 29, 2007, December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005

    accumulated
    other
  common  retained comprehensive  treasury shareowners’
(millions of dollars, except per share amounts) stock earnings income (loss) esoP stock equity

Balance January 1, 2005 $ 237.7 $ 1,460.6 $ (55.2) $ (115.8) $ (290.6) $ 1,236.7
Comprehensive income:      
  net earnings    269.6        269.6
  Currency translation adjustment and other      (35.2)      (35.2)
  Cash flow hedge, net of tax      3.1      3.1
  Minimum pension liability, net of tax      (4.0)      (4.0)

 total comprehensive income            233.5

Cash dividends declared−$1.14 per share    (94.9)        (94.9)
Issuance of common stock    11.1      40.1  51.2
tax benefit related to stock options exercised    8.4        8.4
eSop and related tax benefit    2.4    7.6      10.0

Balance december 31, 2005  237.7  1,657.2  (91.3)  (108.2)  (250.5)  1,444.9
Comprehensive income:      
  net earnings    289.5        289.5
  Currency translation adjustment and other      57.3      57.3
  Cash flow hedge, net of tax      8.0      8.0
  Minimum pension liability, net of tax      5.3      5.3

 total comprehensive income            360.1

Cash dividends declared−$1.18 per share    (96.1)        (96.1)
Issuance of common stock    (6.8)      69.3  62.5
repurchase of common stock (4,026,224 shares)          (201.6)  (201.6)
Minority interest common stock  (3.8)          (3.8)
other, stock-based compensation related, net of tax     29.4        29.4
adoption of SFaS no. 158, net of tax      (61.1)      (61.1)
tax benefit related to stock options exercised    8.1        8.1
eSop and related tax benefit    2.3    7.3    9.6

Balance december 30, 2006  233.9  1,883.6  (81.8)  (100.9)  (382.8)  1,552.0
Comprehensive income:      
  net earnings    336.6        336.6
  Currency translation adjustment and other      102.1      102.1
  Cash flow hedge, net of tax      0.7      0.7
  Change in pension, net of tax      26.7      26.7

 total comprehensive income            466.1

Cash dividends declared−$1.22 per share    (99.8)        (99.8)
Issuance of common stock    (16.3)      84.9  68.6
repurchase of common stock (3,786,813 shares)          (206.9)  (206.9)
adoption of FIn 48    (13.5)        (13.5)
Convertible notes hedge, net of tax benefit    (36.3)        (36.3)
Issuance of stock warrants    18.8        18.8
equity purchase contract and issuance costs    (56.7)        (56.7)
other, stock-based compensation related, net of tax     14.1        14.1
tax benefit related to stock options exercised    12.8        12.8
eSop and related tax benefit    2.2    7.1    9.3

Balance december 29, 2007 $ 233.9 $ 2,045.5 $ 47.7 $ (93.8) $ (504.8) $ 1,728.5

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

consolidated statements of chanGes  
in shareoWners’ equity
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notes to consolidated financial statements

A. SIgNIFICANT ACCOUNTINg POLICIES

Basis of Presentation  the Consolidated Financial Statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries 
which require consolidation, after the elimination of intercompany accounts 
and transactions. the Company’s fiscal year ends on the Saturday nearest to 
December 31. there were 52 weeks in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005.

the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the united States of america requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as certain financial 
statement disclosures. while management believes that the estimates and 
assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are appro-
priate, actual results could differ from these estimates.

foreiGn currency translation   For foreign operations with 
functional currencies other than the u.S. dollar, asset and liability accounts 
are translated at current exchange rates; income and expenses are translated 
using weighted-average exchange rates. resulting translation adjustments, 
as well as gains and losses from certain intercompany transactions, are 
reported in a separate component of shareowners’ equity. exchange gains 
and losses on transactions are included in earnings, and amounted to net 
losses/(gains) for 2007, 2006 and 2005 of $1.2 million, $3.9 million and 
$(0.9) million, respectively.

cash equivalents   highly liquid investments with original maturities 
of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

accounts and notes receivaBle   trade receivables are stated 
at gross invoice amount less discounts, other allowances and provision for 
uncollectible accounts.

alloWance for douBtful accounts   the Company estimates 
its allowance for doubtful accounts using two methods. First, a specific 
reserve is established for individual accounts where information indicates 
the customers may have an inability to meet financial obligations. Second, 
a reserve is determined for all customers based on a range of percentages 
applied to aging categories. these percentages are based on historical col-
lection and write-off experience. actual write-offs are charged against the 
allowance when internal collection efforts have been unsuccessful.

inventories  u.S. Inventories are predominantly valued at the lower of 
last-In First-out (“lIFo”) cost or market because the Company believes it 
results in better matching of costs and revenues. other inventories are valued 
at the lower of First-In, First-out (“FIFo”) cost or market primarily because 
lIFo is not permitted for statutory reporting outside the u.S. See note C 
Inventory, for a quantification of the lIFo impact on inventory valuation. 

ProPerty, Plant and equiPment  the Company generally values 
property, plant and equipment (“pp&e”), including capitalized software, on 
the basis of historical cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. 
Costs related to maintenance and repairs which do not prolong the assets 
useful lives are expensed as incurred. Depreciation and amortization are 
provided using straight-line methods over the estimated useful lives of the 
assets as follows:

     useful life (years)

land improvements      10-20
Buildings      40
Machinery and equipment      3-15
Computer software      3-5

leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated 
useful life or the term of the lease. 

the Company assesses its long-lived assets for impairment when indicators 
that the carrying values may not be recoverable are present. In assessing 
long-lived assets for impairment, the Company groups its long-lived assets 
with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable 
cash flows are generated (“asset group”) and estimates the undiscounted 
future cash flows that are directly associated with and expected to be 
generated from the use of and eventual disposition of the asset group. the 
amount of the impairment loss, if any, is quantified by comparing the car-
rying amount of the asset group to the estimated fair value, which is deter-
mined using weighted average discounted cash flows that consider various 
possible outcomes for the disposition of the asset group. Such impairment 
losses were minor in the years 2007, 2006 and 2005.

GoodWill and other intanGiBle assets   Goodwill repre-
sents costs in excess of fair values assigned to the underlying net assets 
of acquired businesses. Intangible assets acquired are recorded at esti-
mated fair value. Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite 
lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually during the 
third quarter, and at any time when events suggest impairment may have 
occurred. to assess goodwill for impairment, the Company determines 
the fair value of its reporting units, which are primarily determined using 
management’s assumptions about future cash flows based on long-range 
strategic plans. this approach incorporates many assumptions including 
future growth rates, discount factors and tax rates. In the event the car-
rying value of a reporting unit exceeded its fair value, an impairment loss 
would be recognized to the extent the carrying amount of the reporting 
unit’s goodwill exceeded its implied fair value. Indefinite-lived intangible 
asset carrying amounts are tested for impairment by comparing to current 
fair market value, usually determined by the estimated cost to lease the 
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asset from third parties. Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized 
over their estimated useful lives. Definite-lived intangible assets are also 
evaluated for impairment when impairment indicators are present. If the 
carrying value exceeds the total undiscounted future cash flows, the asset 
is written down to fair value. no goodwill or other intangible asset impair-
ments were recorded during 2007, 2006 or 2005.

financial instruments   Derivative financial instruments are 
employed to manage risks, including foreign currency and interest rate 
exposures, and are not used for trading or speculative purposes. the 
Company recognizes all derivative instruments, such as interest rate 
swap agreements, foreign currency options, and foreign exchange con-
tracts, in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. Changes in the 
fair value of derivatives are recognized periodically either in earnings or 
in Shareowners’ equity as a component of other comprehensive income, 
depending on whether the derivative financial instrument qualifies for 
hedge accounting, and if so, whether it qualifies as a fair value hedge or 
a cash flow hedge. Changes in fair values of derivatives accounted for 
as fair value hedges are recorded in earnings along with the changes in 
the fair value of the hedged items that relate to the hedged risk. Gains 
and losses on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, to the extent 
they are effective, are recorded in other comprehensive income, and 
subsequently reclassified to earnings to offset the impact of the hedged 
items when they occur. In the event it becomes probable the forecasted 
transaction to which a cash flow hedge relates will not occur, the deriva-
tive would be terminated and the amount in other comprehensive income 
would generally be recognized in earnings. Changes in the fair value of 
derivatives used as hedges of the net investment in foreign operations 
are reported in other comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of 
derivatives not qualifying as hedges, and any portion of a hedge that is 
ineffective, are reported in earnings in other-net.

the net interest paid or received on interest rate swaps is recognized as 
interest expense. Gains and losses resulting from the early termination of 
interest rate swap agreements are deferred and amortized as adjustments 
to interest expense over the remaining period of the debt originally covered 
by the terminated swap.

revenue recoGnition   GENERAL: revenue is recognized when the 
earnings process is complete, collectibility is reasonably assured, and the 
risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer, which 
generally occurs upon shipment of the finished product but sometimes 
is upon delivery to customer facilities. provisions for customer volume 
rebates, product returns, discounts and allowances are recorded as a reduc-
tion of revenue in the same period the related sales are recorded.

MULTIPLE ELEMENT ARRANGEMENTS  In 2007, approximately $800 
million in revenues were generated by multiple element arrangements, 
primarily in the Security segment. these sales contracts typically consist 
of products sold and installed by the Company at the customer location. 

revenue from equipment sales is generally recognized once installation is 
complete. Certain sales agreements also include maintenance and monitoring 
services pertaining to the installed equipment. Service revenue is recog-
nized ratably over the contract term as services are rendered. 

Customer billings for equipment not yet installed and for monitoring services 
not yet rendered are deferred. the associated deferred revenue is included 
in accrued expenses in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

when a sales agreement involves multiple elements, deliverables are 
separately identified and consideration is allocated based on their relative 
fair values in accordance with emerging Issues task Force Issue no. 00-21, 
“revenue arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” Fair value is generally 
determined by reference to the prices charged in stand-alone transactions. 

advertisinG costs   television advertising is expensed the first time 
the advertisement airs, whereas other advertising is expensed as incurred. 
advertising costs are classified in SG&a and amounted to $42.5 million in 
2007, $44.1 million in 2006 and $31.3 million in 2005. Cooperative advertis-
ing expense reported as a deduction in net sales was $29.8 million in 2007, 
$26.3 million in 2006 and $26.5 million in 2005. 

sales taXes   Sales and value added taxes collected from customers 
and remitted to governmental authorities are excluded from net sales 
reported in the Consolidated Statements of operations.

shiPPinG and handlinG costs   the Company generally does not 
bill customers for freight. Shipping and handling costs associated with inbound 
freight are reported in cost of sales. Shipping costs associated with outbound 
freight are reported as a reduction of net sales and amounted to $133.6 mil-
lion, $128.4 million and $99.9 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
Distribution costs are classified in SG&a and amounted to $128.7 million, 
$118.2 million and $77.0 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

stock-Based comPensation   effective January 1, 2006, the 
Company adopted Statement of Financial accounting Standards no. 123 
(revised 2004), “Share-Based payment”, (“SFaS 123r”), using the modified 
prospective method whereby prior periods are not restated for comparabil-
ity. SFaS 123r requires recognition of stock-based compensation expense 
in the statement of operations over the vesting period based on the fair 
value of the award at the grant date. previously, the Company used the 
intrinsic value method under accounting principles Board opinion no. 
25, “accounting for Stock Issued to employees” (“apB 25”), as amended 
by related interpretations of the Financial accounting Standards Board 
(“FaSB”). under apB 25, no compensation cost was recognized for stock 
options because the quoted market price of the stock at the grant date 
was equal to the amount per share the employee had to pay to acquire the 
stock after fulfilling the vesting period. SFaS 123r supersedes apB 25 as 
well as Statement of Financial accounting Standards no. 123, “accounting 
for Stock-Based Compensation”, which permitted pro forma footnote dis-
closures to report the difference between the fair value method and the 
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intrinsic value method. the Company recognized expense for restricted 
share grants under the previous guidance, so the impact from adopting 
SFaS 123r pertains to the requirement to expense stock options (including 
employee stock purchase plan options).

For share-based grants made in 2005 and earlier years, the Company used 
the “accelerated method” of expense attribution under FaSB Interpretation 
no. 28 (“FIn 28”). effective January 1, 2006 with the adoption of SFaS 
123r, the Company elected to change its policy to straight-line expense 
attribution for all grants made in 2006 and subsequent periods. refer to 
note k, Capital Stock, for additional information.

income taXes   Income tax expense is based on reported earnings 
before income taxes. Interest and penalties related to income taxes are 
classified as Income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of operations. 
Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between 
assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting purposes and such 
amounts recognized for tax purposes, and are measured by applying 
enacted tax rates in effect in years in which the differences are expected 
to reverse. a valuation allowance is recorded to reduce deferred tax assets 
to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

earninGs Per share  Basic earnings per share equals net earnings 
divided by weighted average shares outstanding during the year. Diluted 
earnings per share include the impact of common stock equivalents using 
the treasury stock method when the effect is dilutive.

NEW ACCOUNTINg STANDARDS

NOT EFFECTIVE AS OF DECEMBER 29, 2007  In December 2007, the 
FaSB issued SFaS no. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations”, 
(“SFaS 141(r)”). SFaS 141(r) requires the acquiring entity in a business 
combination to recognize the full fair value of assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed in the transaction (whether a full or partial acquisition), estab-
lishes the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective for 
all assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and requires the acquirer to 
disclose the information needed to evaluate and understand the nature and 
effect of the business combination. this Statement applies to all transac-
tions or other events in which the acquirer obtains control of one or more 
businesses, including those sometimes referred to as “true mergers” or 
“mergers of equals” and combinations achieved without the transfer of 
consideration, for example, by contract alone or through the lapse of minor-
ity veto rights. For new acquisitions made following the adoption of SFaS 
141(r), significant costs directly related to the acquisition including legal, 
audit and other fees, as well as most acquisition-related restructuring, 
will have to be expensed as incurred rather than recorded to goodwill as 
is generally permitted under Statement of Financial accounting Standards 
no. 141, “Business Combinations” (“SFaS 141”). additionally, contingent 
purchase price arrangements (also known as earn-outs) will be remeasured 

to estimated fair value with the impact reported in earnings, whereas 
under present rules the contingent purchase consideration is recorded 
to goodwill when determined. the Company is continuing to assess the 
impact the adoption of SFaS 141(r) will entail. SFaS 141(r) applies pro-
spectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or 
after December 28, 2008. 

In December 2007, the FaSB issued SFaS no. 160, “non-controlling 
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements – an amendment of arB 
no. 51” (“SFaS 160”). SFaS 160 requires reporting entities to present 
non-controlling (minority) interests as equity (as opposed to a liability or 
mezzanine equity) and provides guidance on the accounting for transac-
tions between an entity and non-controlling interests. SFaS 160 will apply 
prospectively and is effective as of the beginning of fiscal 2009, except for 
the presentation and disclosure requirements which will be applied retro-
spectively for all periods presented upon adoption. the Company is in the 
process of determining the impact, if any, that the adoption of SFaS 160 will 
have on its results of operations and financial position.

In February 2007, the FaSB issued SFaS no. 159, “the Fair Value option 
for Financial assets and liabilities, including an amendment of FaSB 
Statement no. 115”, (“SFaS 159”). SFaS 159 permits companies to choose 
to measure certain financial instruments and other items at fair value. SFaS 
159 is effective as of the beginning of fiscal 2008. the Company does not 
believe that SFaS 159 will have a significant impact on its results of opera-
tions and financial position upon adoption.

In September 2006, the FaSB issued SFaS no. 157, “Fair Value 
Measurements”, (“SFaS 157”). this Statement provides a common fair 
value hierarchy for companies to follow in determining fair value measure-
ments in the preparation of financial statements and expands disclosure 
requirements relating to how such fair value measurements were developed. 
SFaS 157 clarifies the principle that fair value should be based on the 
assumptions that the marketplace would use when pricing an asset or liabil-
ity, rather than company specific data. SFaS 157 will become effective for 
the Company as of the beginning of fiscal 2008 for all financial assets and 
liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at 
fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. SFaS 157 will 
become effective for the remaining non-financial assets and non-financial 
liabilities beginning in fiscal year 2009. the Company is in the process of 
determining the impact, if any, that the adoption of SFaS 157 will have on 
its results of operations and financial position.

IMPLEMENTED  In March 2006, the FaSB issued SFaS no. 156, “accounting 
for Servicing of Financial assets – an amendment of FaSB Statement no. 
140”, (“SFaS 156”). the provisions of SFaS 156 are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after September 15, 2006. this statement was issued to simplify 
the accounting for servicing rights and to reduce the volatility that results 
from using different measurement attributes. the adoption of SFaS 156 did 
not impact the Company’s results of operations and financial position.
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In February 2006, the FaSB issued Statement of Financial accounting 
Standard (“SFaS”) no. 155 “accounting for Certain hybrid Financial 
Instruments, an amendment of FaSB Statements no. 133 and 140”, (“SFaS 
155”). SFaS 155 clarifies certain issues relating to embedded derivatives 
and beneficial interests in securitized financial assets. the provisions of 
SFaS 155 are effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued for 
fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006. the adoption of SFaS 155 
did not impact the Company’s results of operations and financial position.

the Company adopted Financial accounting Standards Board (“FaSB”) 
Interpretation no. 48, “accounting for uncertainty in Income taxes – an 
Interpretation of SFaS no. 109”, (“FIn 48”), as of the beginning of its 2007 
fiscal year. this Interpretation, issued in June 2006, clarifies the accounting 
for uncertainty in income taxes. FIn 48 prescribes a recognition threshold 
and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and 
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken on a tax 
return. under FIn 48, the Company first assesses whether it is more likely 
than not that an individual tax position will be sustained upon examination 
based on its technical merits. If the tax position is more likely than not to 
be sustained, under the presumption the taxing authority has all relevant 
information, it is recognized. the recognized tax position is measured as the 
largest benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon 
ultimate settlement. previously recognized tax positions that no longer 
meet the more likely than not recognition threshold are derecognized in 
the period in which that threshold is no longer met. accordingly, the unit of 
account under this standard is the individual tax position and not a higher 
level such as the aggregate of the various positions that are encompassed 
by the total tax return filing. as a result of the implementation of FIn 48, the 
Company recognized a $13.5 million increase in its tax liabilities, and a cor-
responding reduction to the 2007 beginning balance of retained earnings.

reclassifications  prior years’ segment disclosures have been 
reclassified to reflect the realignment of business segments which occurred 
during the first quarter of 2007. Certain other prior year’s amounts have 
been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

B. ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

(millions of dollars)    2007  2006

trade accounts and notes receivable   $ 841.3 $ 736.0
other    47.9  47.4

Gross accounts and notes receivable    889.2  783.4
allowance for doubtful accounts    (40.8)  (33.8)

net accounts and notes receivable   $ 848.4 $ 749.6

trade receivables are dispersed among a large number of retailers, distribu-
tors and industrial accounts in many countries. adequate reserves have 
been established to cover anticipated credit losses.

the Company has agreements to sell, on a revolving basis, undivided inter-
ests in defined pools of notes receivable to a Qualified Special purpose 
entity (“QSpe”). the entity is designed to facilitate the securitization of 
certain trade accounts receivable and is used as an additional source of 
liquidity. at December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006, the defined pools 
of receivables amounted to $66.0 million and $86.7 million, respectively, 
while the agreement permits the QSpe to have a maximum of $150.0 mil-
lion of borrowings outstanding at any time. the net cash flows from sales 
of such eligible receivables to the QSpe in revolving-period securitizations 
amounted to a cash outflow of $18.0 million in 2007 and a cash inflow of 
$43.9 million in 2006. there were no significant gains or losses on these 
sales. the amounts deducted from receivables in the December 29, 2007 
and December 30, 2006 Consolidated Balance Sheets under this arrange-
ment were $42.3 million and $60.3 million, respectively. the Company is 
responsible for servicing and collecting the receivables sold and held in 
the QSpe. any incremental costs related to such servicing and collection 
efforts are not significant. the QSpe bears the risk of non-collection on the 
receivables it has purchased.

C. INVENTORY

(millions of dollars)    2007  2006

Finished products   $ 402.3 $ 427.4
work in process    57.7  59.5
raw materials    107.3  112.0

total    $ 567.3 $ 598.9

net inventories in the amount of $201.9 million at December 29, 2007 and 
$237.1 million at December 30, 2006 were valued at the lower of lIFo cost 
or market. If the lIFo method had not been used, inventories would have 
been $66.0 million higher than reported at December 29, 2007 and $68.8 
million higher than reported at December 30, 2006. the lIFo method is 
utilized in determining inventory value as it results in better matching of 
costs and revenues.

D. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

assets held for sale are reported at the lower of fair value less cost to sell 
or carrying value. at December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006, $24.3 
million and $28.2 million, respectively, of financing lease receivables were 
classified as held for sale. these receivables, generated by the Blick busi-
ness within the Security segment, are typically sold in the following year 
for an amount approximating net book value.
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Integration of certain acquisitions requires reduction of redundant person-
nel, closure of facilities, and other restructuring actions related to the 
acquired businesses. In such cases, a restructuring accrual is recorded for 
actions identified in integration strategy plans initially developed by the 
Company as of the acquisition date, with a resulting increase to goodwill. 
as integration strategies are executed, the Company monitors the previ-
ously established restructuring accruals and makes adjustments to the 
extent actual expenditures differ from the estimated accruals. adjustments 
recorded to previously established restructuring accruals until the time 
integration plans are fully executed, not to exceed one year from date of 
original acquisition, are reflected in the final goodwill amount included 
in the purchase price allocation. adjustments made subsequent to the 
finalization of integration strategies, or after one year from the date of 
original acquisition, are appropriately reflected in earnings if increases to 
the originally established accruals are required, while accruals that are not 
fully utilized are recorded as a reduction of goodwill.

2007 acquisitions   the Company completed the acquisition of hSM 
electronic protection Services, Inc. (“hSM”) on January 16, 2007 for 
$546.1 million which was financed with debt and equity units as more 
fully described in note I, long-term Debt and Financing arrangement. the 
hSM acquisition has resulted in $314.5 million of goodwill, none of which 
is deductible for income tax purposes. hSM is a market leader in the north 
american commercial security monitoring industry, with annual revenues of 
approximately $200 million. hSM has a stable customer base, an extensive 
north american field network and the second largest market share in the 
u.S. commercial monitoring market. the acquisition will serve as a growth 
platform in the monitoring sector of the security industry.

the Company also made eight small acquisitions relating to its hydraulic, 
access technologies, industrial storage, mechanical access solutions and 
security integration businesses during 2007 for a combined purchase 
price of $100.5 million. the total purchase price of $646.6 million for the 
2007 acquisitions includes transaction costs and is net of cash acquired. 
amounts allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are based 
upon estimates of fair value.

adjustments to reflect the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed are complete for hSM and a small bolt on acquisition completed 
during the first quarter of 2007. the purchase price allocations for the 
remaining seven minor acquisitions are preliminary, mainly with respect to 
finalization of intangible asset valuations, related deferred taxes, and other 
minor items.

E. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPmENT

(millions of dollars)    2007  2006

land    $ 41.9 $ 43.5
land improvements    17.2  16.3
Buildings    273.3  272.6
leasehold improvements    25.7  21.2
Machinery and equipment    944.9  946.4
Computer software    156.3  129.2

Gross pp&e   $ 1,459.3 $ 1,429.2
less: accumulated  
 depreciation and amortization    890.0  869.8

total    $ 569.3 $ 559.4

Depreciation and amortization expense associated with property, plant and 
equipment was as follows:

(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

Depreciation $ 66.2 $ 69.4 $ 53.5
amortization  17.1  12.2  12.7

Depreciation and  
 amortization expense $ 83.3 $ 81.6 $ 66.2

F. ACQUISITIONS

the Company completed 24 acquisitions during 2007, 2006 and 2005. 
these businesses were acquired pursuant to the Company’s growth and 
portfolio repositioning strategy. the acquisitions were accounted for 
by the purchase method in accordance with SFaS 141 and their results 
are included in the Company’s consolidated operating results from the 
respective acquisition dates. all of the acquisitions have resulted in the 
recognition of goodwill. Goodwill reflects the future earnings and cash 
flow potential of the acquired business in excess of the fair values that 
are assigned to all other identifiable assets and liabilities. Goodwill arises 
because the purchase price paid reflects numerous factors including the 
strategic fit and expected synergies these targets bring to existing opera-
tions, the competitive nature of the bidding process and the prevailing 
market value for comparable companies. SFaS 141 requires all identifi-
able assets and liabilities acquired to be reported at fair value and the 
excess is recorded as goodwill. the Company obtains information during 
due diligence and from other sources which forms the basis for the initial 
allocation of purchase price to the estimated fair value of assets and 
liabilities acquired. In the months following an acquisition, independent 
intangible asset valuation reports, asset appraisals and other data are 
obtained in order to finalize the fair values assigned to acquired assets 
and liabilities.
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the following table summarizes the estimated fair values of major assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed for the 2007 acquisitions in the aggregate:

(millions of dollars)      2007

Current assets, primarily accounts  
 receivable and inventories     $ 45.1
property, plant, and equipment      11.0
Goodwill       387.8
trade names      13.1
Customer relationships      227.3
patents and technology      2.7
other intangible assets      0.2
other assets      22.6

total assets     $ 709.8

Current liabilities     $ 59.4
Deferred tax liabilities and other      3.8

total liabilities     $ 63.2

the weighted average useful lives assigned to the amortizable assets iden-
tified above are trade names – 7 years; customer relationships – 15 years; 
patents and technology – 8 years; and other intangible assets – 4 years. 
Goodwill associated with the 2007 acquisitions that is deductible for tax 
purposes amounts to $46.9 million.

In connection with its acquisition of hSM, the company recorded $1.1 million 
for the severance of approximately 80 employees and $1.9 million for facility 
closure costs to the initial purchase price allocation.

2006 acquisitions   on January 1, 2006, the Company completed the 
acquisition of Facom S.a. (“Facom”) for $477.6 million which was financed 
with a combination of cash on hand and debt issuance. Facom, based in 
France, is a leading european manufacturer of hand and mechanics tools 
with annual revenues approximating $475 million at the time of acquisi-
tion. Facom designs, manufactures and markets the majority of its tool 
product range to professional automotive and industrial end users with 
its well-known industrial tool brands: Facom®, Virax® and uSaG®. Facom 
operates primarily within the premium industrial and automotive tools sec-
tor in europe, while the Company’s pre-existing european customer base is 
focused mainly on the construction and D-I-y (“do-it-yourself”) channels. 
Facom is primarily included in the Company’s Industrial segment while its 
minor D-I-y business is included in the CDIy segment.

as of July 31, 2006, the Company completed a tender offer to acquire approxi-
mately 67% of the outstanding shares of Besco pneumatic Corporation 
(“Besco”), a leading manufacturer of pneumatic tools for $38.0 million in 
cash. During the first quarter of 2007, the Company acquired a 20% third party 
interest in a Besco subsidiary for $1 million. Besco, which is headquartered in 
taiwan and also has operations in China, possesses state-of-the-art research 
and development capabilities and efficient production facilities. Besco was 
one of Stanley fastening systems’ largest suppliers and approximately half of 
its 2005 sales of $38 million were to the Company. the acquisition is a key 
step in reducing fastening systems’ cost structure.

the Company also made five bolt-on acquisitions and increased its invest-
ment in a previously consolidated joint venture during 2006 for a combined 
purchase price of $33.9 million. the total purchase price of $549.5 million 
for the 2006 acquisitions reflects transaction costs and is net of cash 
acquired. amounts allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
are based on estimates of fair value. the purchase price allocation of 
Besco includes 100% of the acquired assets and liabilities, of which $21.1 
million is a non-controlling interest that is reflected in other liabilities in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

the following table summarizes the estimated fair values of major assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed for the 2006 acquisitions in the aggregate:

(millions of dollars)      2006

Current assets, primarily accounts  
 receivable and inventories     $ 266.1
property, plant, and equipment      95.2
Goodwill       284.5
trade names      175.4
Customer relationships      18.7
patents and technology      17.0
other intangible assets      1.8
other assets      9.3

total assets     $ 868.0

Current liabilities     $ 214.6
Deferred tax liabilities      27.3
other liabilities      79.0

total liabilities     $ 320.9

other liabilities primarily consist of liabilities for warranty, environmental 
and employee benefit obligations associated with the Facom acquisition 
and the previously discussed $21.1 million Besco non-controlling interest.

the weighted average useful lives assigned to the amortizable assets iden-
tified above are trade names – 7 years; customer relationships – 14 years; 
patents and technology – 15 years; and other intangible assets – 9 years. 
the amount allocated to the trade names includes $171.5 million associated 
with the Facom acquisition (Facom®, Virax®, and uSaG®) which have been 
determined to have indefinite lives. Goodwill associated with the 2006 
acquisitions that is deductible for tax purposes amounts to $0.6 million.

Pro forma earninGs for acquisitions   the information for 
2007, 2006 and 2005 set forth below reflects the pro forma consolidated 
results as if the 2007, 2006, and 2005 acquisitions had occurred at the 
beginning of 2005. non-recurring expenses of the acquired companies 
have been eliminated, while the effects of the Company’s inventory step-up 
charges, increased intangible asset amortization expense, taxes and inter-
est have been added to the results below. 
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operating results for the acquisitions during these pre-acquisition periods 
are not necessarily indicative of future results.

(millions of dollars, except Per share amounts) (unaudited)

    2007  2006  2005

net sales $ 4,517.3 $ 4,302.7 $ 4,208.3
net earnings $ 337.3 $ 292.3 $ 302.0
Diluted earnings per share $ 4.01 $ 3.49 $ 3.54

g.  gOODWILL AND OTHER  
INTANgIBLE ASSETS

GoodWill  the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment 
are as follows:

(millions of dollars) cdiy industrial security total

Balance December 30, 2006 $ 235.8 $ 319.0 $ 545.4 $ 1,100.2
acquisitions during the year  –  42.4  345.4  387.8
Foreign currency translation  
 and other  4.8  24.6  20.3  49.7

Balance december 29, 2007 $ 240.6 $ 386.0 $ 911.1 $ 1,537.7

other intanGiBle assets  other intangible assets at December 
29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 were as follows: 

(millions of dollars) 2007 2006

 Gross  Gross 
 carrying accumulated Carrying accumulated 
 amount amortization amount amortization

amortized Intangible assets    
 –Definite lives    
 patents and copyrights $ 61.3 $ (34.1) $ 57.0 $ (26.1)
 trade names  42.0  (21.2)  27.7  (15.5)
 Customer relationships  460.4  (130.8)  230.4  (67.1)
 other intangible assets  44.5  (28.9)  38.5  (22.0)

total  $ 608.2 $ (215.0) $ 353.6 $ (130.7)

total indefinite lived trademarks are $321.7 million at December 29, 2007 
and $298.4 million at December 30, 2006.

aggregate other intangible assets amortization expense by segment was as 
follows:

(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

CDIy  $ 6.5 $ 6.0 $ 5.9
Industrial  6.8  5.0  0.7
Security  65.6  28.6  23.7

Consolidated $ 78.9 $ 39.6 $ 30.3

Future estimated amortization expense is $68.4 million for 2008, $57.1 
million for 2009, $47.3 million for 2010, $39.3 million for 2011 and $32.4 
million for 2012.

H. ACCRUED EXPENSES

accrued expenses at December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 were 
as follows:

(millions of dollars)    2007  2006

payroll and related taxes   $ 104.0 $ 94.5
trade allowances    81.2  65.4
Deferred revenue    50.8  21.9
Income and other taxes    42.1  36.7
Insurance and benefits    30.3  35.0
restructuring costs    23.7  63.1
other    144.0  169.3

total    $ 476.1 $ 485.9

I.   LONg-TERm DEBT AND  
FINANCINg ARRANgEmENTS

long-term debt and financing arrangements at December 29, 2007 and 
December 30, 2006 follow:

(millions of dollars)  interest rate  2007  2006

notes payable in 2007  4.5% $ – $ 75.0
notes payable in 2007  3.5%  –  150.0
u.k. loan notes,  
 payable on demand u.k. libor less 0.5%  1.3  1.5
eSop loan guarantees,  
 payable in varying  
 monthly installments  
 through 2009  6.1%  4.2  4.8
Industrial revenue Bonds  
 due in 2010  6.3-6.8%  5.6  5.6
notes payable in 2010  5.0%  199.8  –
notes payable in 2012  4.9%  200.0  200.0
Convertible notes  
 payable in 2012  2.0%  330.0  –
notes payable in 2045  
 (subordinated)   5.9%  450.1  450.1
other, payable in varying  
 amounts through 2013  0.0-7.8%  31.4  22.5

total debt   $ 1,222.4 $ 909.5
less: current maturities    10.3  230.3

long-term debt   $ 1,212.1 $ 679.2

During 2007, the Company initially funded the $546.1 million hSM acquisi-
tion with a combination of short-term borrowings and cash. a $500.0 million 
364-day revolving credit bridge facility was entered into on January 8, 2007, 
of which $130.0 million was utilized to acquire hSM; the remainder of the 
hSM purchase price was funded through commercial paper borrowings 
and cash.
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on March 20, 2007, the Company completed two security offerings: 
“equity units”, which consisted of $330.0 million of convertible debt and 
$330.0 million of forward stock purchase contracts; and $200.0 million of 
unsecured notes (the “term notes”). with respect to the $860.0 million in 
offerings, the Company will not receive the $330.0 million cash pertaining 
to the forward stock purchase contracts until May, 2010. the $488.1 million 
net cash proceeds of these offerings and the related financial instruments 
described below were used to pay down the short-term bridge facility and 
commercial paper borrowings.

the term notes   on March 20, 2007, the Company issued $200.0 
million of unsecured term notes maturing March 15, 2010 with fixed inter-
est payable semi-annually, in arrears at a rate of 5.0% per annum. the 
term notes rank equally with other unsecured and unsubordinated debt of 
the Company. the $199.7 million of debt recorded reflects a $0.3 million 
discount to achieve a flat 5.0% fixed interest rate. the Company received 
proceeds from the term notes of $198.9 million net of this discount and 
underwriters fees; this $1.1 million in discount and fees will be amortized 
to interest expense over the three year term.

the term notes include a change in control provision (“Change in Control 
provision”) that would apply in the event there is a Change in Control (as 
defined in the Indenture governing the term notes) and the term notes are 
rated below investment grade. the Change in Control provision provides 
investors with the right to require the Company to repurchase all or any part 
of their term notes in cash at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount 
plus accrued and unpaid interest.

equity units   on March 20, 2007, the Company issued 330,000 equity 
units, each with a stated value of $1,000. the equity units are comprised 
of a senior convertible note (a “Convertible note”) and a forward common 
stock purchase contract (an “equity purchase Contract”). the Company 
received $320.1 million in cash proceeds from the equity units offering, 
net of underwriting fees, and recorded $330.0 million in long-term debt 
for the Convertible notes. these proceeds were used to repay short-term 
borrowings and, along with $18.8 million in proceeds from the sale of stock 
warrants, to fund the $49.3 million cost of the convertible notes hedge as 
more fully described below.

EQUITY PURCHASE CONTRACTS  the equity purchase Contracts obli-
gate the holders to purchase on May 17, 2010, newly issued shares of 
the Company’s common stock for $330.0 million in cash. a maximum of 
6.1 million shares of common stock may be issued on the May 17, 2010 
settlement date, subject to adjustment for standard anti-dilution provi-
sions. equity purchase Contract holders may elect to settle their obligation 
early, in cash. the Convertible notes, described further on, are pledged as 
collateral to guarantee the holders’ obligations to purchase common stock 
under the terms of the equity purchase Contracts. the agreed upon number 
of shares that each equity purchase Contract holder must purchase is called 
the “settlement amount”. the settlement amount is equal to the sum of the 
daily settlement amounts determined over a 20 consecutive trading day 

period (the “observation period”) ending on and including the third trading 
day prior to the purchase contract settlement date. the settlement amount 
may be affected by standard anti-dilution protection provisions in the equity 
purchase Contracts or a cash merger. In effect, the Company will receive a 
minimum purchase price from investors of approximately $54.45 per share. 
the daily settlement amount for each trading day during the observation 
period is calculated as follows:

>  if the applicable market value of the Company’s common stock on that 
trading day is less than or equal to $54.45 (the “reference price”), the 
daily settlement amount for that trading day will be 0.9183 shares of the 
Company’s common stock; and

>  if the applicable market value of the Company’s common stock on that 
trading day is greater than the reference price, the daily settlement 
amount for that trading day will be a number of shares of the Company’s 
common stock equal to $50 divided by the applicable market value, 
rounded to the nearest ten thousandth share.

holders of the equity purchase Contract are paid a quarterly contract adjust-
ment payment (“Contract adjustment payment”) of 5.125% per annum, and 
the first payment thereof was made august 17, 2007. the $49.6 million 
present value of the Contract adjustment payments reduced Shareowners’ 
equity at inception. as each quarterly Contract adjustment payment is 
made, the related liability will be relieved with the difference between the 
cash payment and the present value of the Contract adjustment payment 
recorded as interest expense; accordingly, earnings will be affected over 
the total three year term by approximately $3.9 million for this accretion.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES  the $330.0 million Convertible notes have a five-
year maturity and are due May 17, 2012. at maturity, the Company is obli-
gated to repay the principal in cash, and may elect to settle the conversion 
option value, if any, as detailed further below, in either cash or shares of the 
Company’s common stock. the Convertible notes bear interest at an annual 
rate of 3-month lIBor minus 3.5%, reset quarterly (but never less than 
zero), and initially set at 1.85%. Interest is payable quarterly commencing 
august 17, 2007. the Convertible notes are unsecured general obligations 
and rank equally with all of the Company’s other unsecured and unsubordi-
nated debt. the Convertible notes are pledged as collateral to guarantee 
the holders’ obligations to purchase common stock under the terms of the 
equity purchase Contract described above.

the Company is obligated to remarket the Convertible notes commencing on 
May 10, 2010 to the extent that holders of the Convertible note element of 
an equity unit or holders of separate Convertible notes elect to participate 
in the remarketing. holders of equity units who elect to have the Convertible 
note element of these units not participate in the remarketing must create a 
treasury unit (replace the Convertible notes with a zero-coupon u.S. treasury 
security as substitute collateral to guarantee their performance under the 
equity purchase Contract), settle the equity purchase Contract early or settle 
it in cash prior to May 17, 2010. upon a successful remarketing, the proceeds 
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version option feature becomes “in the money” during the five year term 
of the Convertible notes, diluted shares outstanding will increase accord-
ingly. Because the Bond hedge is anti-dilutive, it will not be included in any 
diluted shares outstanding computation prior to its maturity. however, at 
maturity of the Convertible notes and the Bond hedge in 2012, the aggre-
gate effect of these instruments is that there will be no net increase in the 
Company’s common shares.

stock Warrants   Simultaneously, the Company issued 5,092,956 
of unregistered common stock warrants (“Stock warrants”) to financial 
institutions for $18.8 million. the cash proceeds received were recorded 
as an increase to Shareowners’ equity. the Stock warrants are exercisable 
during the period august 17, 2012 through September 28, 2012, and have 
a strike price of $87.12 established at 160% of the market value of $54.45 
on the issuance date. the Stock warrants will be net share settled and are 
deemed to automatically be exercised at their expiration date if they are “in 
the money” and were not previously exercised. the strike price for the Stock 
warrants may be adjusted for increases to the Company’s dividend rate 
per share, or special dividends, if any, that occur during their five year term 
(consistent with the standard anti-dilution provisions discussed earlier with 
respect to the conversion spread on the Convertible notes). In the event 
the Stock warrants become “in the money” during their five year term due 
to the market value of the Company’s common stock exceeding the $87.12 
strike price, there will be a related increase in diluted shares outstanding 
utilized in the determination of the Company’s diluted earnings per share.

etPs  In november 2005, the Company issued $450.1 million of junior subor-
dinated debt securities to the Stanley works Capital trust I (the “trust”), with 
a 40-year term and a fixed initial coupon rate of 5.902% for the first five years. 
the trust, which is not consolidated in accordance with Financial accounting 
Standards Board Interpretation no. 46r, “Consolidation of Variable Interest 
entities, an interpretation of arB no. 51” (“FIn46r”), obtained the funds it 
loaned to the Company through the capital market sale of $450.0 million of 
enhanced trust preferred Securities (“etpS”) and through the sale of $0.1 
million in trust Common Securities to the Company. the obligations, tenor and 
terms of the etpS mirror those of the junior subordinated debt securities. the 
securities may be redeemed after five years without penalty. If not redeemed 
after five years, the coupon rate will reset quarterly to 1.4% plus the highest 
of 3-month lIBor, the 10-year uS treasury CMt or the 30-year uS treasury 
CMt, limited to a maximum rate of 13.25%. net proceeds of the issuance 
were used to partially finance the acquisitions of Facom (January 1, 2006) and 
national (november 30, 2005).

In February and november of 2007, the Company paid down $75.5 million and 
$150.0 million, respectively, of long-term debt that matured. aggregate 
annual maturities of long-term debt for each of the years from 2008 
to 2012 are $10.3 million, $10.8 million, $210.8 million, $4.9 million and 
$534.5 million, respectively. 

will be utilized to satisfy in full the equity unit holders’ obligations to purchase 
the Company’s common stock under the equity purchase Contract. In the 
event the remarketing of the Convertible notes is not successful, the holders 
may elect to pay cash or to deliver the Convertible notes to the Company as 
consideration to satisfy their obligation to purchase common shares under the 
equity purchase Contract.

the conversion premium for the Convertible notes is 19.0%, equivalent 
to the initial conversion price of $64.80 based on the $54.45 value of the 
Company’s common stock at the date of issuance. upon conversion on May 
17, 2012 (or a cash merger event), the Company will deliver to each holder 
of the Convertible notes $1,000 cash for the principal amount of the note. 
additionally at conversion, to the extent, if any, that the conversion option 
is “in the money”, the Company will deliver, at its election, either cash or 
shares of the Company’s common stock based on an initial conversion rate of 
15.4332 shares (equivalent to the initial conversion price set at $64.80) and 
the applicable market value of the Company’s common stock. the ultimate 
conversion rate may be increased above 15.4332 shares in accordance with 
standard anti-dilution provisions applicable to the Convertible notes or in 
the event of a cash merger. an increase in the ultimate conversion rate will 
apply if the Company increases the per share common stock dividend rate 
during the five year term of the Convertible notes; accordingly such changes 
to the conversion rate are within the Company’s control under its discretion 
regarding dividends it may declare. also, the holders may elect to accelerate 
conversion, and “make whole” adjustments to the conversion rate may apply, 
in the event of a cash merger or “fundamental change”. Subject to the 
foregoing, if the market value of the Company’s common shares is below the 
conversion price at conversion, (initially set at a rate equating to $64.80 per 
share), the conversion option would be “out of the money” and the Company 
would have no obligation to deliver any consideration beyond the $1,000 prin-
cipal payment required under each of the Convertible notes. to the extent, 
if any, that the conversion option of the Convertible notes becomes “in the 
money” in any interim period prior to conversion, there will be a related 
increase in diluted shares outstanding utilized in the determination of the 
Company’s diluted earnings per share in accordance with the treasury stock 
method prescribed by SFaS 128, earnings per Share.

convertiBle notes hedGe   In order to offset the common shares 
that may be deliverable pertaining to the previously discussed conver-
sion option feature of the Convertible notes, the Company entered into 
convertible note hedges (“the Bond hedge”) with certain major financial 
institutions. the Company paid the financial institutions a premium of 
$49.3 million for the Bond hedge which was recorded, net of $13.0 million 
of anticipated tax benefits, as a reduction of Shareowners’ equity. the 
terms of the Bond hedge mirror those of the conversion option feature of 
the Convertible notes such that the financial institutions may be required 
to deliver shares of the Company’s common stock to the Company upon 
conversion at its exercise in May 2012. to the extent, if any, that the con-
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Included in Short-term borrowings on the Consolidated Balance Sheets 
as of December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006, is commercial paper of 
$279.4 million and $31.1 million, respectively. In addition, the Company has 
uncommitted short-term lines of credit with numerous banks aggregating 
$340.2 million, of which $322.1 million was available at December 29, 2007. 
Short-term arrangements are reviewed annually for renewal. the aggregate 
long-term and short-term lines amounted to $890.2 million. the Company’s 
$550.0 million committed credit facility is designated as a liquidity back-
stop for its commercial paper program. the weighted average interest rates 
on short-term borrowings at December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 
were 4.6% and 4.7%, respectively. 

Interest paid during 2007, 2006, and 2005 amounted to $85.0 million, $70.3 
million and $38.9 million, respectively. to manage interest costs and to 
better match financial obligations to sources of operating cash flows, the 
Company maintains a portfolio of swap agreements. See note J Financial 
Instruments for more information regarding the Company’s interest rate and 
currency swap agreements.

J. FINANCIAL INSTRUmENTS

the Company’s objectives in using debt and foreign currency related 
financial instruments are to obtain the lowest cost source of funds within 
a targeted range of variable to fixed-rate debt proportions, to better match 
financial obligations to sources of operating cash flows, and to minimize the 
foreign exchange risks arising from cross-border cash flows. to meet these 
risk management objectives, the Company enters into interest rate swap 
and currency swap agreements, purchased currency options and foreign 
exchange contracts. Derivative instruments are not employed for specu-
lative purposes. Derivatives are recognized in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets at fair value and hedge accounting is applied based on the criteria 
specified in SFaS no. 133, “accounting for Derivative Instruments and 
hedging activities”, whereby management designates its derivative instru-
ments as cash flow hedges, fair value hedges or net investment hedges.

cash floW hedGes   Foreign exchange forward contracts are used to 
hedge multi-currency inter-company and trade cash flows expected to occur 
over the next eighteen month period. the objective of these instruments is 
to minimize the impact of foreign currency fluctuations on operating results. 
In addition, interest rate swaps are utilized to create a fixed rate liability, to 
achieve the targeted mix of fixed versus floating rate debt.

FORWARD CONTRACTS  at December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006, 
forward contracts hedging inter-company transactions totaled $206.3 
million and $72.8 million, respectively. these foreign exchange forward 
contracts are denominated in australian Dollars, Canadian Dollars, euros, 
Great Britain pounds and taiwanese Dollars. the aggregate fair value of 
these forward contracts as of December 29, 2007 is a $5.4 million gain that 
is recorded in other Current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

INTEREST RATE SWAPS  the Company has executed interest rate swaps to 
convert floating rate debt to a fixed coupon. at December 29, 2007, the aggre-
gate fair value of the outstanding interest rate swaps is a net loss of $6.1 million 
as reflected in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

In March 2007, concurrent with the issuance of the equity units, the 
Company executed interest rate swaps with an aggregate notional amount 
of $330.0 million to convert the floating rate coupon on the Convertible 
notes (lIBor less 350 basis points) to a fixed rate coupon (1.43%) for a 
period of three years. at December 29, 2007, the aggregate fair value of the 
outstanding interest rate swaps is a net loss of $6.3 million as reflected in 
other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

In February 2007, the Company entered into an interest rate swap prior to 
the issuance of its term notes with an aggregate notional value of $200.0 
million. this swap was used to mitigate interest rate volatility relative to 
the three year treasury rate by effectively fixing the interest rate for the 
term notes. the interest rate swap had an original maturity of March 
19, 2010, which matched the end of the fixed rate term notes term. as 
planned, the swap was terminated at the time of the term notes issuance, 
resulting in a cash loss of $0.4 million (pre-tax), as reflected in accumulated 
other comprehensive income in the Consolidated Balance Sheet; this loss 
will be amortized to interest expense over a period of three years.

In october 2007, the Company terminated two interest rate swaps which 
exchanged the floating rate associated with two of its major distribution 
centers to a fixed rent amount. the interest rates swaps had an aggre-
gated notional amount of $29.5 million and resulted in an immaterial net 
loss upon termination. 

additionally, in 2005 the Company entered into a thirty year floating to fixed 
interest rate swap with a notional value of $150 million. the swap hedged 
the interest rate exposure associated with the forecasted refinancing 
of the $150.0 million 3.5% bonds maturing november 2007. During 2006 
the swap was terminated, resulting in a $5.9 million gain before tax. the 
termination of this financial instrument was consistent with the Company’s 
risk management objective to obtain the lowest cost source of funds within 
a targeted range of variable to fixed rate interest rate proportions. the 
gain arising from the swap termination was reflected in accumulated other 
comprehensive income in the Consolidated Balance Sheet during 2006. In 
november 2007, upon the maturity of the bonds linked to the associated 
hedged interest rate exposure, $5.0 million of the gain was reclassified 
out of accumulated other comprehensive income and recorded as a gain in 
other-net in the Consolidated Statement of operations. the remaining $0.9 
million in accumulated other comprehensive income will be amortized as a 
reduction to interest expense through May 2012. 
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cash flows from operations, the Company entered into various cross cur-
rency swaps. the swaps have an aggregate united States Dollar notional 
value of $181.9 million with maturity dates ranging from December 2008 
to September 2010. at December 29, 2007 the aggregate fair value of 
the Company’s cross currency swaps that were designated as fair value 
hedges, was a net gain of $0.8 million as reflected in other assets in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. In December 2007 and in conjunction with 
the settlement of two inter-company obligations, the Company terminated 
two cross currency swaps with notional values of $83.6 million and $39.1 
million, respectively.

net investment hedGe   the Company utilizes net investment 
hedges to offset the translation adjustment arising from remeasuring its 
investment in the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of its foreign 
subsidiaries. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as 
net investment hedges, the Company records the effective portion of the 
gain or loss on the derivative instrument in accumulated other comprehen-
sive income.

In February 2004, the Company entered into a cross currency swap with a 
united States Dollar notional value of $45.4 million to hedge its net invest-
ment in Great Britain pound assets. the Company pays Great Britain pounds 
and receives united States Dollars using fixed interest rates, offsetting the 
translation adjustment of its net investment in Great Britain pound assets. 
this swap has a maturity date of February 2014. at December 29, 2007, the 
fair value of this currency swap was a loss of $4.9 million and is recorded 
in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and the pre-tax loss 
on the net investment hedge included in accumulated other comprehensive 
income is $5.7 million.

In December 2006, the Company entered into a cross currency swap with 
a notional value of $100 million and a maturity of December 2009 to hedge 
its net investment of euro assets. the Company paid euros and received 
united States Dollars using fixed interest rates, offsetting the translation 
adjustment of its net investment in euro assets. at December 29, 2007, the 
fair value of this currency swap was a loss of $9.6 million as reported in 
other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and the loss on the net 
investment hedge included in accumulated other Comprehensive loss was 
$9.6 million before taxes.

undesiGnated hedGes   purchased currency options and foreign 
exchange forward contracts are used to reduce exchange risks arising from 
cross-border cash flows expected to occur over the next one year period. 
the objective of these practices is to minimize the impact of foreign currency 
fluctuations on operating results.

CROSS CURRENCY SWAPS  the Company and its subsidiaries have 
entered into various inter-company transactions whereby the notional 
values were denominated in currencies (united States Dollar, euro and 
Canadian Dollar) other than the functional currencies of the party executing 
the trade (united States Dollar and euro). In order to better match the cash 
flows of its inter-company obligations with cash flows from operations, the 
Company entered into cross currency swaps. the swaps have an aggregate 
united States Dollar notional value of $263.8 million and maturity dates 
ranging from March 2009 to november 2010. at December 29, 2007, the 
aggregate fair value of the Company’s cross currency swaps that were des-
ignated as cash flow hedges, was a net loss of $68.0 million as reflected in 
other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

For derivative instruments that are so designated at inception and qualify as 
cash flow hedges, the Company records the effective portions of the gain 
or loss on the derivative instrument in accumulated other comprehensive 
income, a separate component of Shareowners’ equity, and subsequently 
reclassifies these amounts into earnings in the period during which the 
hedged transaction is recognized in earnings. the ineffective portion of the 
gain or loss, if any, is immediately recognized in the same caption where the 
hedged items are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of operations, 
generally other-net. there is a $5.1 million after-tax gain reported for cash 
flow hedge effectiveness in accumulated other comprehensive income as 
of December 29, 2007. any gain or loss on these instruments at maturity 
will be reclassified to earnings when the hedged transactions occur in the 
years 2008 through 2010. the ultimate amount recognized will vary based 
on fluctuations of the hedged currencies (united States Dollar, euro, Great 
Britain pound, australian Dollar and Canadian Dollar) through the maturity 
dates. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, ($31.7) million, $25.7 million and ($12.7) 
million, respectively, pertaining to cash flow hedges, was reclassified from 
accumulated other comprehensive income into earnings, during the periods 
in which the underlying hedged transactions affected earnings; due to the 
effectiveness of these instruments in matching the underlying on a net 
basis there was no significant earnings impact.

fair value hedGes   For derivative instruments that are designated 
and qualify as fair value hedges, the Company recognizes the gain or loss on 
the derivative instrument in earnings in the same caption where the offset-
ting gain or loss on the hedged item is recognized in the current period.

CROSS CURRENCY SWAPS  the Company and its subsidiaries have 
entered into various inter-company transactions where the notional values 
are denominated in currencies (united States Dollar, Canadian Dollar, euro 
and Great Britain pound) other than the functional currencies of the party 
executing the trade (united States Dollar, Great Britain pound and euro). In 
order to better match the cash flows of its inter-company obligations with 
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at December 29, 2007, forward contracts hedging inter-company transac-
tions totaled $290.1 million. these foreign exchange forward contracts are 
denominated in australian Dollars, Canadian Dollars, Danish krone, euro, 
Japanese yen, Great Britain pound, Mexican pesos, new Zealand Dollars, 
polish Zloty, South african rand, Swiss Franc, Swedish krona, taiwanese 
Dollars and thai Baht. the contracts mature in less than one year. the 
aggregate fair value of these forward contracts is a $0.9 million gain that is 
recorded in other Current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

hedGe effectiveness   For forward contracts and cross currency 
swaps designated as cash flow, fair value or net investment hedges, the 
Company measures hedge effectiveness by comparing the cumulative 
change in the hedge contract with the cumulative change in the hedged 
item, both of which are based on forward rates. the ineffective portion, if 
any, of the hedge is recognized in earnings immediately. hedge ineffective-
ness was negligible for 2007, 2006 and 2005.

For interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges, the Company 
measures the hedge effectiveness by offsetting the change in the variable 
portion of the interest rate swap with the change in the expected interest 
flows due to fluctuations in the lIBor based interest rate.

the counterparties to all of the above mentioned financial instruments are 
major international financial institutions. the Company is exposed to credit 
risk for net exchanges under these agreements, but not for the notional 
amounts. the risk of default is considered remote.

the carrying values and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at 
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 follow:

(millions of dollars, (asset)/liability) 2007 2006

   carrying  fair  Carrying  Fair 
   value  value  Value  Value

long-term Debt,  
 Including Current portion $ 1,212.1 $ 1,152.0 $ 909.5 $ 873.5
undesignated hedges:    
 Forward contracts  (0.9)  (0.9)  0.2  0.2
Cash Flow hedges:    
 Forward contracts  (5.4)  (5.4)  (0.9)  (0.9)
 Interest rate swaps   6.1  6.1  (0.4)  (0.4)
 Cross currency swaps  68.0  68.0  38.5  38.5
Fair Value hedges:    
 Cross currency swaps  (0.8)  (0.8)  14.3  14.3
net Investment hedges:    
 Cross currency swaps  14.5  14.5  5.7  5.7

total Financial Instruments $ 1,293.6 $ 1,233.5 $ 966.9 $ 930.9

the fair values of long-term debt instruments are estimated using discount-
ed cash flow analysis, based on the Company’s marginal borrowing rates. 
the fair values of foreign currency and interest rate swap agreements are 
based on current settlement values. the carrying amount of cash equiva-
lents and short-term borrowings approximates fair value.

K. CAPITAL STOCK

WeiGhted-averaGe shares outstandinG   weighted-average 
shares outstanding used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share 
for each year were as follows:

   2007 2006 2005

Basic earnings per share,  
 weighted-average  
 shares outstanding 82,312,724 81,866,241 83,346,898
Dilutive effect of stock  
 options and awards 1,732,848 1,838,131 2,058,820

Diluted earnings per share,  
 weighted-average  
 shares outstanding 84,045,572 83,704,372 85,405,718

as further detailed in note I, long-term Debt and Financing arrangements, 
in March 2007, the Company issued warrants to purchase up to 5.1 million 
shares of its common stock with a strike price of $87.12 which are anti-
dilutive since the strike price of the warrants is greater than the market 
price of the Company’s common stock. a number of stock options are anti-
dilutive primarily because remaining unrecognized compensation expense 
exceeds the amount by which the market price for the Company’s common 
stock exceeds the exercise price of the options that have not vested. 

the following weighted-average stock options and warrants to purchase 
the Company’s common stock were outstanding at December 29, 2007 and 
December 30, 2006 but were not included in the computation of diluted 
shares outstanding because the effect would be anti-dilutive.

   year to date

      2007  2006

number of stock options (in thousands)   824  738
number of stock warrants (in thousands)   3,918  –

the Company repurchased 3.8 million shares of its common stock for $206.9 
million during 2007.

common stock share activity  Common stock share activity 
for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was as follows:

   2007 2006 2005

outstanding, beginning of year 81,841,627 83,791,129 82,407,063
Issued from treasury 2,323,973 2,076,722 1,388,179
returned to treasury (3,786,813) (4,026,224) (4,113)

outstanding, end of year 80,378,787 81,841,627 83,791,129

common stock reserved   Common stock shares reserved for issu-
ance under various employee and director stock plans at December 29, 2007 
and December 30, 2006 are as follows:

    2007 2006

employee stock purchase plan  3,278,892  3,347,740
Stock-based compensation plans  3,894,296 5,312,881

total   7,173,188 8,660,621
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Preferred stock Purchase riGhts   each outstanding share of 
common stock has one half of a share purchase right. each purchase right 
may be exercised to purchase one two-hundredth of a share of Series a 
Junior participating preferred Stock at an exercise price of $220.00, subject 
to adjustment. the rights, which do not have voting rights, expire on March 
10, 2016, and may be redeemed by the Company at a price of $0.01 per 
right at any time prior to the tenth day following the public announcement 
that a person has acquired beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the 
outstanding shares of common stock. In the event that the Company is 
acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction, provision 
shall be made so that each holder of a right (other than a holder who is a 
14.9%-or-more shareowner) shall have the right to receive, upon exercise 
thereof, that number of shares of common stock of the surviving Company 
having a market value equal to two times the exercise price of the right. 
Similarly, if anyone becomes the beneficial owner of more than 15% of the 
then outstanding shares of common stock (except pursuant to an offer for 
all outstanding shares of common stock which the independent directors 
have deemed to be fair and in the best interest of the Company), provi-
sion will be made so that each holder of a right (other than a holder who 
is a 14.9%-or-more shareowner) shall thereafter have the right to receive, 
upon exercise thereof, common stock (or, in certain circumstances, cash, 
property or other securities of the Company) having a market value equal 
to two times the exercise price of the right. at December 29, 2007 there 
were 40,189,394 outstanding rights. there are 250,000 shares of Series a 
Junior participating preferred Stock reserved for issuance in connection 
with the rights.

stock-Based comPensation Plans   the Company has stock-
based compensation plans for salaried employees and non-employee 
members of the Board of Directors. the plans provide for discretionary grants 
of stock options, restricted stock units, and other stock-based awards. the 
plans are generally administered by the Compensation and organization 
Committee of the Board of Directors, consisting of non-employee directors.

STOCK OPTIONS   Stock options are granted at the fair market value of the 
Company’s stock on the date of grant and have a 10 year term. Generally, 
stock option grants vest ratably between one and four years from the 
date of grant. the expense for stock options granted to retirement eligible 
employees (those aged 55 and over and with 10 or more years of service) 
is recognized by the date they became retirement eligible, or on the date of 
grant if they are already retirement eligible, as such employees may retain 
their options for the 10 year contractual term in the event they retire prior 
to the end of the vesting period stipulated in the grant.

the following describes how certain assumptions affecting the estimated 
fair value of stock options are determined: the dividend yield is computed as 
the annualized dividend rate at the date of grant divided by the strike price 
of the stock option; expected volatility is based on an average of the market 
implied volatility and historical volatility for the 5 year expected life; the 
risk-free interest rate is based on u.S. treasury securities with maturities 
equal to the expected life of the option; and an eight percent forfeiture rate 
is assumed. the Company uses historical data in order to estimate exercise, 
termination and holding period behavior for valuation purposes.

the number of stock options and weighted-average exercise prices follows:

  2007 2006 2005

  options Price options price options price

outstanding,  
 beginning  
 of year 8,456,508 $36.31 9,559,604 $34.06 10,507,908 $32.46
Granted 743,000 53.11 934,000 50.44 795,000 47.22
exercised (1,820,355) 36.10 (1,817,695) 31.44 (1,229,350) 28.89
Forfeited (325,254) 42.99 (219,401) 37.71 (513,954) 33.60

outstanding,  
 end of year 7,053,899 $37.83 8,456,508 $36.31 9,559,604 $34.06

exercisable,  
 end of year 5,114,357 $33.46 5,619,112 $32.88 6,259,563 $31.28

at December 29, 2007, the range of exercise prices on outstanding stock 
options was $19.34 to $63.04. Stock option expense was $8.6 million and 
$8.2 million for the years ended December 29, 2007 and December 30, 
2006, respectively. no stock option expense was recognized in the year 
ended December 31, 2005 because under apB 25, no compensation cost 
was recognized for stock options when the quoted market price of the stock 
at the grant date was equal to the amount per share the employee had to 
pay to acquire the stock after fulfilling the vesting period.

the fair value of each stock option grant was estimated on the date of grant 
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted 
average assumptions used for grants in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively: 
dividend yield of 2.4%, 2.4% and 2.4%; expected volatility of 28%, 26%, 
27%; and risk-free interest rates of 3.6%, 4.2%, 4.4%. an expected life of 
5 years was used in each period and a weighted average vesting period of 
2.5 years in 2007, 2.3 years in 2006 and 2.5 years in 2005. the weighted 
average fair value of stock options granted in 2007, 2006 and 2005 was 
$12.15, $12.03, and $11.44, respectively.

at December 29, 2007, the Company had $15.6 million of unrecognized pre-
tax compensation expense for stock options. this expense will be recog-
nized over the remaining vesting periods which are 1.6 years on a weighted 
average basis. 

For 2007, the Company received $65.7 million in cash from the exercise of stock 
options. the related tax benefit from the exercise of these options is $16.5 mil-
lion. During 2007, 2006 and 2005 the total intrinsic value of options exercised 
was $37.9 million, $35.5 million and $23.3 million, respectively. when options 
are exercised, the related shares are issued from treasury stock.

SFaS 123r requires the benefit arising from tax deductions in excess of 
recognized compensation cost to be classified as a financing cash flow 
rather than as an operating cash flow as all such tax benefits were clas-
sified under earlier accounting guidance. to quantify the recognized com-
pensation cost on which the excess tax benefit is computed, both actual 
compensation expense recorded following the adoption of SFaS 123r on 
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January 1, 2006 and pro-forma compensation cost reported in disclosures 
under the previous SFaS 123 standard in earlier periods is considered. an 
excess tax benefit is generated on the extent to which the actual gain, or 
spread, an optionee receives upon exercise of an option exceeds the fair 
value determined at the grant date; that excess spread over the fair value 
of the option times the applicable tax rate represents the excess tax ben-
efit. In 2007 and 2006, the Company reported $8.6 million and $4.1 million, 
respectively, of excess tax benefits as a financing cash flow.

outstanding and exercisable stock option information at December 29, 
2007 follows:

 outstanding exercisable  
 stock options stock options

    Weighted- 
    average Weighted-  Weighted- 
exercise  remaining average  average 
Price   contractual exercise  exercise 
ranges options life Price options Price

$30.00 and below 1,086,475 2.18 $ 23.69 1,072,225 $ 23.64

$30.01 – 45.00 3,764,107 4.52  34.50 3,471,232  34.00

$45.01 – higher 2,203,317 8.75  50.49 570,900  48.63

   7,053,899 5.48 $ 37.83 5,114,357 $ 33.46

RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS  Compensation cost for restricted share units, 
including restricted shares granted to French employees in lieu of rSu’s, 
(collectively “rSu’s”) granted to employees is recognized ratably over the 
vesting term, which varies but is generally four years. rSu grants totaled 
228,125 shares, 169,675 shares and 122,891 shares in 2007, 2006 and 
2005, respectively. the weighted-average grant date fair value of rSu’s 
granted in 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $49.13, $49.28 and $47.28 per share, 
respectively. total compensation expense recognized for rSu’s amounted 
to $7.6 million, $4.1 million and $2.5 million, respectively; and the related 
tax benefit recorded was $2.2 million, $1.0 million and $0.6 million, respec-
tively, in 2007, 2006 and 2005. as of December 29, 2007, unrecognized 
compensation expense for rSu’s amounted to $16.8 million and this cost 
will be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years.

a summary of non-vested restricted stock unit activity as of December 29, 
2007, and changes during the 12 month period then ended is as follows:

       Weighted- 
       average 
       Grant 
     restriced   date fair 
      share units  value

 non-vested at December 30, 2006    289,238 $ 46.76
 Granted    228,125  49.13
 Vested    (96,888)  43.92
 Forfeited    (13,752)  48.23

 non-vested at december 29, 2007   406,723 $ 48.68

the total fair value of shares vested (market value on the date vested) during 
2007, 2006 and 2005 was $5.1 million, $5.2 million and $0.7 million, respectively.

additionally, non-employee members of the Board of Directors received 
restricted share-based grants which must be cash settled and accordingly 
mark-to-market accounting is applied. the after-tax expense recognized for 
such grants amounted to $0.7 million in 2007, $0.8 million in 2006, and $0.6 
million in 2005.

LONG-TERM PERFORMANCE AWARDS

CYCLICAL 3-YEAR PLANS  the Company has granted long-term 
performance awards (“ltIps”) under its 1997 and 2001 long-term Incentive 
plans to senior management employees for achieving Company perfor-
mance measures, specifically earnings per share and return on capital 
employed. awards are payable in shares of common stock, which may be 
restricted if the employee has not achieved certain stock ownership levels, 
and generally no award is made if the employee terminates employment 
prior to the payout date. there are three award cycles in progress: one for 
the three year period ending in December 2007, the second for the three 
year period ending in December 2008, and the third for the three year 
period ending in December 2009. the ultimate issuance of shares, if any, 
is determined based on performance in the final year of the cycle. Based 
on performance in fiscal 2007, a total of 103,807 shares will be issued to 
senior management in 2008. 

SPECIAL BONUS PROGRAM  In 2007, the Company adopted a special 
bonus program under its 1997 long term Incentive plan. the program pro-
vides senior managers the opportunity to receive stock in the event certain 
working capital turn objectives are achieved by December 31, 2009 and sus-
tained for a period of at least six months. the ultimate issuances of shares, if 
any, is determined based on performance during the performance period. 

expense recognized for the various performance-contingent grants amount-
ed to $1.5 million in 2007, $7.4 million in 2006 and $6.4 million in 2005. In 
the event performance goals are not met, no compensation cost is recog-
nized and any previously recognized compensation cost is reversed. a sum-
mary of the activity pertaining to the maximum number of shares that may 
be issued under these performance programs is as follows:

       Weighted- 
       average 
       Grant 
        date fair 
      share units  value

 non-vested at December 30, 2006    655,027 $ 44.23
 Granted    208,692  53.55
 Vested/Delivered    (302,547)  39.13
 Forfeited    (88,653)  44.99

 non-vested at december 29, 2007   472,519 $ 51.92
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EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN  the employee Stock purchase 
plan (“eSpp”) enables substantially all employees in the united States and 
Canada to subscribe at any time to purchase shares of common stock on a 
monthly basis at the lower of 85% of the fair market value of the shares on 
the grant date ($44.77 per share for fiscal year 2007 purchases) or 85% of 
the fair market value of the shares on the last business day of each month. 
a maximum of 6,000,000 shares are authorized for subscription. During 
2007, 2006 and 2005 shares totaling 68,848, 64,590 and 96,683, respec-
tively, were issued under the plan at average prices of $44.33, $39.26 and 
$33.19 per share, respectively and the intrinsic value of the eSpp purchases 
was $0.8 million, $0.6 million and $1.3 million respectively. For 2007, the 
Company received $3.0 million in cash from eSpp purchases, and there is no 
related tax benefit. the fair value of eSpp shares was estimated using the 
Black Scholes option pricing model. eSpp compensation cost is recognized 
ratably over the one year term based on actual employee stock purchases 
under the plan. the fair value of the employees’ purchase rights under 
the eSpp was estimated using the following assumptions for 2007, 2006 
and 2005, respectively: dividend yield of 2.2%, 2.4% and 2.4%; expected 
volatility of 22%, 23% and 27%; risk-free interest rates of 4.4%, 4.3% and 
2.4%; and expected lives of one year. the weighted average fair value of 
those purchase rights granted in 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $10.95, $9.70 
and $11.15, respectively.

If compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plans had been deter-
mined based on the fair value at the grant dates consistent with the method 
prescribed by SFaS no. 123, “accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, 
net earnings and earnings per share would have been adjusted to the pro 
forma amounts indicated below:

(millions of dollars, except for per share data)      2005

net earnings, as reported     $ 269.6
add: Stock-based compensation  
 expense included in reported income     6.4
less: Stock-based employee compensation  
 expense determined under fair  
 value method, net of related tax effects     12.0

pro forma net earnings,  
 fair value method      $ 264.0

earnings per share: 
Basic, as reported     $ 3.23
Basic, pro forma      $ 3.17
Diluted, as reported     $ 3.16
Diluted, pro forma     $ 3.09

Compensation cost relating to the stock-based compensation grants made 
in 2007 and earlier periods is recognized ratably over the vesting period 
using the accelerated method. effective with the adoption of SFaS 123(r) 
on January 1, 2006, expense for new grants is recognized on a straight-line 
basis over the vesting period. the expense for retiree eligible employees 

(those aged 55 and over and with 10 or more years of service) is recognized 
by the date they became retirement eligible, as such employees may retain 
their options for the 10 year contractual term in the event they retire prior 
to the end of the vesting period stipulated in the grant.

L.  ACCUmULATED OTHER  
COmPREHENSIVE INCOmE

accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at the end of each fiscal 
year was as follows:

(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

Currency translation adjustment $ 99.3 $ (8.3) $ (74.1)
pension asset, net of tax  (42.2)  (68.9)  (13.1)
Fair value of net investment  
 hedge effectiveness, net of tax  (14.5)  (9.0)  (0.5)
Fair value of cash flow  
 hedge effectiveness, net of tax  5.1  4.4  (3.6)

accumulated other  
 comprehensive loss $ 47.7 $ (81.8) $ (91.3)

m. EmPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

emPloyee stock oWnershiP Plan (“esoP”)   Substantially all 
u.S. employees may contribute from 1% to 15% of their eligible compensa-
tion to a tax-deferred 401(k) savings plan, subject to restrictions under tax 
laws. employees generally direct the investment of their own contributions 
into various investment funds. an employer match benefit is provided under 
the plan equal to one-half of each employee’s tax-deferred contribution up 
to the first 7% of their compensation. effective January 1, 2007, partici-
pants direct the entire employer match benefit such that no participant is 
required to hold the Company’s common stock in their 401(k) account. prior 
to January 1, 2007, half of the employer match benefit was invested in 
the Company’s common stock while the investment of the other half was 
directed by the employee. the employer match benefit totaled $8.4 million, 
$7.9 million and $8.3 million, in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

In addition, approximately 4,200 u.S. salaried and non-union hourly employees 
receive a non-contributory benefit under the Cornerstone plan. Cornerstone 
benefit allocations range from 3% to 9% of eligible employee compensation 
based on age. approximately 1,400 u.S. employees receive an additional 
average 1.7% contribution actuarially designed to replace previously curtailed 
pension benefits. allocations for benefits earned under the Cornerstone plan 
were $13.8 million in 2007, $13.2 million in 2006 and $12.3 million in 2005. 
assets held in participant Cornerstone accounts are invested in a broad-
based u.S. equity security index fund and u.S. government bonds.
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Shares of the Company’s common stock held by the eSop were purchased 
with the proceeds of external borrowings in 1989 and borrowings from the 
Company in 1991 (“1991 internal loan”). the external eSop borrowings are 
guaranteed by the Company and are included in long-term debt. Shareowners’ 
equity reflects a reduction equal to the cost basis of unearned (unallocated) 
shares purchased with the internal and the external borrowings.

the Company accounts for the eSop under Statement of position (“Sop”) 
76-3, “accounting practices for Certain employee Stock ownership plans”, 
as affected by the emerging Issues task Force (“eItF”) 89-8, “expense 
recognition for employee Stock ownership plans.” net eSop activity 
recognized is comprised of the cost basis of shares released, the cost of 
the aforementioned Cornerstone and 401(k) match defined contribution 
benefits, interest expense on the external 1989 borrowing, less the fair 
value of shares released and dividends on unallocated eSop shares. net 
eSop expense was $1.6 million in 2007, $2.4 million in 2006 and $2.1 million 
in 2005. eSop expense is affected by the market value of the Company’s 
common stock on the monthly dates when shares are released. the market 
value of shares released averaged $56.04 per share in 2007, $49.28 per 
share in 2006 and $46.41 in 2005.

unallocated shares are released from the trust based on current period debt 
principal and interest payments as a percentage of total future debt prin-
cipal and interest payments. Dividends on both allocated and unallocated 
shares may be used for debt service and to credit participant accounts 
for dividends earned on allocated shares. Dividends paid on the shares 
acquired with the 1991 internal loan were used solely to pay internal loan 
debt service in all periods. Dividends on eSop shares, which are charged to 
shareowners’ equity as declared, were $11.0 million in 2007, $11.7 million 
in 2006 and $12.1 million in 2005. Dividends on eSop shares were utilized 
entirely for debt service in all years. Interest costs incurred by the eSop 
on the 1989 external debt in 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $0.3 million, $0.3 
million and $0.4 million, respectively. Interest costs incurred by the eSop on 
the 1991 internal loan, which have no earnings impact, were $8.7 million, 
$9.2 million and $9.5 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Both 
allocated and unallocated eSop shares are treated as outstanding for purpos-
es of computing earnings per share. as of December 29, 2007, the number 
of eSop shares allocated to participant accounts was 3,609,681 and the 
number of unallocated shares was 5,071,968. at December 29, 2007, there 
were 32,053 released shares in the eSop trust holding account pending 
allocation. the Company made cash contributions to the eSop totaling $11.7 
million in 2007, $11.2 million in 2006 and $13.3 million in 2005.

Pension and other Benefit Plans  the Company sponsors 
pension plans covering most domestic hourly and certain executive employees, 
and approximately 4,700 foreign employees. Benefits are generally based on 
salary and years of service, except for u.S. collective bargaining employees 
whose benefits are based on a stated amount for each year of service.

the Company contributes to multi-employer plans for certain collective bar-
gaining u.S. employees. In addition, various other defined contribution plans 
are sponsored worldwide. the expense for such defined contribution plans, 
aside from the earlier discussed eSop plans, follows:

(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

Multi-employer plan expense $ 0.5 $ 0.5 $ 0.6
other defined contribution  
 plan expense $ 6.5 $ 4.7 $ 3.3

the components of net periodic pension expense (income) are as follows:

 u.s. Plans non-u.s. Plans

(millions of dollars) 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

Service cost $ 2.7    $ 2.6   $ 2.6   $ 4.4  $ 5.9   $ 6.4 
Interest cost 9.0  8.1 4.7  15.0  13.8 11.7 
expected return on  
 plan assets (9.8) (7.9) (2.9) (18.2) (16.9) (16.2)
amortization of  
 prior service cost 1.5 1.4 1.4  0.1  0.2 1.5 
transition  
 amount amortization –  – – 0.1  – –
actuarial loss  0.6  1.1 2.2  6.3  6.4 4.1 
Settlement/curtailment  
 loss (gain) –  – (0.8) 0.6 6.1 0.4 

net periodic 
 pension expense $ 4.0  $ 5.3  $ 7.2  $ 8.3  $ 15.5  $ 7.9 

the Company provides medical and dental benefits for certain retired 
employees in the united States. In addition, certain u.S. employees 
who retire from active service are eligible for life insurance benefits. 
approximately 8,100 participants are covered under these plans. net peri-
odic postretirement benefit expense was $2.2 million in 2007, $2.7 million 
in 2006 and $2.0 million in 2005.

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other compre-
hensive income in 2007 are as follows:

(millions of dollars)      2007

Current year actuarial gain     $ (33.9)
amortization of actuarial loss      (6.7)
amortization of prior service costs      (1.4)
amortization of transition obligation      (0.1)
other      3.1

total recognized in other comprehensive income (pre-tax)  $  (39.0)

the amounts in accumulated other Comprehensive loss expected to be 
recognized as components of net periodic benefit costs during 2008 total 
$5.6 million, representing amortization of $4.3 million of actuarial loss, $1.2 
million of prior service cost, and $0.1 million of transition assets/loss.
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the changes in the pension and other postretirement benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets as well as amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets, are shown below:

    u.s. Plans  non-u.s. Plans other Benefits

(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2007  2006  2007  2006

change in benefit obligation      
Benefit obligation at end of prior year $ 148.2  $ 154.2 $ 312.9 $ 248.6  $ 27.5 $ 29.0 
Service cost  2.7   2.6   4.4   5.9   1.1   1.1 
Interest cost  9.0   8.1   15.0   13.8   1.4   1.5 
Settlements/curtailments  –  0.1   (5.3)  (0.1)  –  –
actuarial (gain) loss  (7.9)  (10.3)   (26.4)  4.5   (3.4)  (0.8)
plan amendments  –  1.9   –     –     –     –   
Foreign currency exchange rate changes  –  –  14.3   30.4   –     –   
participant contributions  –  –  0.1   0.4   –     –   
acquisitions and other  13.1  –  0.5   29.4   –     –   
Benefits paid  (9.6)  (8.4)  (16.0)  (20.0)  (2.1)  (3.3)

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 155.5  $ 148.2  $ 299.5  $ 312.9  $ 24.5  $ 27.5 

change in plan assets      
Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year $ 112.2  $ 101.8  $ 267.1  $ 209.7  $ – $ –   
actual return on plan assets  10.4   13.0   13.1   23.3   –  –   
participant contributions  –  –     0.1   0.4   –  –   
employer contributions  4.0  5.8   10.0   12.7   2.1  3.3 
Settlements  –  –     (4.8)  –     –  –   
Foreign currency exchange rate changes  –  –     11.6   25.5   –  –   
acquisitions  12.0  –     0.3   15.5   –     –   
Benefits paid  (9.6)  (8.4)  (16.0)  (20.0)  (2.1)  (3.3)

Fair value of plan assets at end of plan year $ 129.0  $ 112.2  $ 281.4  $ 267.1  $ – $ –

Funded status – assets less than benefit obligation $ (26.5) $ (36.0) $ (18.1) $ (45.8) $ (24.5) $ (27.5)
unrecognized prior service cost (credit)  6.7   8.1   1.1   1.0   (1.2)  (1.4)
unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss  (5.9)  3.3   58.3   83.4   1.0   4.2 
unrecognized net transition liability  –   –  0.9   1.3   –  –

net amount recognized $ (25.7) $ (24.6) $ 42.2  $ 39.9  $ (24.7) $ (24.7)

amounts recognized in the  
 consolidated Balance sheets      
prepaid benefit cost (non-current)  $ 16.5  $ 8.2  $ 16.0  $ 2.7  $ – $ – 
Current benefit liability  (2.8)  (2.7)  (1.4)  (1.7)  (2.1)  (2.3)
non-current benefit liability  (40.2)  (41.5)  (32.7)  (46.8)  (22.4)  (25.2)

net liability recognized $ (26.5) $ (36.0) $ (18.1) $ (45.8) $ (24.5) $ (27.5)

accumulated other comprehensive loss (gain) (pre-tax):      
prior service cost (credit) $ 6.7  $ 8.1  $ 1.1  $ 1.0  $ (1.2) $ (1.4)
actuarial (gain) loss  (5.9)  3.3   58.3   83.4   1.0   4.2 
transition liability  –  –  0.9   1.3   –  –

  $ 0.8  $ 11.4  $ 60.3  $ 85.7  $ (0.2) $ 2.8 

net amount recognized $ (25.7) $ (24.6) $ 42.2  $ 39.9  $ (24.7) $ (24.7)

In 2007, the reduction of the projected benefit obligation for actuarial gains primarily pertains to increased discount rates used to measure the pension liabilities.
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the accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $427.1 million at December 29, 2007 and $428.1 million at December 30, 2006. 
Information regarding pension plans in which accumulated benefit obligations exceed plan assets follows:

 u.s. Plans non-u.s. Plans

(millions of dollars)      2007  2006  2007  2006

projected benefit obligation     $ 58.6 $ 70.6 $ 56.2 $ 55.5
accumulated benefit obligation     $ 55.7 $ 67.3 $ 50.0 $ 48.8
Fair value of plan assets     $ 15.6 $ 26.6 $ 22.2 $ 21.0

Information regarding pension plans in which projected benefit obligations (inclusive of anticipated future compensation increases) exceed plan assets follows:

 u.s. Plans non-u.s. Plans

(millions of dollars)      2007  2006  2007  2006

projected benefit obligation     $ 58.6 $ 70.6 $ 56.9 $ 256.7
accumulated benefit obligation     $ 55.7 $ 67.3 $ 50.5 $ 226.8
Fair value of plan assets     $ 15.6 $ 26.6 $ 22.7 $ 210.8

the Company adopted SFaS 158 as of December 30, 2006. the impact from recognizing the funded status of the defined benefit plans, representing the 
fair value of the plan assets versus the projected benefit obligation, was a decrease to Shareowners’ equity of $61.1 million, net of a $26.7 million tax ben-
efit. the Company uses a fiscal year end date to value all its plans. the following table summarizes the impact of adopting SFaS 158 on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet at December 30, 2006:

  defined  impact of defined 
  Benefit sfas 158 Benefit 
  Plans Before adoption Plans after 
  adoption of  increase adoption of 
(millions of dollars) sfas 158 (decrease) sfas 158

prepaid benefit cost (non-current)       $ 79.3 $ (68.4) $ 10.9
Intangible asset       $ 7.4 $ (7.4) $  – 
Benefit liability       $ 108.1 $ 12.1 $ 120.2
accumulated other comprehensive loss       $ (7.8) $ (61.1) $ (68.9)

the major assumptions used in valuing pension and post-retirement plan obligations and net costs were as follows:

      Pension Benefits  other Benefits

 u.s. Plans non-u.s. Plans u.s. Plans

   2007  2006  2005  2007  2006  2005  2007  2006  2005

weighted average assumptions used to  
 determine benefit obligations at year end:
Discount rate  6.5%  5.75%  5.5%  5.5%  4.75%  5.0%  6.25%  5.75%  5.5%
rate of compensation increase  6.0%  6.0%  5.5%  3.75%  3.75%  3.75%  4.0%  4.0%  4.0%
weighted average assumptions used to  
 determine net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate  5.75%  5.5%  5.75%  4.75%  5.0%  5.25%  5.75%  5.5%  6.0%
rate of compensation increase  6.0%  5.5%  6.0%  3.75%  3.75%  3.75%  4.0%  4.0%  4.0%
expected return on plan assets  8.0%  8.0%  7.75%  7.0%  7.0%  7.5%  –  –  –
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the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is determined consid-
ering the returns projected for the various asset classes and the relative 
weighting for each asset class as reflected in the target asset allocation 
below. In addition the Company considers historical performance, the opinions 
of outside actuaries and other data in developing the return assumption.

Pension Plan assets   plan assets are invested in equity securities, 
bonds and other fixed income securities, money market instruments and 
insurance contracts. the Company’s weighted-average worldwide actual 
asset allocations at December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 by asset 
category are as follows:

   Plan assets
        target 
asset category  2007  2006  allocation

equity securities  65%  65%  50-70%
Fixed income securities  30%  30%  20-40%
other  5%  5%    0-10%

total   100%  100%  100%

the Company’s investment strategy for pension plan assets includes 
diversification to minimize interest and market risks, and generally does 
not involve the use of derivative financial instruments. plan assets are 
rebalanced periodically to maintain target asset allocations. Maturities of 
investments are not necessarily related to the timing of expected future 
benefit payments, but adequate liquidity to make immediate and medium 
term benefit payments is ensured.

contriButions  the Company’s funding policy for its defined benefit 
plans is to contribute amounts determined annually on an actuarial basis 
to provide for current and future benefits in accordance with federal law 
and other regulations. the Company expects to contribute approximately 
$15 million to its pension plans and its other postretirement benefit plan 
in 2008.

eXPected future Benefit Payments   Benefit payments, inclu-
sive of amounts attributable to estimated future employee service, are 
expected to be paid as follows over the next 10 years:

(millions of dollars) total year 1 year 2 year 3 year 4 year 5 years 6 - 10

Future payments $ 318.0 $  26.8 $  27.7 $  29.2 $  29.8 $  31.3 $ 173.2

these benefit payments will be funded through a combination of existing 
plan assets and amounts to be contributed in the future by the Company.

health care cost trends   the weighted average annual assumed 
rate of increase in the per-capita cost of covered benefits (i.e., health care 
cost trend rate) is assumed to be 10% for 2007, reducing gradually to 6% by 
2015 and remaining at that level thereafter. a one percentage point change 
in the assumed health care cost trend rate would have an immaterial effect 
on the net periodic postretirement benefit cost and the postretirement 
benefit obligation as of December 29, 2007.

N. OTHER COSTS AND EXPENSES

other-net is primarily comprised of intangible asset amortization expense, 
gains and losses on asset dispositions, currency impact, environmental 
expense and net expenses related to the Mac tools extended financing 
programs, mainly financing receivable losses and interest income.

research and development costs were $25.4 million, $22.8 million and 
$21.5 million for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

O.  RESTRUCTURINg AND  
ASSET ImPAIRmENTS

at December 29, 2007, the restructuring and asset impairment reserve bal-
ance was $23.7 million, which the Company expects to largely utilize by the 
end of 2008. a summary of the restructuring reserve activity from December 
30, 2006 to December 29, 2007 is as follows:

    acquisition net 
(millions of dollars) 12/30/06 accrual additions usage currency 12/29/07

acquisitions
Severance $ 54.7 $ (0.3) $ – $ (39.4) $ 3.8 $ 18.8
Facility Closure  2.4  1.9  –  (2.8)  0.1  1.6
other  1.5  –  0.3  (0.8)  –  1.0
2007 actions  –  –  11.8  (10.6)  –  1.2
Pre-2007 actions 4.5  –  0.7  (4.3)  0.2  1.1

   $ 63.1 $ 1.6 $ 12.8 $ (57.9) $ 4.1 $ 23.7

2007 ACTIONS  During 2007, the Company initiated cost reduction initia-
tives in order to maintain its cost competitiveness. Severance charges of 
$11.4 million have been recorded relating to the reduction of approximately 
525 employees. In addition to severance, $0.2 million was recorded for the 
closure of a merged office facility and $0.2 million for asset impairments. 
of these amounts, $10.6 million has been utilized to date, with $1.2 million 
of reserves remaining as of December 29, 2007.

PRE-2007 ACTIONS  During 2006 and 2005, the Company initiated $18.3 
million of cost reduction actions in various businesses, of which $0.7 mil-
lion was recorded during 2007, $13.0 million was recorded in 2006 and 
$4.6 million was recorded in 2005. these actions were comprised of the 
severance of approximately 950 employees and the exit of a leased facility. 
of this amount, $18.2 million has been utilized to date, offset slightly by a 
$0.2 million currency impact, leaving $0.3 million of accrual remaining as 
of December 29, 2007. In addition, $0.8 million of reserves remain relating 
to pre-2005 actions.
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the new CDIy segment manufactures and markets hand tools, consumer 
mechanics tools, storage systems, pneumatic tools, fasteners, and elec-
tronic leveling and measuring tools, as these products are principally 
utilized in construction and “Do-It-yourself” projects. these products are 
sold primarily to professional end users and distributed through retailers 
(including home centers, mass merchants, hardware stores, and retail 
lumber yards). the new Industrial segment manufactures and markets: 
professional mechanics tools and storage systems; plumbing, heating, air 
conditioning and roofing tools; hydraulic tools and accessories; assembly 
tools and systems; and specialty tools (Stanley supply and services). these 
products are sold to industrial customers and distributed primarily through 
third party distributors as well as through direct sales forces. the new 
Security segment is a provider of access and security solutions primarily for 
retailers, educational, financial and healthcare institutions, as well as com-
mercial, governmental and industrial customers. the Company provides an 
extensive suite of mechanical and electronic security products and systems, 
and a variety of security services including security integration systems, 
software, related installation, maintenance, monitoring services, automatic 
doors, door closers, exit devices, hardware (includes hinges, gate hardware, 
cabinet pulls, hooks, braces and shelf brackets) and locking mechanisms. 

the Company utilizes segment profit, which is defined as net sales minus 
cost of sales and SG&a (aside from corporate overhead expense), and 
segment profit as a percentage of net sales to assess the profitability of 
each segment. Segment profit excludes the corporate overhead expense 
element of SG&a, interest income, interest expense, other-net (inclusive 
of intangible asset amortization expense), restructuring, and income tax 
expense. refer to note o restructuring and asset Impairments for the 
amount of restructuring charges and asset impairments by segment, and 
to note G Goodwill and other Intangible assets for intangible amortiza-
tion expense by segment. Corporate overhead is comprised of world 
headquarters facility expense, cost for the executive management team 
and cost for certain centralized functions that benefit the entire company 
but are not directly attributable to the businesses, such as legal and cor-
porate finance functions. transactions between segments are not mate-
rial. Segment assets primarily include accounts receivable, inventory, 
other current assets, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets 
and other miscellaneous assets. Corporate assets and unallocated assets 
are cash and deferred income taxes. Geographic net sales and long-lived 
assets are attributed to the geographic regions based on the geographic 
location of each Company subsidiary.

ACQUISITION RELATED  During 2007, $3.0 million of reserves were estab-
lished for hSM in purchase accounting. of this amount $1.1 million was for 
severance of approximately 55 employees and $1.9 million related to the 
closure of 13 branch facilities. as of December 29, 2007, $0.8 million has 
been utilized, leaving $2.2 million remaining. the Company also utilized $1.2 
million of restructuring reserves during 2007 established for various minor 
prior year acquisitions. as of December 29, 2007, $1.2 million in accruals for 
these small actions remains.

pursuant to the integration of the January 2006 Facom acquisition, and 
the related reorganization of Facom and Stanley hand tools activities in 
europe, the Company implemented restructuring initiatives. these initia-
tives reduced the cost structure by rationalizing manufacturing, logistics, 
sales and support organizations. this resulted in the severance of approxi-
mately 450 employees, the closure of two legacy Facom factories in France, 
as well as four legacy Facom distribution centers located in the united 
kingdom, Belgium, Germany and Switzerland. of the $60.4 million in total 
expenditures for these initiatives, $59.4 million was recorded to the Facom 
purchase price allocation and $1.0 million as a restructuring charge in 2006. 
as of December 29, 2007, $46.3 million has been utilized, partially offset by 
a $3.9 million currency impact, such that an $18.0 million accrual remains.

In connection with its late 2005 acquisition of national, the Company 
recorded $8.0 million relating to severance costs for approximately 250 
employees and $0.3 million facility closure costs to the purchase price 
allocation. In addition, $0.2 million of facility closure costs were recorded 
as restructuring charges in 2006. as of December 29, 2007, most of this 
accrual has been utilized, with the remaining $1.4 million excess reversed 
as a reduction of Goodwill, such that no accrual remains.

restructuring and asset impairment charges by segment were as follows:

(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

CDIy  $ 5.6 $ 5.3 $ 1.3
Industrial  1.5  1.6  0.4
Security  5.3  5.9  2.9
non-operating  0.4  1.0  –

Consolidated $ 12.8 $ 13.8 $ 4.6

P.  BUSINESS SEgmENTS AND  
gEOgRAPHIC AREAS

until December 30, 2006, the Company reported results in three segments: 
Consumer products, Industrial tools and Security Solutions. Due primarily to 
the January 16, 2007 acquisition of hSM, the Company realigned to report 
three new segments effective with first quarter 2007 reporting: Construction 
& Do-It-yourself (“CDIy”), Industrial and Security. these new segments more 
clearly convey the Company’s growth strategies and reflect management’s 
view of the Company’s businesses with the inclusion of hSM. prior period 
segment information has been restated for comparability.
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the following information excludes the appliance hinge and u.k. decorator 
tools businesses, which are classified as discontinued operations as dis-
closed in note t Discontinued operations, unless otherwise noted.

Business seGments
(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

net sales 
CDIy  $ 1,795.0 $ 1,723.9 $ 1,680.8
Industrial  1,255.9  1,137.7  680.5
Security  1,432.9  1,157.0  924.0

Consolidated $ 4,483.8 $ 4,018.6 $ 3,285.3

segment Profit    
CDIy  $ 270.0 $ 271.1 $ 269.0
Industrial  184.0  124.0  80.6
Security  242.1  171.5  148.7

Segment profit  696.1  566.6  498.3
Corporate overhead  (62.3)  (63.3)  (53.8)

total   633.8  503.3  444.5

restructuring charges  
 and asset impairments  (12.8)  (13.8)  (4.6)
Interest income  5.0  4.4  6.6
Interest expense  (85.2)  (69.3)  (40.4)
other-net  (89.7)  (57.5)  (47.9)

earnings from continuing 
 operations before 
 income taxes $ 451.1 $ 367.1 $ 358.2

segment assets   
CDIy  $ 1,171.0 $ 1,147.4 $ 1,130.4
Industrial  1,314.9  1,212.8  417.9
Security  1,981.1  1,361.4  1,300.6

    4,467.0  3,721.6  2,848.9
Discontinued operations  –  –  11.0
Corporate assets  312.9  213.8  685.2

Consolidated $ 4,779.9 $ 3,935.4 $ 3,545.1

capital and software  
 expenditures   
CDIy  $ 40.0 $ 36.4 $ 43.9
Industrial  19.5  15.4  8.7
Security  27.4  28.7  15.3
Discontinued operations  –  –  0.5

Consolidated $ 86.9 $ 80.5 $ 68.4

depreciation and  
 amortization   
CDIy  $ 46.1 $ 48.5 $ 45.9
Industrial  25.9  25.7  12.8
Security  90.2  46.9  37.5
Discontinued operations  –  0.1  0.3

Consolidated $ 162.2 $ 121.2 $ 96.5

In connection with its acquisitions, the Company recorded $21.6 million 
in cost of sales (“inventory step-up amortization”) during 2006 related to 
the initial turn of acquired inventory which was written-up in purchase 
accounting to its fair market value. this non-cash inventory step-up amor-
tization amounted to $8.2 million in the CDIy segment, $13.3 million in the 
Industrial segment, and $0.1 million in the Security segment.

Sales to the home Depot were approximately 8%, 10% and 12% of con-
solidated net sales in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. For 2007, 2006 
and 2005 net sales to this one customer amounted to 17%, 18% and 19% 
of segment net sales, respectively, for the CDIy segment, 5%, 7% and 
8%, respectively, for the Security segment and less than one percent in 
each applicable year for the Industrial segment.

GeoGraPhic areas
(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

net sales 
united States $ 2,623.8 $ 2,398.5 $ 2,277.1
other americas  394.8  357.5  263.0
France  530.8  465.4  146.3
other europe  688.9  599.9  412.1
asia   245.5  197.3  186.8

Consolidated $ 4,483.8 $ 4,018.6 $ 3,285.3

long-lived assets   
united States $ 1,567.1 $ 969.2 $ 1,010.3
other americas  179.9  164.3  168.5
united kingdom  214.4  204.9  258.9
France  511.0  478.5  14.4
other europe  247.5  226.4  73.1
asia   244.3  240.4  183.4

Consolidated $ 2,964.2 $ 2,283.7 $ 1,708.6
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Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to continuing operations con-
sisted of the following:

(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

Current:   
 Federal $ 55.7 $ 31.9 $ 37.0
 Foreign  14.2  25.9  31.9
 State  14.0  8.8  9.4

total current $ 83.9 $ 66.6 $ 78.3

Deferred (Benefit):   
 Federal  7.3  (6.5)  17.8
 Foreign  27.7  18.4  (8.4)
 State  (4.4)  (2.1)  (1.2)

total deferred  30.6  9.8  8.2

total  $ 114.5 $ 76.4 $ 86.5

Income taxes paid during 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $102.9 million, $104.5 
million and $112.8 million, respectively. During 2007, the Company had tax 
holidays with thailand and China. tax holidays resulted in a reduction of 
tax expense amounting to $4.3 million in 2007, $3.1 million in 2006 and $1.7 
million in 2005. the tax holiday in thailand is in place until 2010 while the 
tax holiday in China varies between 2007 and 2015.

the reconciliation of federal income tax at the statutory federal rate to 
income tax at the effective rate for continuing operations is as follows:

(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

tax at statutory rate $ 157.9 $ 128.5 $ 125.4
State income taxes,  
 net of federal benefits  4.6  4.2  4.5
Difference between  
 foreign and federal 
  income tax  (37.1)  (36.0)  (30.3)
extraterritorial income exclusion  –  (2.0)  (2.7)
Branch activity  (0.5)  0.3  (0.4)
tax accrual reserve  1.6  4.0  (0.6)
u.S. audit settlement  –  (16.6)  (16.7)
Dividends  0.3  (3.7)  15.6
FaS 109 tax rate change  (3.4)  –  –
other-net  (8.9)  (2.3)  (8.3)

Income taxes $ 114.5 $ 76.4 $ 86.5

Q. INCOmE TAXES

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities 
at the end of each fiscal year were as follows:

(millions of dollars)    2007  2006

Deferred tax liabilities:  
 Depreciation   $ 75.8 $ 41.7
 amortization of intangibles    76.6  96.2
 Inventories    4.3  4.4
 other    2.8  17.7

total deferred tax liabilities   $ 159.5 $ 160.0

Deferred tax assets:  
 employee benefit plans   $ 87.1 $ 79.9
 Doubtful accounts    9.4  8.9
 accruals    6.7  10.4
 restructuring charges    1.3  2.5
 operating loss carryforwards    45.4  50.2
 other    23.8  0.4

total deferred tax assets   $ 173.7 $ 152.3

net deferred tax (assets) 
 liabilities before valuation allowance  $ (14.2) $ 7.7

valuation allowance   $ 27.3 $ 26.8

net deferred tax liabilities  
 after valuation allowance   $ 13.1 $ 34.5

Valuation allowances reduced the deferred tax asset attributable to foreign 
and state loss carry-forwards to the amount that, based upon all available 
evidence, is more likely than not to be realized. reversal of the valuation 
allowance is contingent upon the recognition of future taxable income and 
capital gains in specific foreign countries and specific states, or changes in 
circumstances which cause the recognition of the benefits to become more 
likely than not. the foreign and state loss carry-forwards expire in various 
years beginning in 2008.

the classification of deferred taxes as of December 29, 2007 and December 
30, 2006 is as follows:

 2007 2006

 deferred deferred Deferred Deferred 
(millions of dollars) tax asset tax liability tax asset tax liability

Current $ (25.5) $ 4.3 $ (35.0) $ 15.2
non-current  (120.9)  155.2  (90.5)  144.8

total  $ (146.4) $ 159.5 $ (125.5) $ 160.0
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the components of earnings from continuing operations before income taxes 
consisted of the following:

(millions of dollars)  2007  2006  2005

united States $ 206.9 $ 150.7 $ 210.2
Foreign  244.2  216.4  148.0

total pre-tax earnings $ 451.1 $ 367.1 $ 358.2

the Company’s future effective tax rates could be adversely affected by 
earnings being lower than anticipated in countries where the statutory 
rates are lower. the Company is subject to the examination of its income 
tax returns by the Internal revenue Service and other tax authorities. the 
Company evaluates the likelihood of unfavorable adjustments arising from 
the examinations and believes adequate provisions have been made in the 
income tax provision.

undistributed foreign earnings of $650.2 million at December 29, 2007 are 
considered to be invested indefinitely or will be remitted substantially free 
of additional tax. accordingly, no provision has been made for taxes that 
might be payable upon remittance of such earnings, nor is it practicable to 
determine the amount of this liability.

AMERICAN JOBS CREATION ACT OF 2004 –  
REPATRIATION OF FOREIGN EARNINGS
the american Jobs Creation act, the “act”, enacted on october 22, 2004 
created a temporary incentive for u.S. corporations to repatriate accumulat-
ed income earned abroad by providing for an 85 percent dividends received 
deduction for certain dividends from controlled foreign corporations. During 
the Fourth Quarter of 2005, Stanley’s Ceo and Board of Directors approved 
a domestic reinvestment plan as required by the “act” to repatriate $249.6 
million in foreign earnings in fiscal 2005. Stanley recorded $15.6 million in 
tax expense related to this $249.6 million dividend. all repatriations under 
the “act” were completed by December 31, 2005.

as of the beginning of the 2007 fiscal year, the Company adopted the provi-
sions of FIn 48. as a result of the implementation of FIn 48, the Company 
recognized a $13.5 million increase in the liability for unrecognized tax 
benefits; this was accounted for as a reduction to the 2007 beginning balance 
of retained earnings. the unrecognized tax benefits at December 29, 2007 
relate to u.S. and various foreign jurisdictions.

the following table summarizes the activity related to the unrecognized 
tax benefits:

(millions of dollars)      2007

Balance at December 30, 2006     $ 54.0
additions based on tax positions related to current year   8.1
additions based on tax positions related to prior years   1.8
reductions based on tax positions related to prior years   (7.3)
Settlements      (2.6)
expirations of the statute of limitations     (4.9)

Balance at December 29, 2007     $ 49.1

Included in the unrecognized tax benefits of $49.1 million at December 
29, 2007 were $41.7 million of tax benefits that, if recognized, would 
impact the annual effective tax rate. During 2007, the accrual for poten-
tial penalties and interest related to these unrecognized tax benefits 
was reduced by $1.5 million, and in total, as of December 29, 2007, a 
liability for potential penalties and interest of $4.4 million has been 
recorded. the Company classifies all tax-related interest and penalties 
as income tax expense.

It is reasonably possible the Company may recognize up to $4-$10 million 
of currently unrecognized tax benefits over the next 12 months, pertaining 
primarily to expiration of statutes of limitations in various jurisdictions.

the Company files u.S., state, and foreign income tax returns in jurisdic-
tions with varying statutes of limitations. tax years 2005 and forward 
remain subject to federal examination while tax years 2004 and forward 
generally remain subject to examination by most state tax authorities. 
In significant foreign jurisdictions, tax years 2003 and forward generally 
remain subject to examination by their respective tax authorities.

R. COmmITmENTS AND gUARANTEES

commitments  the Company has non-cancelable operating lease 
agreements, principally related to facilities, vehicles, machinery and equip-
ment. Minimum payments have not been reduced by minimum sublease 
rentals of $5.3 million due in the future under non-cancelable subleases. 
In addition, the Company is a party to synthetic leasing programs, which 
qualify as operating leases, for two of its major distribution centers. rental 
expense, net of sublease income, for operating leases was $63.7 million in 
2007, $51.3 million in 2006 and $41.4 million in 2005.

outsourcing and other commitments are comprised of: $13.4 million for 
outsourcing arrangements, primarily related to information systems and 
telecommunications; and $7.6 million in marketing obligations.

the following is a summary of the future commitments for lease obliga-
tions, outsourcing and other arrangements:

(millions of dollars) total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 thereafter

operating lease  
 obligations $121.6 $34.8 $25.1 $17.7 $13.8 $11.1 $19.1

Material purchase  
 commitments 29.0 10.5 9.5 9.0 – – –

outsourcing  
 and other 21.0 18.4 2.1 0.5 – – –

total $171.6 $63.7 $36.7 $27.2 $13.8 $11.1 $19.1
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the Company has numerous assets, predominantly vehicles and equipment, 
under a one-year term renewable u.S. master personal property lease. 
residual value obligations under this master lease were $30.2 million 
at December 29, 2007 while the fair value of the underlying assets was 
approximately $34.7 million. the u.S. master personal property lease obli-
gations are not reflected in the future minimum lease payments since the 
initial and remaining term does not exceed one year. the Company routinely 
exercises various lease renewal options and from time to time purchases 
leased assets for fair value at the end of lease terms.

the Company is a party to synthetic leasing programs for two of its 
major distribution centers. the programs qualify as operating leases for 
accounting purposes, where only the monthly lease cost is recorded in 
earnings and the liability and value of underlying assets are off-balance 
sheet. as of December 29, 2007, the estimated fair value of assets and 
remaining obligations for these two properties were $69.9 million and 
$53.1 million, respectively.

Guarantees  the following is a summary of guarantees as of December 
29, 2007:

    maximum carrying 
    Potential amount of 
(millions of dollars) term Payment liability

Financial guarantees as  
 of December 29, 2007:   

Guarantees on the  
 residual values of  
 leased properties up to 6 years $ 83.2 $ –
Standby letters  
 of credit Generally 1 year  32.1  –
Guarantee on the  
 external employee  
 Stock ownership  
 plan borrowings through 2009  4.2  4.2
Commercial customer  
 financing arrangements up to 5 years  23.5  21.8
Government  
 guarantees  
 on employees 3 years from hire date  0.1  –

total  $ 143.1 $ 26.0

the Company has guaranteed a portion of the residual value arising from 
its previously mentioned synthetic lease and u.S. master personal property 
lease programs. the lease guarantees aggregate $83.2 million while the 
fair value of the underlying assets is estimated at $104.5 million. the 
related assets would be available to satisfy the guarantee obligations and 
therefore it is unlikely the Company will incur any future loss associated 
with these lease guarantees.

the Company has issued $32.1 million in standby letters of credit that 
guarantee future payments which may be required under certain insur-
ance programs. Shares of the Company’s common stock held by the eSop 
were purchased with the proceeds of external borrowings in the 1980’s 
and borrowings from the Company in 1991. the external eSop borrow-
ings are guaranteed by the Company and are included in long-term debt. 
Shareowners’ equity reflects a reduction for the internal and external 
borrowings. the Company has sold various businesses and properties 
over many years and provided standard indemnification to the purchasers 
with respect to any unknown liabilities, such as environmental, which 
may arise in the future that are attributable to the time of the Company’s 
ownership. no liabilities have been recorded for these general indemni-
fications since there are no identified exposures. the Company provides 
various limited and full recourse guarantees to financial institutions that 
provide financing to u.S. and Canadian Mac tool distributors for their 
initial purchase of the inventory and truck necessary to function as a 
distributor. In addition, the Company provides a full recourse guarantee to 
a financial institution that extends credit to certain end retail customers 
of its u.S. Mac tool distributors. the gross amount guaranteed in these 
arrangements is approximately $23.5 million and the $21.8 million fair 
value of the guarantees issued is recorded in debt and other liabilities as 
appropriate in the consolidated balance sheet.

the Company provides product and service warranties which vary across 
its businesses. the types of warranties offered generally range from one 
year to limited lifetime, while certain products carry no warranty. Further, 
the Company sometimes incurs discretionary costs to service its products in 
connection with product performance issues. historical warranty and ser-
vice claim experience forms the basis for warranty obligations recognized. 
adjustments are recorded to the warranty liability as new information 
becomes available.

Following is a summary of the warranty liability activity for the years ended 
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006:

(millions of dollars)    2007  2006

Beginning Balance   $ 66.9 $ 15.7
warranties and guarantees issued    23.0  21.3
warranty payments    (21.8)  (20.2)
acquisitions and other    (4.3)  50.1

ending Balance   $ 63.8 $ 66.9
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S. CONTINgENCIES

the Company is involved in various legal proceedings relating to environ-
mental issues, employment, product liability and workers’ compensation 
claims and other matters. the Company periodically reviews the status of 
these proceedings with both inside and outside counsel, as well as an actuary 
for risk insurance. Management believes that the ultimate disposition of 
these matters will not have a material adverse effect on operations or 
financial condition taken as a whole.

the Company recognizes liabilities for contingent exposures when analysis 
indicates it is both probable that an asset has been impaired or that a 
liability has been incurred and the amount of impairment or loss can rea-
sonably be estimated. when a range of probable loss can be estimated, 
the Company accrues the most likely amount. In the event that no amount 
in the range of probable loss is considered most likely, the minimum loss in 
the range is accrued.

In the normal course of business, the Company is involved in various 
lawsuits and claims. In addition, the Company is a party to a number 
of proceedings before federal and state regulatory agencies relating to 
environmental remediation. also, the Company, along with many other 
companies, has been named as a potentially responsible party (“prp”) in a 
number of administrative proceedings for the remediation of various waste 
sites, including 16 active Superfund sites. Current laws potentially impose 
joint and several liabilities upon each prp. In assessing its potential liability 
at these sites, the Company has considered the following: whether respon-
sibility is being disputed, the terms of existing agreements, experience at 
similar sites, and the Company’s volumetric contribution at these sites.

the Company’s policy is to accrue environmental investigatory and reme-
diation costs for identified sites when it is probable that a liability has been 
incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. the amount 
of liability recorded is based on an evaluation of currently available facts 
with respect to each individual site and includes such factors as existing 
technology, presently enacted laws and regulations, and prior experience 
in remediation of contaminated sites. the liabilities recorded do not take 
into account any claims for recoveries from insurance or third parties. as 
assessments and remediation progress at individual sites, the amounts 
recorded are reviewed periodically and adjusted to reflect additional tech-
nical and legal information that becomes available. as of December 29, 
2007 and December 30, 2006, the Company had reserves of $30.1 million 
and $30.5 million, respectively, for remediation activities associated with 
Company-owned properties as well as for Superfund sites, for losses that 
are probable and estimable. of the 2007 amount, $7.3 million is classified 
as current and $22.8 million as long-term. the range of environmental reme-
diation costs that is reasonably possible is $23.4 million to $55.5 million 
which is subject to change in the near term. the Company may be liable for 
environmental remediation of sites it no longer owns. liabilities have been 
recorded on those sites in accordance with policy.

the environmental liability for certain sites that have cash payments that 
are fixed or reliably determinable have been discounted using a rate of 
4.8%. the discounted and undiscounted amount of the liability relative to 
these sites is $5.1 million and $8.1 million, respectively, as of December 29, 
2007 and as of December 30, 2006. the payments relative to these sites are 
expected to be $1.0 million in 2008, $1.7 million in 2009, $1.0 million in 2010, 
$0.3 million in 2011, $0.3 in 2012 and $3.8 million thereafter.

the amount recorded for identified contingent liabilities is based on esti-
mates. amounts recorded are reviewed periodically and adjusted to reflect 
additional technical and legal information that becomes available. actual 
costs to be incurred in future periods may vary from the estimates, given 
the inherent uncertainties in evaluating certain exposures. Subject to the 
imprecision in estimating future contingent liability costs, the Company 
does not expect that any sum it may have to pay in connection with these 
matters in excess of the amounts recorded will have a materially adverse 
effect on its financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

T. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During 2006, the Company disposed of two small businesses, the american 
appliance hinge and u.k. decorator tools businesses, for $1.9 million in cash. 
the related after-tax loss amounted to $1.1 million.

In accordance with the provisions of SFaS no. 144, “accounting for the 
Impairment or Disposal of long-lived assets”, the results of operations of 
the american appliance hinge and u.k. decorator tools businesses for the 
prior periods have been reported as discontinued operations. In addition, 
the assets and liabilities of the american appliance hinge and u.k. decora-
tor tools businesses were classified as held for sale in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet at December 31, 2005. the divestures of these businesses 
were made pursuant to the Company’s growth strategy which entails a 
reduction of risk associated with certain large customer concentrations and 
better utilization of resources to increase shareowner value.

the american appliance hinge business supplied hardware used to manu-
facture household appliances. the u.k. decorator tools business manufac-
tured brushes, rollers and other paint sundries supplied to various retailers. 
operating results of the u.k. decorator tools, which was formerly included in 
the CDIy segment, and the american appliance hinge business, which was 
formerly included in the Security segment, are summarized as follows:

(millions of dollars)    2006  2005

net sales   $ 12.0 $ 38.7
pretax loss    –  (1.2)
Income taxes    0.1  0.9

net loss from discontinued operations  $ (0.1) $ (2.1)
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2007   first  second  third  fourth  year

net sales $ 1,062.1 $ 1,123.0 $ 1,131.3 $ 1,167.4 $ 4,483.8
Gross profit  395.3  432.1  431.1  433.7  1,692.2
selling, general and administrative expenses  259.0  268.2  256.5  274.7  1,058.4
net earnings from continuing operations  67.6  85.3  91.4  92.3  336.6
net earnings from discontinued operations  –  –  –  –  –

net earnings $ 67.6 $ 85.3 $ 91.4 $ 92.3 $ 336.6

Basic earnings per common share:     
 continuing operations $ 0.82 $ 1.03 $ 1.11 $ 1.13 $ 4.09
 discontinued operations  –  –  –  –  –

total basic earnings per common share $ 0.82 $ 1.03 $ 1.11 $ 1.13 $ 4.09

diluted earnings per common share:     
 continuing operations $ 0.80 $ 1.01 $ 1.09 $ 1.11 $ 4.00
 discontinued operations  –  –  –  –  –

total diluted earnings per common share $ 0.80 $ 1.01 $ 1.09 $ 1.11 $ 4.00

2006   First  Second  third  Fourth  year

net sales $ 968.7 $ 1,017.9 $ 1,012.7 $ 1,019.3 $ 4,018.6
Gross profit  331.9  376.7  377.8  372.1  1,458.5
Selling, general and administrative expenses  238.8  244.6  231.9  239.9  955.2
net earnings from continuing operations  38.5  75.0  90.2  87.0  290.7
net (loss) earnings from discontinued operations  (0.8)  (0.3)  0.3  (0.4)  (1.2)

net earnings $ 37.7 $ 74.7 $ 90.5 $ 86.6 $ 289.5

Basic earnings (loss) per common share:     
 Continuing operations $ 0.46 $ 0.92 $ 1.11 $ 1.06 $ 3.55
 Discontinued operations  (0.01)  –  –  (0.1)  (0.1)

total basic earnings per common share $ 0.46 $ 0.92 $ 1.11 $ 1.06 $ 3.54

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share:     
 Continuing operations $ 0.45 $ 0.90 $ 1.09 $ 1.04 $ 3.47
 Discontinued operations  (0.01)  –  –  (0.01)  (0.01)

total diluted earnings per common share $ 0.45 $ 0.90 $ 1.09 $ 1.03 $ 3.46

quarterly results of oPerations (unaudited)

(millions of dollars, except per share amounts) quarter 
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investor and shareoWner information

transfer aGent and reGistrar   all shareowner 
inquiries, including transfer-related matters, should be directed 
to: Computershare Investor Services llC, 2 north laSalle St., 
Chicago, Illinois 60602. toll-free telephone (888) 660-5513 or 
(312) 360-5292. www.computershare.com.

corPorate offices   the Company’s principal corporate 
offices are located at: 1000 Stanley Drive, new Britain, Ct 
06053, (860) 225-5111.

annual meetinG   the annual meeting of the Stanley 
works will be held at 9:30 a.m. eastern time on wednesday, 
april 23, 2008, at the Stanley Center For learning and 
Innovation, 1000 Stanley Drive, new Britain, Ct. a formal notice 
of the meeting together with a proxy statement has been 
mailed to shareowners with this annual report.

indePendent auditors   ernst & young llp, 225 asylum 
Street, hartford, Connecticut 06103.

financial and investor communications   
the Stanley works investor relations department provides  
information to shareowners and the financial community. we 
encourage inquiries and will provide services which include:

>  Fulfilling requests for annual reports, proxy statements,  
forms 10-Q and 10-k, copies of press releases and other  
company information.

>   Meetings with securities analysts and fund managers.

Contact the Stanley works investor relations department at  
our corporate offices by calling Gerard J. Gould, Vice president, 
Investor relations at (860) 827-3833. we make quarterly news 
releases available on-line on the Internet on the day that results 
are released to the news media. the Stanley works releases 
and a variety of shareowner information can be found at  
the Company’s website: www.stanleyworks.com. Stanley  
shareowners are also able to call (860) 827-3874 to request a 
copy of the most recent quarterly earnings release.

dividend reinvestment Plan and stock  
Purchase ProGram  Shareowners may invest funds, have 
dividends automatically reinvested in Stanley common stock and/
or make optional cash payments to increase their common stock 
investment. Inquiries regarding this service should be directed to 
the Company’s transfer agent, Computershare Investor Services 
llC at (888) 660-5513 or (312) 360-5292. 

common stock   the Stanley works common stock is listed 
on the new york Stock exchange under the abbreviated ticker 
symbol “Swk” and is a component of the S&p 500 Composite 
Stock price Index.

common stock  (DollarS per Share)

 Price dividends
 2007 2006 2007  2006
 high low high low

First Quarter  58.99 49.95 53.13 47.00 $ .30 $ .29
Second Quarter  63.68 54.63 54.59 44.61  .30  .29
third Quarter  64.25 52.41 50.81  41.60   .31  .30
Fourth Quarter  58.99 47.01 53.48  46.58   .31  .30

      $ 1.22 $ 1.18

 
dividends   the Stanley works has an impressive and truly 
unique dividend record over the long haul:

>  our record of annual dividend payments is unmatched 
by any industrial company listed on the new york Stock 
exchange – 131 consecutive years.

>  our quarterly dividend record is the longest of any industrial 
company listed on the new york Stock exchange – 451 
consecutive quarters.

>  our dividends have increased in each of the past 40 
years , and during that same period, an investment in 
Stanley stock grew at a compound annual rate of 12%.

dividends (DollarS per Share: aDJuSteD to reFleCt StoCk SplItS)

$1.22 per share

1968 2007

$0.07
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business seCTion 
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long-Term finanCial objeCTives

Sales Growth 
3-5% Annual Organic Growth 
10% Annual Growth Including Acquisitions

Financial Performance 
Mid-teens Percentage Annual EPS Growth 
Free Cash Flow Greater Than or Equal to Net Income 
ROCE In 12-15% Range

Dividend: 
Continued Growth

Credit Ratings: 
“Upper Tier” Investment Grade 

finanCial HigHligHTs

(million dollars, except per share amounts)     2007 2006 Change

Closing market price per share   $ 48.39 $ 50.29 (4%)
Total return (share price change plus dividends)   (2%)  7% 
net sales from continuing operations   $ 4,484 $ 4,019  12%
eBITDa from continuing operations   $ 694 $ 553 25%
Percent of sales     15.5%  13.8% 170bp
net earnings from continuing operations   $ 337 $ 291 16%

Per share    $ 4.00 $ 3.47 15% 
net earnings   $ 337 $ 290 16%

Per share   $ 4.00 $ 3.46 16%
Return on capital employed 
 from continuing operations    14.6%  14.7% (10bp)
Dividends per share   $ 1.22 $ 1.18 3%

a full reConCiliaTion of ebiTDa wiTH THe relevanT gaap measuremenT, neT earnings from ConTinuing operaTions, is presenTeD on page 5.

From left to right: eileen S. Kraus, emmanuel a. Kampouris, Kathryn D. Wriston, Virgis W. Colbert, Lawrence a. Zimmerman, John F. Lundgren, Robert B. Coutts, John g. Breen, Carlos M. Cardoso, Stillman B. Brown.

john g. breen 1,2,4

Retired; former Chairman and Chief  

executive Officer 
The Sherwin Williams Company

stillman b. brown 1,2,4

Managing general Partner 
harcott associates  

Carlos m. Cardoso 3,5

Chairman of the Board,  
President and Chief executive Officer 

Kennametal, Inc.

virgis w. Colbert 1,3,5

Retired; former executive Vice President 

Miller Brewing Company

robert b. Coutts 3,4

executive Vice President,  
electronic Systems 
Lockheed Martin Corporation
(retired effective march 31, 2008)

emmanuel a. Kampouris  3,5

Retired, former Chairman, President  

and Chief executive Officer 
american Standard Companies, Inc.

eileen s. Kraus 1,2,3

Retired, former Chairman 
Fleet Bank, Connecticut

john f. lundgren 1

Chairman and Chief executive Officer 

The Stanley Works

Kathryn D. wriston 4,5

Trustee of various organizations

lawrence a. Zimmerman 2,5  
executive Vice President  
and Chief Financial Officer 
Xerox Corporation

1 Member of the executive Committee    2 Member of the audit Committee    3 Member of the Corporate governance Committee    4 Member of the Finance and Pension Committee    5 Member of the Compensation and Organization Committee

Donald allan, jr.
Vice President and Controller
(1999)

jeffrey D. ansell
Vice President and President, Consumer Tools group

(1999)

bruce H. beatt
Vice President, general Counsel and Secretary

(2000)

justin C. boswell
Vice President and President,  

Stanley Mechanical Solutions 
(2000)

jeff Hung-Tse Chen
Vice President and President, Stanley asia

(1983)

Hubert w. Davis, jr.
Senior Vice President, Business Transformation

(2000)

james m. loree
executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(1999)

john f. lundgren
Chairman and Chief executive Officer

(2004)

mark j. mathieu
Vice President, human Resources
(1997)

Donald r. mcilnay
Senior Vice President and President, Industrial Tools 

group & emerging Markets
(1999)

(joined stanley)
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